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Drilling activities on the site of Semizbay-U
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Corporate Information

DNREH

ABOUT CGN MINING

CGN Mining Company Limited (“CGN Mining” or the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, and is a company listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) in Hong Kong (Stock Code:1164). The principal
activities of the Company at present are development and trading of
natural uranium resources for use by nuclear energy companies.

In August 2011, China General Nuclear Power Corporation) (“‘CGN” or
“CGNPC”), through its indirectly held wholly-owned subsidiary, China
Uranium Development Company Limited (“China Uranium”), acquired
50.11% equity interest in the Vital Group Holdings Limited (“Vital
Group”), and became the controlling shareholder of Vital Group, and
changed its name to CGN Mining Company Limited. At present, the
Company holds equity interests of uranium in Kazakhstan and Canada.

The Company positions itself as the sole overseas uranium exploration
and trading platform for CGN, strives to provide nuclear power
companies with high-quality and reliable natural uranium products, and
contributes to a clean environment.
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Corporate Information
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Zheng Xiaowei
Lai Siu Kuen

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

He Zuyuan (resigned on 25 June 2015)
Xing Jianhua (appointed on 25 June 2015)
Lai Siu Kuen

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1903,19/F, China Resources Building
No. 26 Harbour Road
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Hong Kong

CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.cgnmc.com

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
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Financial Highlights

MBRRE

OPERATING RESULTS %%&

2015
20155

HK$°000
TR

For the year ended 31 December

BE12A31 BLEE

2014
2014 F
HK$'000
THT
(RESEIE)]
(f=51)

2013
20135
HK$000
THET

2012
20124
HK$'000
FHET

Continuing operations BEMEE
Revenue i 703,422 1,151,707 796,594 1,232,287 372,726
Operating profit (loss) T (1) 275,273 113,049 60,320 96,443 (224,349)
Finance costs AR (21,990) (28,802) (27,292) (25,930) (10,524)
Profit (loss) before taxation BRE AR (B51R) 253,283 84,247 33,028 70,513 (234,873)
Income tax (expense) credit Frisst () £4 (49,920) (22,462) (16,978) (51,866) 3417
Profit (loss) from continuing RSB EBE

operation ZiwRl (BE) 203,363 61,785 16,050 18,647 (231,456)
Discontinued Operations FEFEMEL
Profit (loss) from discontinued RIS BN ERTE

operation 2 (BE) 94,640 (103,660) - - -
Profit (loss) for the year AFEHF (FB) 208,003 (41,875) 16,050 18,647 (231,456)
Profit (loss) attributable to: THATER

A (E18) -
Owners of the Company ViN/NG]L 7= DN 297,981 (41,706) 16,365 18,660 (229,858)
Non-controlling interests RS 22 (169) (315) (13) (1,598)
298,003 (41,875) 16,050 18,647 (231,456)

FINANCIAL POSITION 8175k 5%

2015
2015 F

HK$°000
TR

As at 31 December

M12H31H

2014
20144
HK$'000
FET
(Restated)
(& E5)

2013
20134
HK$’000
T

2012
20124
HK$'000
BT

2011
20114
HK$’000
T

Total assets BEMAE 1,145,300 2,244,346 1,652,395 1,812,470 1,945,034
Total liabilities BELE (385,650) (844,869  (573,819)  (755,183) (908,167
759,650 1,399,477 1,078,576 1,057,287 1,036,867
Equity attributable to owners AATHEBA
of the Company [E{h R 759,650 1,397,836 1,076,778 1,055,273 1,034,844
Non-controlling interests SRR - 1,641 1,798 2,014 2,023
759,650 1,399,477 1,078,576 1,057,287 1,036,867
Notes: MEE
(1) The consolidated results of the Group for the two years ended 31 (1) AEEHZ2015F K2014F 12 A31 H 1E
December 2015 and 2014 and the assets and liabilities of the Group as PR 1[E] 4 [82 O 67 5 SR8 A0 2 % (8170 2015 4F 2
at 31 December 2015 and 2014 have been extracted from the audited 2014F 12 A1 ANEER A BRI E AN
consolidated financial statements of the Group as set out on pages 82 FRNES2E2I3EMNANEEBLEREEEN
to 213 of the Annual Report. B -
2 The financial information for the three years ended 31 December () # E 20134 - 20124 K2011 512 A31H

2013, 2012 and 2011 has been extracted from the financial summary
of the annual reports of the Group from the year 2011 to 2013. Such
financial information have not been retrospect and restated in respect
of combination under common control and discontinued operations.
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In 2015, the Company insisted the principle of stable operation,
actively responded to the challenges such as weak macro-economy,
slowdown in the electricity demand growth in the PRC and the
continued depression of international commodity price. As the
upstream fuel supplier of nuclear energy owners, we continued
to implement strategies and objects of global uranium resources
development and natural uranium trading and achieved growth on
both asset scale and operating results by continuously optimizing
assets deployment, improving assets returns and strengthening the
ability of cost control and risk prevention. Other than the one-off gain
from the disposal of pharmaceutical, food and main part of real estate,
during the first half of the year, we also got an increase of income
from natural uranium trading and uranium investment which is better
than expected. In addition, we have realized the injection of interest
in Kazakhstan uranium of the indirect controlling company CGNPC
Uranium Resources Co., Ltd. (“CGNPC-URC”) and obtained the
potential opportunity for further cooperation in respect of uranium in
Kazakhstan. Furthermore, we successfully achieved our layout in the
high-grade uranium ore region in North America through acquisition
of 19.99% equity interest in Fission Uranium Corporation (“Fission”),
a Canadian company. All the mentioned above have laid a solid
foundation for the Company’s development in the long-run.

However, as the international economy recovery situation is
complicated and China’s economy entered into a new norm, also the
international natural uranium market has been over-supplied for a long
time, the natural uranium price will continue to remain at low position
and it is expected that such trend will hardly change in the short-
term. We realized that the developing opportunities in the coming five
years are very important to the Company. The complicated operating
environment not only means new challenges to the Company but also
brings us opportunities. Therefore, in order to obtain qualified and cost-
effective uranium interest at the appropriate time to diversify our market
layout, the Company will continue to maintain the growth in current
assets and business profits and to select appropriate investment and
market expansion opportunities at the same time.

In conclusion, the Company has confidence in the role of nuclear
power in the energy supply. As an exclusive nuclear energy raw
material supplier with advantage of stable customer demand, the
Company aims to create greater values for shareholders by its
professional management skills and its corporate culture of “Based
on entrepreneurship, Brave for innovation and Strive for excellence” to
pursue the operation strategies which are closer to the market trend,
break the current thinking, continuously optimize the business model
and develop stably.

Chairman’s Statement
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Qhairman’s Statement
FEHRES

APPRECIATION

As the Chairman of the Board, | wish to express on behalf of the Board
of CGN Mining my heartfelt gratitude to our business partners, our
clients and shareholders who have given us their trusts. | also take
this opportunity to sincerely thank all staff who have endeavored to
contribute towards the development of the Company.

Chairman
Zhou Zhengxing

30 March 2016, Beijing
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Dear Shareholders,

It is my pleasure to present the 2015 annual results of the Company to
our shareholders. During the reporting period, the major results of the
Company are as follows:

° Revenue of HK$703 million (2014: HK$1,152 million);

° Gross profit margin after deducting sales and distribution
expenditure being 40.21% (2014 15.28%);

° Profit attributable to owners of the Company being HK$298
million (2014: loss HK$42 million), basic earnings per share
HK7.36 cents (2014: loss HK1.25 cents).

Although facing difficult operation conditions, the Company insisted
the operation principles including stabilzing the operation foundation,
adjusting the business structure and broadening the room for
development of uranium business in the right time in 2015, which
brought to the improvement of business performance under adverse
situation and the completion of overall goals. As the chief executive
officer, | hereby thank all the shareholders for their support to the
Company and thank all the staff for their contribution in 2015. |
will summarize the performance of CGN Mining in 2015 and the
subsequent plan below.

Disposal of pharmaceutical, food and real estate business

In March of 2015, the Company disposed pharmaceutical, food and
part of real estate business to an independent third party, which
bought to the strategic transformation of the Company. In the future,
the Company will focus on the development of uranium resources and
natural uranium trading and strive to achieve the development and
expansion in its expertise field.

Injection of uranium mining assets by controlling shareholders

In April 2015, the Company completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium Resources Investment
Company Limited (“Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CGNPC-URC, and in turn indirectly holding 49% equity
interest in Semizbay-U Limited Liability Partnership (“Semizbay-U”)
and respective portion of the sales rights of the off-take quantity.
The qualified in-situ leaching mineral uranium in Kazakh will bring a
stable income to the Company, and it is expected that the potential
cooperation opportunity will improve the Company’s results in the
future.
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President’s Review

#E o A

Acquisition of Canada uranium mining interests

The Company has been looking for low-cost and quality uranium
mining resources, and achieved resource presence in Canada in
2015, which was a very important step, for the Company to develop
uranium business and operation. The completion of acquisition of
19.99% equity interest in Fission in the first quarter of 2016 made CGN
Mining became its largest shareholder. In the future, the Company will
continue to focus on the operation and development of Fission, so as
to achieve returns for shareholders from the Company’s investment.

Corporate governance

We fully understand that good corporate governance is the basis
for long-term and stable development of the Company. In the
management level, we always emphasize the importance of corporate
governance, strive to perfect the systems and regulations so as to
constantly improve and consolidate the management process. In
2015, the Company placed great attention on the internal control
system establishment, by measures such as setting up an internal
audit department, optimizing risk control process, and operational risks
prevention and effective control were achieved. Besides, upon the
completion of the acquisition of 19.99% equity interest in Fission, the
Company will not only focus more on the corporate governance level of
its own, but also respect the management method of Fission, and try
to absorb and learn the excellent governance experience of advanced
mining company in Canada.

Subsequent plan

2016 is the beginning year of the thirteen-five plan of national economy
(“Thirteen-Five Plan”), which is meaningful. As the overall guideline,
the Company will stabilize operations, strive for development and
strengthen the management to further clear the development path
and consolidate the capital operation, also the Company will improve
confidence of investors by effective management and qualified
acquisition project.

In 2016, on the basis of stabilizing the existing interest operation, the
Company will continue to promote and deepen the cooperation with
Kazakh parties (“Kazakh parties”), so as to strive to achieve the growth
of uranium mining resources in Kazakhstan. At the same time, the
Company will continue to look for high-quality uranium mines in the
world, but in consideration of the actual operation costs and economy
of the project, the Company will focus on potential cooperation
opportunity in Canada.

10 CGN Mining Company Limited o f EZEE AR A
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The Company will also continuously improve its management and
enhance its risk control by a number of ways, including building up a
professional and international risk management system and effectively
monitoring the operation risk of Fission, to ensure the accomplishment
of the expected goal of the investment.

Besides, we deeply understand that the sound interaction with our
investors is the foundation for long-term development of the Company.
Therefore, the Company will also strengthen the communications
and interactions with investors to make the market know more about
uranium industry and the Company, and bring opportunities for change
to the Company.

2016 is the beginning of the Thirteen-Five Plan, which is a new
beginning for the Company. It is believed that leveraging on its
increasingly mature management and courage of continuous attempt,
the Company will enter into a new chapter.

Chief Executive Officer
Yu Zhiping

30 March 2016, Beijing
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Communications with Shareholders and Investors

BRR -REEEE

The Company treasures the relationships with shareholders and
potential investors very much. Besides accepting the enquires made
by shareholders relating to Company’s business and communications
request, the Company also held two results presentations in 2015,
so as to enhance the communications between shareholders and
potential investors. The Company believes that enhancing the
communications with shareholders and relevant investors can help the
Company to understand the inadequacy in operation, and gradually
enhance the operation management level.

COMMUNICATIONS METHODS

Shareholders and investors could obtain corporate information and
contact the Company in the following ways:

- Disclosure documents released on the website of Stock
Exchange and the Company’s website;

- Annual general meeting;

- Company website (www.cgnmc.com);

- Results presentations;

- Hotlines (852-3423 8700) and investor relationship mailbox
ir.cgnmc@cgnpc.com.cn;

- Other non-regular investor communication meetings (arranged
by the Company or on requests by investors).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND ANALYSIS

CGN Mining and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged
in natural uranium trading and other investment. At present, the Group
owns the entire equity interest in Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium which
in turn holds 49% equity interest in Semzibay-U and owns 49% of the
sales rights of the off-take quantity of mineral products. Also, in order
to expand the layout of high-grade uranium ore region in Canada so
as to increase the control of the resources, the Company started the
acquisition of 19.99% equity interest in Fission in Canada in 2015.

Analysis of Business Environment

In 2015, global economy was volatile and the prices of commodities
decreased to a new low in recent years. International natural uranium
price has been decreased since the second half of 2007, and
maintained at about United States dollars (“USD”) 40 per pound in
recent years, also the supply of uranium resources is sufficient in the
world. The natural uranium price remained low during the whole year of
2015.

By following the operational strategy decided at the beginning of
2015, namely to strengthen the management foundation, to grasp
opportunity for business expansion, to be well-prepared for every
chance and to stablize operation, the Company achieved the expected
business goal for the year.

OPERATION PERFORMANCE AND ANALYSIS

Capital Operation

Completing the disposal of pharmaceutical, food and main part of real
estate businesses

In March 2015, the Company disposed Yugofoil Holdings Limited
and its subsidiaries (“Yugofoil Group”) and discontinued the business
of pharmaceutical, food and main part of real estate. The relevant
businesses are disposed to an independent third party, and brought a
one-off gain to the Company.

BEEFWR DT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

Completing the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Beijing Sino-
Kazakh Uranium

In April 2015, the Company completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium which in turn indirectly
holds 49% equity interest in Semizbay-U and 49% of its sales rights
of the off-take quantity of mineral products. Semzibay-U owns and
operates two quality and low-cost uranium mines: Irkol Mine (“Irkol
Mine”) and Semizbay Mine (“Semizbay Mine”). As the overseas
uranium resources development platform of CGNPC, the Company
successfully completed the core assets construction, and the principal
operation successfully transformed to uranium resources development
and trading of natural uranium. Along with the injection of high-quality
assets, operation results of the Company improved significantly, and
profitability is greatly enhanced in 2015.

Deepen the cooperation with partners of Kazakh parties

In 2015, the Company, CGNPC, CGNPC-URC, National Atomic
Company Kazatoprom (“Kazatomprom”) and Ulba Metallurgical Plant
(“UMP”) signed the “Commercial Term Agreement in relation to the
design and establishment of fuel component production factory in
Kazakhstan and the joint development of Kazakh uranium”, which
showed the cooperation intention of the Company and partners
of Kazakh parties. Among which, Kazatoprom is the controlling
shareholder which holds 51% equity interest in Semzibay-U.

Kazakhstan is the region where the Company has been paying
attention to because of its low-cost and high-quality large in insitu
leaching uranium mine which provides significant production cost
advantages. Promoting and implementing the cooperation with
Kazakh parties will be the focus of the Company during 2016-2020
(“Thirteen-Five Period”).

Acquisition of 19.99% equity interest in Fission in Canada

In order to expand the layout of high grade and quality uranium
resources in the world and the scale of control to the uranium
resources, and based on the analysis of the current international
natural uranium industry and the judgement to the natural uranium
market, the Company formally entered into the acquisition of 19.99%
equity interest in Fission, a Canadian Company, in 2015. Patterson
Lake South project (“PLS Project”) of Fission is the world third largest
high quality uranium deposit and the world largest undeveloped
uranium deposit.
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In December 2015, the Company and Fission signed “Investment
Letter of Intent” in respect of subscription of 19.99% equity interest
in Fission. Pursuant to the “Investment Letter of Intent”, CGN Mining
shall subscribe for 96,736,540 common shares of Fission, at a price
of Canadian dollars (‘CDN$”) 0.85 per share (the “Subscription”).
Through the Subscription, CGN Mining becomes the single largest
shareholder of Fission, and can purchase from Fission sale rights of
20%-35% of annual production at a discount.

After the completion of the Subscription, the Company, as a strategic
investor and the largest shareholder of Fission, will share the profits
arising from its development in the future, and achieved a stable
product supply channel. In the future, the Company will continue to put
its focus on the Canada uranium resources, in order to select projects
with investment value, and further optimize the resource combination
of the Company.

Potential risks during operation
Risk of continuous depression in uranium price

During the reporting period, the natural uranium price continued to
remain at low level, and there was no signal to increase, which created
a great pressure to the Group’s profit.

In order to prevent the risk from the volatility of natural uranium price,
the selling price of natural uranium of the Company was consisted of
base price plus escalation price, with reference to the spot and long-
term price indicator of international uranium published by the Uxc (the
Ux Consulting Company, LLC) and TradeTech (TradeTech of Denver
Tech Centre), to ensure the price will not deviate from market price, and
also maximize the profit.

Risk of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate

As Kazakhstan allowed its local currency, Tenge, to float freely, there
has been a significant depreciation of the Tenge against USD since
August 2015, and do not exclude from presenting the possibility of
drastic fluctuation in 2016. Significant fluctuation in Tenge may have an
impact on the fair value of the Group’s interest in Semizbay-U.

In order to lower the uncertainty brought from the fluctuation in
foreign exchange rate, the sale of natural uranium of Semizbay-U is
denominated in USD, and Semizbay-U will strive for long term contract,
so as to lower the effect from price fluctuation. Besides, Semizbay-U
keeps USD cash as much as possible in the course of daily operation,
and changes into Tenge when it requires to pay in Tenge.

BEEFWR DT

M20155F12 A - AAEIENZE KFission
PRERE10.99% R EEB(REER
E2) BREZ(REERME) PEXKE
¥8i0.85 M= Rl nx)) FRRE
Fission 96,736,5400% & 3BA% ([ %5288 ) °
BB A - BRI A Fission B —
BARER - WS IES AT A Fission B
ANEEEE 20%-35% & I B S5

IR 5 5ek 1% + X B]YE A Fission #IBLRE
BEERE—ARRE  #5 = Fission KK
BERMELNN  BEETHERME
RiE o RERDREFEBTINEXHE
BRATRILABREAEBENER - #E—
HBEARNERAS -

REPRNEERR
RAREISFFE KRR

RIEHRA - RAMERIDALEEXE
ARREBY - GAKENBENGEREK
B -

7RI R NS (B AR R IR BY A5 2R e LB
NAEMARAHHEBEL2MRUxc (the Ux
Consulting Company, LLC) & TradeTech
(TradeTech of Denver Tech Centre) 2 ]
B R AR E MR EEBREAEEER
IEBERTRETE - AMRZBRE MR
B - thE—ERE LRENEERA
b o

RGN EIL 3

HRKERIMES M AMERNIEBRX
B HF8) 0 8201598 AMAKREXHETT
HIARREZE - BT HEBRE2016F B X H
BAEKEHIER - BRAIAIREB) A 88
HAEERFENHA RN A R EEK

=713
7

AEANE R RN FE TR B R T
T @A BB R A E LA TAHE - 1
FMERF KSR BRI E R
B BN BARIABREPRENUE

TEERASEP,  FHEXNFEREFR
BB X AT e

Annual Report 2015 ¢ —Z — H F 45




Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

Natural Uranium Trading Business

In 2015, most of the natural uranium products sold by the Company
were mainly sourced from self-owned mines of Semizbay-U, the
natural uranium trading amount achieved HK$700 million, representing
a decrease of 39.02% as compared to 2014 (2014: HK$1,148 million).
For the year ended 31 December 2015, gross profit from natural
uranium trading was approximately HK$280 million, representing an
increase of approximately 62.79% as compared to the gross profit of
HK$172 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The decrease
in revenue from natural uranium trading and the increase in gross profit
was mainly due to the Company suspended the less profitable trading
business in 2015 and commenced sale of self-own mine products
which have cost advantage.

Operation of Semizbay-U Uranium Mines

Semizbay-U is principally engaged in the mining of natural uranium
and extraction business. At present, it operates two mines which
produced uranium (i.e. Irkol Mine and Semizbay Mine, “Two Mines”),
and owns the entire interest in the Two Mines. As the natural uranium
trading of Semizbay-U is denominated in USD, and major loans and
daily operation are denominated in Tenge. In 2015, the depreciation
in Tenge resulted in the Group recorded earnings attributable to joint
venture of HK$5.4 million (2014: loss of HK$54.1 million).

Since the Two Mines are in the production stage, therefore no
exploration has been conducted during the period. The mineral ore
mined out from the Irkol Mine and the Semizbay during the period
were approximately 3,608 Kilotons and 3,046 Kilotons, and the natural
uranium produced by the Two Mines were 782 tons and 440 tons,
respectively. During the period under review, the operating cost of
Semizbay-U was 18.86 billions Tenge.

During the period, besides the contract for purchasing raw materials
to assist production, Semizbay-U did not enter into any significant new
contract and commitment which were related to the Two Mines.

Since no supplemental exploration has been conducted of Two Mines
during the period, the resources and reserves have no material change.
For further details of the resources and reserves about the Two Mines,
please refer to the relevant part on pages 106-143 of the appendix V
competent person’s report of the circular of the Company dated 30
June 2014 regarding the major transaction and connected transaction
in relation to the acquisition of the entire equity of Beijing Sino-Kazakh.
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Significant Investments Held

Save for the matters disclosed above, the Group did not hold any
significant investments as of 31 December 2015.

Discontinued Operations
Pharmaceutical and Food Business

During the reporting period, the Group ceased the pharmaceutical and
food business by disposal of Yugofoil Group, which was reclassified as
discontinued operation. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the
turnover of the pharmaceutical and food business amounted to HK$33.2
million, representing a decrease of approximately 62.31% as compared
with the sales of approximately HK$88.1 million in the corresponding period
in 2014.

Property Investment Business

Through the disposal of Yugofoil Group, the leased investment
property business of two of its subsidiaries, namely Sichuan Hengtai
Pharmaceutical Company Limited and Chengdu Vital Properties
Limited, was also reclassified as discontinued operations. During
the Period under review, signing the leased investment property
business brought HK$1.99 million rental income to the Company.
After completing the disposal of the business of Yugofoil Group, the
property located in Beijing owned by Beijing Sino-Kazakh will be the
only investment property held by the Group. It brought HK$3.03 million
(2014: HK$3.79 million) rental income to the Group in 2015.

Environmental Protection

The Company as a green energy affiliate, pays high attention to
environmental protection. The Company vigorously promotes
environmental protection by promoting green, energy saving and
environmental protection concept, such as advocating the green office,
encouraging use of electronic document, double-sided printing, using
eco-friendly appliances etc. At the same time, the Company organizes
the staff to participate in promotional activities, such as tree planting
activity, and promotes the use of public transports, or walking to
substitute driving.

Relationship with Suppliers and Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company maintained a
good relationship with its suppliers and customers.
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Social Participation

Every year, the Company reserves part of the fund to actively organize
social charity, and organizes staff to participate in “Showing love”
activities, such as helping and visiting people in need. At the same
time, Semizbay-U, which the Company have a stake, helped the social
construction near the mine, and built up a good relationship with the
local community.

Equal Opportunity and Diversity

The Company respects and treats every employee the same, and
promotes equal opportunity and policy of diversification regardless of
age, sex, marital status.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

For the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this
report, to the best knowledge of the directors, the Group complied with
applicable laws, rules and regulations in all material aspects.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

In the coming five years, the PRC will start to implement the Thirteen-
Five Plan Nuclear power as the main force of clean energy and
important part of “going global” strategy of the PRC, which plays an
important role in the plan.

The Company will follow the nuclear development of the Thirteen-
Five Plan of the PRC and work out the Company’s own operational
management strategy and developing path of the Thirteen-Five Period,
use the national nuclear energy development plan as guideline, not
only rely on large number of users of CGNPC and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “CGN Group”) in natural uranium but also actively
explore new markets out of CGN Group.
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The Company believes that the development of nuclear power as
the clean energy will be stable in the coming five years. However, the
over-supply in the natural uranium market will be continued as the
impact of post-Fukushima era has not been completely eliminated,
and the natural uranium price remains low continuously is a probable
event. The Company will bravely face challenges and try to grasp
opportunities by acquiring and selecting potential low-cost uranium
mine over the world in a good timing during the low market price period
of the natural uranium. The Company aims to maintain the balance
of the control volume and supply of natural uranium through realizing
coordinated development of uranium mine at difference stages during
exploration, construction and production. The Company clearly
recognized that no matter at present or in the future the one who owns
low cost mine will get the largest benefit in the natural uranium industry.
Therefore, the Company will carry on its international exploration
strategy and layout with emphasis on investment opportunities of
in situ leaching uranium project in Kazakhstan and uranium mine in
Canadian rich uranium areas, and strive to grasp the opportunities
before the natural uranium price goes upward.

In the future, the Company will also continue to adhere to the current
strategic objectives, by acquiring high quality uranium mine under the
indirect controlling shareholder CGNPC-URC and consolidating the
uranium resources of CGN Group, so as to achieve greater efficiency on
capital operation. In addition, the Company will, as appropriate, consider
the introduction of some strategic investors to improve shareholder
structure and strengthen capital strength at the right time. Furthermore,
the Company fully aware that good corporate governance is very
essential under increasingly fierce market competition. The Company
will continue to improve risk management and internal control system,
enhance management level, intensify human resources training, deepen
exploration of business mode, establish medium-long-term incentive
framework and be well prepared to deal with challenges we face during
the development. Meanwhile, the Company will ensure sound and
smooth communication channels with investors and show a brand
new image to investors and the market with a more transparent and
professional way.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND ANALYSIS

Financial performance reflects the operation of the Company
throughout the year. By paying attention to changes in financial
indicators, business development of the Company can be fully
understood.
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Overview of financial results and position

Major Financial Indicators

TEMBER

Profitability indicators BRENER

Gross profit margin (%)’ FEME (%)

EDITDA (million HK$)? EBITDA(BEAL)?
EBITDA/TURNOVER (%) EBITDA 4 S 5 5 (%)°
Net profit margin(%)* FREE (%)
Operation ability indicators BERNERZ

Trade receivables cycle — average (Days)®
Inventory cycle — average

RS — T4 (R)°
A - i

(Not including goods in transit) (Days)® (TeEEgEmm)(R)e
Investment return indicators REBIWMIEE
Return on equity (%) e B R K (%)
Profit (loss) attributable to owners RAEER AEEER
of the Company to turnover ratio® (B18) B SR 3o
Return on assets (%)° 488 ZE B3R K (%)°
Repayment ability indicators EEENEE
Liability component of the convertible bonds ~ AJ R EH B EZH
(million HK$) (BE8HT)

Bank deposits and cash (million HK$)
Net tangible assets (million HK$)™©
Gearing ratio (%)

Interest coverage'?

1. Difference between turnover and sale cost divided by turnover 1.

multiplied by 100%.

2. The sum of profit (loss) before tax, financial expenses and depreciation 2.

of property, plant and equipment.

RiTREFLRRE (AEBT)
BEVEEFE(BEET)
BARRELE (%)

B EERMRBE

2014

2014 4

(Restated)

(L&)

40.21 15.28
373.25 14.47
53.06 1.26
42.36 (3.64)
106 69

14 10
27.60 (2.89)
42.36 (3.62)
17.58 (1.94)
289.93 549.51
285.53 233.65
759.65 1,399.33
50.77 60.37
16.82 0.33

FlemEs

The sum of profit (loss) before tax, financial expenses and depreciation
of property, plant and equipment divided by turnover multiplied by
100%.

Net profit divided by turnover multiplied by 100%.

Average receivables (i.e. the arithmetic average of the beginning and
the end of reporting period) divided by average daily sales (turnover
divided by 360 days).

Average amount of inventory (i.e. the arithmetic average of the
beginning and the end of reporting period) multiplied by 360 divided by
sale cost.

Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the company divided by total
average equity (i.e the arithmetic average of the beginning and the end
of reporting period) multiplied by 100%.

Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company divided by the
turnover multiplied by 100%.
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9. Profit (loss) divided by total average assets (i.e. the arithmetic average
of the beginning and the end of reporting period) multiplied by100%.

10. Net value of shareholders’ equity interest less intangible assets.
11. Total debt divided by total equity multiplied by 100%.

12. Profit before interest and taxes divided by interest expense.

Financial results

In 2015, the Group realized revenue of HK$703 million on continuing
businesses, representing a decrease of HK$448 million or 38.92%
compared to the revenue of HK$1,152 million in 2014; the Group
realized profit of HK$298 million, representing an increase of
HK$340 million compared to the loss of HK$42 million in 2014.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$298 million
representing an increase of HK$340 million compared with the loss of
HK$42 million attributable to owners of the Company of 2014,

TURNOVER

2015

20155
HK$’000

TRT

BEEFWR DT
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FA9(E) EFBIRLA100% ©
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ERE
For the year ended Percentage
31 December Movements
BZ12A31HLEE )]
Increase/ Increase/
2014 (Decrease) (Decrease)
20145 BI/CAd)  #im/Ofd)
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FisR Tt
(RESEIE)!
(f=51)
Trading of natural uranium RRME S 700,391 1,147,920 (447 529) (38.99)
Property Investment WMERE 3,031 3,787 (756) (19.96)
Total income WAEET 703,422 1,151,707 (448,285) (38.92)

The revenue of 2015 of the Group decreased by 38.92% to HK$703
million as compared to the revenue of HK$1,152 million of 2014. It
was mainly because the Group has suspended the trading of natural
uranium which is of low gross profit.
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SHEMAE

Cost of sales

For the year ended Percentage
31 December Movements change
BZ12B31ALEE 25m 2ok
Increase/ Increase/
2015 2014 (Decrease) (Decrease)
20156 20145 #/CRd) B/ ORd)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
THT THT THET
(RESEIE)!
(K =51)
Cost of trading of KIRSHE BARA
natural uranium 420,409 975,534 (655,125) (66.90)
Property Investment MERE 170 216 (46) (21.30)
Total cost of sales HERNEF 420,579 975,750 (555,171) (56.90)

The cost of sales of the Group dropped by 56.90% from HK$976
million in 2014 to HK$421 million in 2015. It was mainly because the
Group has suspended the trading at natural uranium which is of low
gross profit.

One-off Gain on Disposal of Subsidiaries

On 25 March 2015, the Group disposed of the entire equity of Yugofoil
Group to an independent third party. The gain on the disposal of the
subsidiaries was approximately HK$99.0 million.

Share of Results of Joint Ventures

Our joint ventures mainly include Semizbay-U, and our share of results
of joint ventures increased from loss of HK$54.13 million in 2014 to
profit of HK$5.36 million in 2015, primarily because Semizbay-U turned
its loss into profit in 2015.

Finance Costs

Our finance cost decreased by 24.14% from HK$29 million in 2014
to HK$22 million in 2015. The main reason is that China Uranium
Development exercised the conversion rights attached to the
convertible bonds in respect of a principal amount of HK$300,000,000
at the conversion price of HK$0.23 per conversion share on 15 June
2015. The portion of convertible bonds of which the conversion rights
are being exercised represents 50% of the convertible bonds with a
principal amount of HK$600,000,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Annual Profit

Our annual profit increased from loss of HK$42 million in 2014 to
HK$298 million in 2015. It was mainly from the increase on trading
profits and the one-off gain from the disposal of subsidiaries.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total assets amounted to
HK$1,145 million, representing a decrease of HK$1,099 million or
49% from HK$2,244 million as at 31 December 2014. The Group’s
total liabilities amounted to HK$386 million, representing a decrease of
HK$459 million or 54% from HK$845 million as at 31 December 2014.
The Group’s total equity amounted to HK$760 million, representing a
decrease of HK$639 million or 46% from HK$1,399 million as at 31
December 2014, among which equity attributable to owners of the
Company accounted for HK$760 million, representing a decrease of
HK$638 million or 46% from HK$1,398 million as at 31 December
2014.

Net Current Asset

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s net current assets was HK$583
million. As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s net current assets was
HK$1,558 million. The change was primarily due to the settlement of
consideration of USD133 million by the Company to CGNPC-URC for
acquiring 100% entity interest of Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium during
the period under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

Current Assets

2015

2015 F
HK$’000
FHET

REEE
Percentage
As at 31 December Movements change
M12A318 g 2HESL
Increase/ Increase/
2014 (Decrease) (Decrease)
20145 i/ Cid)  m/ORd)
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
THT THET
(RESEIE)!
(fe=51)
Inventories &E - 32,536 (32,536) (100.00)
Amount due from an [k — R PR AR
intermediate holding NSEE]
company 10,074 7,606 2,468 32.45
Trade and other receivables JE U BR T K EoAth U o8 185,721 227,282 (41,561) (18.29)
Prepaid lease payments THfF BREENEEFIE
on land use rights - 407 (407) (100.00)
Amount due from 3 GES NG
fellow subsidiaries 476,588 1,331,196 (854,608) (64.20)
Bank balances and cash RITEGFRIRS 285,528 233,655 51,873 22.20
Total current assets MEVBERS 957,911 1,832,682 (874,771) (47.73)

As at 31 December 2015, the current assets of the Group were
HK$958 million, representing a decrease of HK$875 million or 47.73%
from HK$1,833 million as at 31 December 2014, primarily due to
the settlement of consideration for acquiring 100% equity interests
in Beijing Sino-Kazakh in the amount of US$133 million paid by the
Company to CGNPC-URC during the period.

As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of bank balances,
and cash was approximately HK$285.53 million (31 December 2014:
HK$233.66 million), among which approximately 1% (31 December
2014: 5%) is calculated in HKD, approximately 6% (31 December
2014: 92%) is calculated in USD, approximately 81% (31 December
2014: Nil) is calculated in CDN$ and approximately 12% (31 December
2014: 83%) is calculated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any bank deposits
and cash pledged to any bank (81 December 2014: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Current Liabilities

2015

2015 F
HK$’000
FHET

BEEFWR DT

REBEE
Percentage
As at 31 December Movements change
R12A31H & 2HENL
Increase/ Increase/
2014 (Decrease) (Decrease)
20145 i/ Cid)  m/ORd)
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
i Fib
(RESEIE)!
(fe=51)
Trade and other payables JERTBR A H AR 58 46,453 242,730 (196,277) (80.86)
Amount due to an FERT— R AR R R FUR
intermediate holding
company 11,772 4,997 6,775 135.58
Amount due to ajoint venture B —RIA B ERIE 3,293 11,856 (8,563) (72.23)
Amount due to FANEES NGB
fellow subsidiaries 2,891 2,821 70 2.48
Convertible bonds AR ES 289,933 - 289,933 N/A i
Income tax payable e ETEH 20,449 12,575 7,874 62.62
Total current liabilities BB ERR 374,791 274,979 99,812 36.30

As at 31 December 2015, the current liabilities of the Group were
HK$375 million, representing an increase of HK$100 million or 36.3%
from HK$275 million as at 31 December 2014, primarily due to the
convertible bond would be matured on 17 August 2016 and classified
as current liabilities for the year, but the disposal of Yugofoil Group has
partially offset the effect from that.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no bank borrowing (31
December 2014: Nil). However, on 18 December 2015, the Group
entered into a facility letter with CGNPC Huasheng Investment Limited
(“CGNPC Huasheng”) (as lender), pursuant to which the Company
can borrow from CGNPC Huasheng for short-term capital within the
limit of total borrowing from time to time within 3 years from the first
withdrawal.
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Non-current Assets

Intangible assets EVEE

Property, plant and equipment ~ #% - BE RiRE

Investment property BEME

Prepaid lease payments TinfF BRETENEEFIE
on land use rights

Interest in a joint venture R—HERErE R

Total non-current assets FEREEERE

FRBEE

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2015
20154
HK$’000
TEr

20,339
28,778

138,272
187,389

As at 31 December 2015, the non-current assets of the Group were
HK$187 million, representing a decrease of HK$224 million or 54.48%
from HK$412 million as at 31 December 2014. It was mainly because
the Group has completed the disposal of Yugofoil Group and the
sharp depreciation for the Tenge against US dollar which caused the
deduction of equity interest on Semizbay-U Holding by Beijing-Sino

Kazakh Uranium during the period.

Non-current liabilities

Convertible bonds AR ES
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
Total non-current liabilities EREAEeRE
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2014
20144
HK$'000
FET
(RESEIE)!
(fe=51)

149
41,967
117,637

18,860
233,051
411,664

Movements

P

=
Increase/
(Decrease)
/(i d)
HK$'000
Tt

(149)
(21,628)
(88,859)

(18,860)
(94,779)
(224,275)

Percentage

change
BHEHL
Increase/
(Decrease)
0,/ (D)
%

(100.00)
(51.54)
(75.54)

(100.00)
(40.67)
(54.48)

M2015F 128310 AEBIEREE
E A/187H & 5 L0 th2014F 12 A 31
HE412B88B TR 224 B8BAET B
154.48% c TERERAEE L HAT
RE R RERN LS MARREZET
NIBEZEZEIL R R A FER

9\0

FRBEE

As at 31 December
M12A381H

2015
2015%
HK$'000
THL

10,859
10,859

2014
20144
HK$'000
THT
(RESEIE)!
(&&E7)
549,507
20,383
569,890

Movements

A

Increase/
(Decrease)
#m/ (md)
HK$'000
TR

(549,507)
(9,524)
(559,031)

Percentage
change
-EER
Increase/
(Decrease)
#m,/ ORd)
%

(100.00)
(46.79)
(98.09)




Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2015, the non-current liabilities of the Group were
HK$11 million, representing a decrease of HK$559 million or 98.09%
from HK$570 million as at 31 December 2014, primarily due to the
exercise of 50% conversion rights of convertible bonds by China
Uranium in 2015, the remaining balance of convertible bond has been
classified as current liabilities for the year.

As at 31 December 2015, the liability component of the convertible
bonds was approximately HK$290 million (31 December 2014:
HK$550 million).

Total Equity

As at 31 December 2015, total equity of the Group amounted to
HK$760 million, representing a decrease of HK$639 million or 46%
from HK$1,399 million as at 31 December 2014, mainly attributable
to (i) the consideration of acquiring 100% equity interests in Beijing
Sino-Kazakh in the amount of US$133 million, which is higher than
the net asset of Beijing Sino-Kazakh, diluted the reserve in equity
under the standard of merger accounting under common control;
(i) China Uranium exercised 50% of the conversion rights attached
to convertible bonds in 2015. The Company allotted and issued
1,304,347,826 conversion shares to China Uranium. The Group’s
capital structure remained relatively stable during the year as the
gearing ratio (total borrowings/equity attributable to owners of the
Company, net of intangible assets and goodwill) was 51% (2014:
60%).

MAJOR ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Major Disposal

On 25 March 2015, the Company (as vendor) and Bright Future
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“Bright Future”) (as purchaser)
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to sell and the purchaser
has conditionally agreed to acquire, the entire issued share capital
of Yugofoil Group. The Company has agreed to assign and the
purchaser has agreed to accept the interests in debt repayment from
Yugofoil Group to the Company at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$101,250,000.

BEEFWR DT
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51% (2014 4 : 60%) °

BERABBREE
EAMHE

20153 A25H * AARI(ERER)
B Bright Future Pharmaceutical Holdings
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

On 16 May 2014, the Company (as purchaser) and CGNPC-URC (as
vendor) entered into the share and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which CGNPC-URC conditionally agreed to sell and the Company
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire registered capital of Beijing
Sino-Kazakh, at the purchase price of US$133 million. On 15 April
2015, the Company completed the acquisition of 100% equity of
Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium.

On 21 December 2015, the Company (as subscriber) and Fission (as
issuer) signed a letter of intent for the acquisition of 19.99% equity
of the latter. Upon the completion of the acquisition, the Company
will become the single largest shareholder of Fission. Fission will not
become a subsidiary of the Company and its financial statements will
not be incorporated into the financial statements of the Group.

CONTINGENCY EVENTS

External Guarantees

In 2015, the Group did not have any external guarantee (2014: Nil).

Pledge of Assets

In 2015, the Group did not have any pledge of assets (2014: Nil).

Contingent Liability

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any major contingent
liability (31 December 2014: nil).

Legal Proceedings

The Company confirmed that there was no litigation, and it is not aware
of any pending or threatened litigation against the Company which had
or could have a material and adverse effect on the financial condition
or results of operations of the Company during 2015.

Other Information

For further information about the Group’s capital structure, human
capital and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rate, please refer to
the section headed “Capital” in this annual report.
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HUMAN CAPITAL ABER

The Company always concerned about how to reasonably utilise and BT RTINS ERRERRHASIRE -

protect human capital, providing security of talents for the sustainable ~ ARIERAA + BEAS « I2F AT BIIE
development of the Company. The Company focuses on optimizing EEENBEES  1TET —ZEBENE
and improving the human resources team and creates an outstanding BMEHEAAHM -

team of management and professional talents.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 23 employees, 19 of these R2015F 12 A31H » AEBHEF23%E
employees were located in China and 4 in Hong Kong. For further B ZEEED  208HRPE 37
information about staff remuneration, please refer to the relevant REL - EHEEFHSHE  B2EHES
contents in notes 16 & 17 of the consolidated financial statements. S mERME16 R 17TEBAS

HUMAN RESOURCES A7 B R

Employee composition BTI#HE

W Professional technical
personnel

HERMAE
Management personnel
EIRAE

Bachelor
REARFE}

B Master
BLRE
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Professional qualifications

In the current workforce, 54% employees have intermediate
professional qualification or above, of which over 20% employees have
advanced professional qualification or above.

EMPLOYMENT MECHANISM

Path of development

The Company respects the contribution by each employee. It
pays close attention to the career development of employees
and encourages them to formulate their individual plan for career
development under the guidance and assistance of the Company. The
Company has two paths of career development, namely management
and professional technology, and has established the switch
mechanism between the two paths.

Internal talent market

For better use of the ability and expertise of each employee, the
Company established the internal talent market. Through open
recruitment or internal transfer, the optimized allocation of internal
human resources is achieved and the aspiration of individual
employees can be better realized, thus to accomplish the common
promotion of both the Company and employees.

Evaluation System

In order to implement the Company’s goal and establish an incentive
and restraint mechanism of the Company, the Company has set up
a performance appraisal evaluation system, by way of continuous
communication, feedback, improvement, guidance on staff behavior
and have set performance targets for staff. Also, the Company
will follow the steps of communication, coaching, tracking and
assessment, during the implementation of the performance plan, so as
to reach the performance results, and promotes the co-development
of the Company and staff.

Cultivating talents

The Company incorporated international and advanced experience in
talent cultivation and combined its own characteristics. Then it formed
an autonomous talent cultivation system and a regulated and highly
effective training management system with training for entire staff,
authorized employment and lifelong education as core values.
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Training resources

The Company has a comprehensive curriculum. There are 12 courses
for professional technology, covering the components from smelting
to assembly of uranium and all parts in treatment of incinerated
waste. There are 35 online courses, covering workplace technique,
business communication and safety culture. These courses meet the
Company’s needs for rapid talent development effectively.

Remuneration system

Combined with the characteristics of the industry, the Company
constructed a competitive remuneration system which appeals to
quality talents and motivates employees effectively. The remuneration
system reflects the value of positions and individual sharing and
encourages long-term service of employees, jointly striving for
continuous growth and sustainable development of the Company
and sharing the results of corporate development. Remuneration is
mainly composed of basic salary, over-time pay, benefits and year-end
bonus.

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

The Company adopts conservative capital and treasury policy and
goals. During the reporting period under review, capital required for
operation was mainly cash generated from operating activities.

The cash requirements of the Company mainly include acquisition
expenses of acquiring natural uranium resources and funds for
operation. When suitable opportunities for acquisition arise, the Group
can obtain short-term borrowings from CGNPC Huasheng and also
raise long-term funds through diverse financing channels to meet the
needs of the project.

The financing capacity of the Company depends on multiple external
and internal factors. In order to obtain financing on more favourable
terms, the Company have to understand the external financing
environment and adopt a reasonable financing model and strategy and
strict management measures for debt risks.

EXTERNAL FINANCING ENVIRONMENT

The Company will continue to pay close attention to the trend in the
financial market, consider how to respond to internal and external
financial risks and adopt effective preventive measures for further
security of the Company’s capital and financing, in order to facilitate
financial health and development of core business of the Company.
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FINANCING MODEL

Given the complex and ever-changing financing environment, the
Company has been exploring diverse financing approaches and strive
to establish a financing model with combination of short, medium and
long-term capitals, merges direct financing and indirect financing and
with various channels to ensure the fund security.

TYPES OF FINANCING PRODUCTS

On 18 December 2015, the Company (as borrower) and CGNPC
Huasheng (as lender) entered into a loan agreement, pursuant to
which the Company can borrow from CGNPC Huasheng for short-
term capital within the limit of total borrowing from time to time within
3 years of first withdrawal. As at 31 December 2015, the Company did
not have any borrowing from external banks.

In the process of debt financing, the Company has followed the
principle of considering both costs and safety. The Company is
dedicated to seeking a competitive financing cost but do not see
the lowest financing costs as our only goal in order not to damage
financing security and the quality of service received. It may increase
finance costs due to the Company’s financing arrangements for capital
security. However, the Company continued paying attention and avoid
excessive financing costs causing the financial leveraging effect to be
severely weakened.

EXCHANGE RATE

The Group’s purchase and sale were mainly settled in USD and RMB
(2014: USD and RMB).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group did not experience
any significant difficulty or impact in its operation or liquidity due the
fluctuation in exchange rate.

There has been a significant depreciation of Tenge, the Kazakhstan
currency, since it was allowed to float freely on 20 August 2015. As
Tenge is the functional currency of Semizbay-U, its depreciation may
have an impact on the fair value of the Group’s interest in Semizbay-U.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 15 June 2015, China Uranium exercised the conversion rights
attached to the convertible bonds in respect of a principal amount of
HK$300,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.23 per conversion
share. The portion of convertible bonds of which the conversion rights
are being exercised represents 50% of the convertible bonds with
a principal amount of HK$600,000,000. The Company allotted and
issued 1,304,347,826 conversion shares to China Uranium.

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had 4,636,934,819 ordinary
shares in issue (31 December 2014 3,332,586,993 ordinary shares).

As at 31 December 2015, the market value of the Company was
approximately HK$2,782 million (31 December 2014: HK$2,499
million).

RISK MANAGEMENT OF DEBT

As at 31 December 2015, besides China Uranium held convertible
bonds in principal amount of HK$300,000,000, there were no banking
borrowings, or other borrowings, the average finance costs was 5%
per annum (2014 5%).

The Company did not provide security for subsidiaries or other
companies, and subsidiaries are also not allowed to provide security
of any form for any unit or person, without the approval of the authority
department of the Company.

In order to manage current assets risk, the Company monitors the
cash and cash equivalents and the unutilized credit level of the
Company, to ensure the operation of the Company and to lower the
effect from volatile of the cash and cash equivalents, and to provide
sufficient cash support. Management of the Company monitors the
external borrowing, to ensure the unutilized borrowing credit. As at
31 December 2015, the Company has undrawn borrowing credit of
US$300,000,000.
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Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhou Zhenxing (“Mr. Zhou”), aged 59, was appointed as the
chairman of the Board and a non-executive director of the Company
on 5 December 2013. Mr. Zhou is also the chairman of the board of
CGNPC-URC, China General Nuclear Power Services Corporation
and CGN Nuclear Technology Application Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhou worked
at China National Nuclear Corporation from March 1989 to January
1996 as a deputy director of the General Affairs Division of the Nuclear
Fuel Bureau and subsequently the secretary to the executive deputy
general manager of the China National Nuclear Group. Between July
1996 and December 1999, he joined Unilever Wall’s (China) Co.,
Ltd. as a vice general manager and the head of Human Resources
& External Relations, concurrently between July 1998 to April 2001,
he also served as a vice president of Sumstar Group Co., Ltd., a
company under Ministry of Light Industry. Between May 2001 and
March 2003, Mr. Zhou joined China Universities Intelligence Bank
Co., Ltd. as the executive vice president, head of Human Resources
and Project Development. Between April 2003 and September 2006,
Mr. Zhou joined Galaxy Captek Co., Ltd.* (“Galaxy Captek”) (1t FL4R
T RIFT TR R AR A 7)), a member of CGN, as general manager.
Between October 2006 and August 2009, he was the general manager
of CGNPC-URC. He has been the chairman of the Board of CGNPC-
URC since August 2009. Mr. Zhou graduated with a bachelor of
engineering degree in metal materials engineering from the Hebei
University of Science and Technology and with a master of engineering
degree in metal materials and heat treatment from the Harbin Institute
of Technology. Mr. Zhou has more than 26 years’ experience in
operation and management of largescale enterprises at home and
abroad, as well as the practical operation experience in uranium
resources exploration and nuclear resources operation system.
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Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Yu Zhiping (“Mr. Yu”), aged 52, is an executive director and
the chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Yu was appointed the
chairman of the Company and a non-executive director on 18 August
2011 and was re-designated to an executive director and the chief
executive officer of the Company on 5 December 2013. Mr. Yu also
served as the managing director of CGNPC-URC and chairman of
Swakop Uranium (PTY) Ltd. (“Swakop Uranium”) (R Bz thEETRIA
B2 E]). Mr. Yu joined CGN Group in 1989, and served as the head
of the Production Planning Division at the joint venture of the Daya
Bay Nuclear Power (a subsidiary of CGNPC), and subsequently as
the head of the Development Planning Division of the CGNPC, the
secretary general of the Financial and Economic Affairs Committee,
the director of the Research Centre, the general manager of the
Strategic Planning Department of CGNPC, and served as the general
manager of CGNPC-URC since September 2009. Mr. Yu graduated
with a bachelor degree in engineering mechanics from Huazhong
University of Science & Technology in 1985. Mr. Yu has over 25 years
of experience in corporate management and nuclear fuel system
operation.

Executive Director

Mr. Xing Jianhua (“Mr. Xing”), aged 45, is an executive director and
the chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Xing is also a director
of Semizbay-U, a non-executive director of Energy Metals Limited (a
listed company in Australia, stock code: EME) and deputy general
manager and the chief accountant of CGNPC-URC. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Xing has served as the deputy head and technician
of the Miners Bridge area of Yinggangling Mining Bureau of Jiangxi
province, the section head of the Finance Department of Changsha
Research Institute of Mining and Metallurgy, general manager of the
Finance Department of China Potevio* (f B A= B E% £ E) and
general manager of the Finance Department of CGNPC. Mr. Xing
graduated from Hunan Xiangtan Mining Institute* (#fE % 3 £05%) with
a bachelor of engineering degree in mining engineering in 1995; and
obtained a master of management degree in accounting from Wuhan
University of Technology in 2002 and Mr. Xing is a Certified Public
Accountant in the PRC. Mr. Xing has over 21 years of experience in
mining, financial management, acquisition and capital operation.

Directors’ Profile

EEEN

BTESREREUTE

REFPRE(REE]D 5255 BARAF
BITESREFHITE - REER2011
F8A1SHEZAAARREESERE
JEMITESE - WR2013F 12 A58 AF
RARNTMITESRERNTE - Rtk
FIREEARBEZmERREEBLE -
PEZMENBBRAFNEETEER - R
FER 1989 F A B EZEE (LA TS
BIREZER])  LEBEERERS
EMEARAKNEEZEAE AR EETS
BEK - FEZEEAREER SIS
BR BEEZEENER HIRPOLEE
TNBLES AR B0 48483 + 72009 4F 9 A BHE
FHEZBERREFLLEES - RIT
H19BSFRENERRBERBETIRRNER
¥ BB o RELEHAHBSFH
NEIBEIIZRE B REETRER -

BTES

FEEAE(EERE]D 455 BAR
AIMITESREFMBE - ZLERKE
FHAFES BANTBER - OR
METRTF - RN - EME) JEHTTE
T HPEZHMEZRIIGLCERAE
Bb o IMARRRIAT » SEXESEIAES
ERVEBFEEIRERRRERNE - &
DEAH RS R PREEXRES
EXEEVBEHRCERPEZERAR
BTSSP AR IR E RN - SEHRAE1995F R
PETE SRR TR ETE22
TE(7 - 2002F R EIB T ARESFEE
¥ERSRETEN - BREEMEErE -
FREEL BB FHRILFAR - BHE
B HENEAEEER -

Annual Report 2015 ¢ —Z — H F 45

35




Directors’ Profile

ESEN

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chen Qiming (“Mr. Chen”), aged 53, was appointed a non-
executive director of the Company on 5 December 2013. Mr. Chen is
a non-executive director of Silver Grant International Industries Limited
(listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 171) and
vice chairman of its board of directors since 15 February 2012. Mr.
Chen served as a non-executive director of CGN New Energy Holdings
Co., Ltd. (“CGN New Energy”) (listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1811) since March 2012. He also served as a
director of CGNPC-URC and CGN Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. (“CGN
Capital”). Mr. Chen joined CGN Group in 1996, and served various
positions including assistant to the head of the Construction Contract
Division of Ling Ao Nuclear Power Co., Ltd., (“Ling Ao Nuclear Power”)
(a subsidiary of CGNPC), head of Commerce Division of CGNPC,
manager of the Contract Procurement Department of Liaoning
Hongyanhe Nuclear Power Co., Ltd., (“Hongyanhe Nuclear Power”)
manager of the Contract and Procurement Department of China
Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd. and the deputy general manager
of the Assets Management Division of CGNPC. He currently serves as
the general manager of the Assets Management Division of CGNPC.
Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor of science in engineering from the East
China University of Metallurgy in 1984 and a master in economics from
the University of International Business and Economics in 2003. Mr.
Chen has over 21 years of experience in the power industry, contract
business and asset management.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Yin Engang (“Mr. Yin”), aged 48, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company on 1 June 2014. Mr. Yin also
serves as a non-executive director of CGN New Energy, a director of
CGNPC-URC, CGN Finance Co., Ltd., CGN Capital, CGNPC Industry
Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.* (P BIZEXIREELEIER
R A ) (“Fund Management Co.,”) and CGN European Energy. Mr. Yin
joined CGN Group since 1996, and has worked in various subsidiaries
of CGN Group subsequently. Between July 1996 and March 1997,
Mr. Yin was an auditor in Ling Ao Nuclear Power. From March 1997
to July 1999, he served as an accounting manager/deputy director of
Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint Venture Company Limited* (&5 1%
BEALAERAR) (“Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint Venture”). From
July 1999 to March 2003, he returned to Ling Ao Nuclear Power as
the director in charge of cost control. In March 2003, Mr. Yin was
promoted to the position of chief accountant. From August 2006
to October 2007, Mr. Yin served as the chief accountant. Between
October 2007 and April 2014, Mr. Yin worked in Fund Management
Co., as the deputy head of the preparatory group, and was promoted
to the chief financial officer in July 2008. Since April 2014, Mr. Yin
holds the position of the general manager of the Finance Department of
CGNPC. Mr. Yin graduated with a master of management engineering
degree from Shanxi School of Mechanics* (PR P E265). Mr. Yin has
over 19 years of extensive experience in financial management and
asset management.

* For identification purpose only
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Qiu Xianhong (“Mr. Qiu”), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 18 August
2011. He is a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC. Mr. Qiu is a
partner of Beijing QQCPA Accounting Firm. Mr. Qiu is also a finance
consultant to China Institute of Strategy and Management. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Qiu was the deputy head of the Financial
Department and Asset Management Department of China National
Packaging Corporation, and the deputy director of the Financial
Department of China Patent Bureau. Mr. Qiu graduated with a bachelor
degree in financial accounting from Jiangxi University of Finance
and Economics. Mr. Qiu has over 28 years of experience in financial
accounting, financial management and auditing.

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Gao Pei Ji (“Mr. Gao”), aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 1 June 2014.
Mr. Gao also serves as an independent non-executive director of CITIC
Resources Holdings Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1205). Mr. Gao was a deputy director of C &
C Law Office in Beijing between 1984 and 1993. Mr. Gao became a
partner of Clifford Chance, a leading international law firm, between
1993 and 2007. Following his retirement in 2007, he became a PRC
legal consultant to Clifford Chance, Hong Kong office. Mr. Gao has
extensive and diversified experience in a broad area of legal practices,
including banking and finance, direct investment (both inbound and
outbound from the perspective of the PRC) in the areas of energy,
natural resource and petrochemical projects. Mr. Gao has been
involved in the development of nuclear power projects since 1985,
including the development of Daya Bay nuclear power project, the
incorporation of the operating company for Daya Bay and Lingao
nuclear power plants and the development of the Taishan nuclear
power project (applying third generation technology). Mr. Gao holds a
LLM degree from the Law School of University of California, Berkeley.
He has been admitted to practice law in the PRC since 1984.
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis (“Mr. Lee”), aged 48, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 1 June
2014. Mr. Lee has been a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1999 and a
Certified Practising Accountant of the CPA Australia since 1996. He
has possessed over 23 years of experience with unlisted groups, listed
groups and professional firms in finance, accounting and auditing. He
is currently an independent non-executive director of Zhong Ao Home
Group Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1538) and Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (listed on the growth
enterprise market of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8238). Mr.
Lee graduated with a bachelor of economics degree from Macquarie
University in Australia in 1992.
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Senior Management’s Profile
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Mr. Cai Yusheng (“Mr. Cai”), aged 48, is the vice president of
the Company. Mr. Cai was appointed as the vice president of the
Company on 5 December 2013. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Cai
has served as the deputy director of the Nuclear Fuel Bureau of China
National Nuclear Corporation, project manager of the International
Division of Taisei Corporation, project manager of the International
Division of Bechtel Group, general manager of Beijing Qing Da Zheng
Yuan Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd* (It 705 A IERBIR LI
1B R A ). He graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor
of engineering degree in engineering management in 1990 and got
a master of engineering degree in civil engineering from University
of Tokyo in 1998. Mr. Cai possesses 26 years of extensive project
management experience and in-depth knowledge in the nuclear fuel
industry.

Ms. Zheng Xiaowei (“Ms. Zheng”), aged 49, is the joint company
secretary and general counsel of the Company. Ms. Zheng was
appointed as the general counsel of the Company on 15 April 2014
and selected as the joint company secretary on 1 June 2014. Prior to
joining the Company, Ms. Zheng has served as the project manager of
the Hong Kong High Technology Development Management Company
Limited* (B8 &R R E R AR A7), investment planning director
of the Development Planning Department of CGNPC, manager of
the Planning and Finance Department, financial representative and
secretary of the Board of Galaxy Captek. Ms Zheng graduated from
Zhejiang University with a bachelor of engineering degree in industrial
automation in 1988 and obtained a master of science degree in
science and technology information from China Defense Science and
Technology Information Center in 1992; Ms. Zheng possesses the
qualification certificate for accounting of the PRC and the Enterprise
Legal Adviser Qualification Certificate of the PRC* (Fp Bl {> 3 A2 EE
#H 2 E18). Ms. Zheng has 19 years of experience in project investment
and financial management, 14 years of experience in corporate
governance and 9 years of experience in management of legal affairs.
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Senior Management’s Profile

Mr. He Fei (“Mr. He”), aged 39, is the president assistant of the
Company. Mr. He was appointed as the president assistant of the
Company on 22 August 2014. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. He
held a position in the Department of International Cooperation MOF
of the State Commission of Science, Technology and Industry for
National Defence, and was then appointed to the French Atomic
Energy Commission; and served successively as the secretary of the
General Manager Department of the General Office, secretary to the
chairman of the Board of the secretariat, senior manager for business
of Beijing Business Unit and director of the Business Liaison Office of
the General Office of CGNPC. Mr. He graduated from the International
Relations College with a Bachelor of Arts degree in English in 2000
and obtained a master of law degree in civil and commercial law from
Renmin University of China in 2009. Mr. He has worked in the nuclear
power industry for an extensive period and developed extensive
understanding of the domestic and international nuclear power
industry, and has rich corporate management experience.

*  For identification purpose only
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

CGN Mining is committed to establishing and fulfilling a good
corporate governance practice and procedure, by ensuring a quality
Board, sound internal control, transparency and accountability to
all shareholders in order to enhance credibility and reputation of the
Company. We firmly believe that good corporate governance practice
can earn the trust of shareholders as well as other stakeholders, and
most importantly, preserve the long-term interests of the shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance policy follows all code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules (the “Listing
Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) for the year ended 31 December 2015
and up to the date of publication of this report, except for the deviation
from the code provisions disclosed below.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that, the independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders.

Except Mr. Yu Zhiping, an executive director and the chief executive
officer, and Mr. Gao Pei Ji, and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung, independent non-
executive directors, other directors were unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 22 May 2015 (the “2015
AGM”) due to other business engagement.

Besides, pursuant to the code provision E.1.2, the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite
the chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other
committees (as appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should
invite another member of the committees (or his duly appointed
delegate, if such member is unable to attend) to attend. These persons
should be available to answer questions at the annual general meeting.

Mr. Zhou Zhenxing, chairman of the Board and non-executive
director was unable to attend the 2015 AGM due to other business
engagement. The 2015 AGM was chaired by Mr. Yu Zhiping who also
answered shareholders’ questions of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE EEERRE

The corporate governance structure of CGN Mining is based upon RERBENDEE R BB URENZRA
the interest of shareholders and comprised of various parties HEE > B NDEERNEHER - 48
involved in corporate governance. It creates a complete corporate BT —ATENTEEREE ke
governance structure, forming comprehensive support, constraint I OREER  RBATRKER
and management, and ensures the normal operation and prompt and EREEMBERRIESH M FERL -
effective risk control of the Company.

As an important part of the corporate governance structure, VEADEEARFENEERE  RE &
shareholders, the Board and special committees of the Board, senior FekEEeEMEEe  SNEEE -
management, internal auditor, employees, external auditor and other NEBZEETED « BT - SMNEEFZEAD & EL A 4R
related parties have different roles. Fulfilment of duties by all parties A EEZTRINER  SHTRENETT
ensures the effective operation of the Company. REBEDENBBUEE -
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standards of securities
transactions for the directors of the Company. All directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiries made by the Company, that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code regarding directors’ securities transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and role

The Board is comprised of 8 directors, including 2 executive directors
(“EDs”), 3 non-executive directors (“NEDs”) and 3 independent non-
executive directors (“INEDs”). The composition of the Board is based
on a comprehensive consideration of the directors’ professional skills,
professional background and qualification. It shows the differentiated
and diverse arrangement of directors. As at the date of this report, the
member of the Board of directors are as follows:

Directors
EDs HITES
Mr. Yu Zhiping REFEE
(Chief Executive Officer) (BEHTE)
Mr. Xing Jianhua FEELE
(appointed on 25 June 2015) (FA2015% 6 A 25 HEZ )
NEDs FHITES
Mr. Zhou Zhenxing (Chairman) RIS A (£ )
Mr. Chen Qiming PR R AR 58 A
Mr. Yin Engang FEEI A
INEDs BYFHTES
Mr. Qiu Xianhong ERSedk e A
Mr. Gao Pei Ji ISR E
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis FRIRE A&
Notes:
C — Chairman of the relevant Board committees
M — Member of the relevant Board committees
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The biographical details of the directors are set out in the section
“Directors’ Profile” of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategy and policy
of the Group and ensures there are sufficient capital and management
resources for the implementation of relevant strategies and the
completeness of the financial and internal control system, and secures
the compliance of business operation with relevant legal requirements.
All members of the Board fulfill their duties and act in the best interest of
the Group and shareholders. Unless otherwise disclosed in this annual
report, to the knowledge of the Company, there was no financial,
business, family and other material/related relationship among
members of the Board.

All directors should comply with Rule 3.08(d) of the Listing Rules at all
times to avoid actual and potential conflict of interest and duties. In
each meeting of the Board and special committees of the Board (the
“Meetings”), directors are required to declare if they have any interest
in the items being considered in the Meetings. If a director or any of
his associates have major interests in the items to be considered, the
director will not be reckoned in the quorum and voting at the meeting.
The director shall not be present during the discussion on related
items.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation once every three
years in accordance with Article 108 of the articles of association of
the Company (“Articles of Association”) and the Corporate Governance
Code.
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The Board complies with Rules 3.10 (1) & (2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules in relation to the appointment of at least three INEDs, which
represents at least one-third of the Board, and one of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise.

In accordance with the requirements of code provision C.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code, the directors have conducted a review
of the overall effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
and concluded that all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management are effective.

Responsibilities of the Board

As the decision authority of the Company, the Board takes charge of
the corporate governance function. The major responsibilities of the
Board include the tasks stated below. The Board may delegate the
responsibilities to other committees as it thinks fit:

(@) to review the Company’s policies, programs and procedures
and make recommendations as necessary from time to time;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices to
ensure compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to oversee the implementation of any code of conduct and/
or business ethics of the Company to ensure the Company’s
compliance with the relevant rules and regulations, including
but not limited to the Listing Rules and the Codes on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Repurchases (“Takeovers Code”);
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to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;

to form any committee(s) or panels, appoint members thereto,
delegate at any time and from time to time to any person
or committee(s) or panel(s), any of its powers and functions
conferred on it, review and approve the reports of the
committee(s) and panel(s), review their performance and revise
their composition and terms of reference as appropriate;

to oversee all matters and to formulate policies in relation
to the Company’s internal control, succession plans,
remuneration and compensation for Directors and employees,
risk management, corporate governance and corporate social
responsibility, and to supervise the Company’s management to
implement such policies;

investigate any significant instances of non-compliance or
potential non-compliance of the Company; and

to do any such things to enable the Board to discharge its
obligations and responsibilities.

Major work performed by the Board as regards the corporate

governance function during the year ended 31 December 2015

includes:

reviewing and approving the “Information Disclosure Policy”;

reviewing and approving the organization adjustment plan, to
enforce internal control;

reviewing and approving significant matters such as major
transactions and/or connected transactions;

reviewing the Directors’ compliance with the Model Code; and

reviewing and confirming the independence of INEDs.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All directors, including the chairman and the chief executive officer,
are required to retire from office by rotation once every three years
and are subject to re-election by shareholders at the annual general
meeting (the “AGM”) in accordance with the Articles of Association and
the Corporate Governance Code. The Articles of Association provides
details in relation to the procedures of election and appointment of the
directors.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any further re-appointment
of an INED who has served the Board for more than 9 years will be
subject to separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.

Besides, pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, directors
appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next
general meeting after their appointment, and shall be subject to re-
election by shareholders.

All directors will sign director service contract with the Company
immediately after their appointment for a term of 2 years subject to
retirement and re-election of at least once every three years. The
contract sets out the details of the duties and obligations of directors.
All directors understand they have joint responsibility towards all
shareholders in terms of the operation, business and development of
the Company. They are required to fulfill directors’ duties according
to the director service contract and relevant laws and regulations. Al
directors confirm that they provide sufficient time and effort in company
affairs, express their views cautiously and diligently and fulfill their
directors’ duties.

Directors’ Interests

As recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”), none of the directors held any shares of
the Company or related companies as at 31 December 2015.
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Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional Development

Newly appointed directors will receive an introduction package related
to the laws in relation to directors of a listed company and their duties,
which covers the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5, directors should participate in
continuous professional development training to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company encourages all directors to
participate in continuous professional development to ensure better
fulfillment of directors’ duties and contribution to the Company’s
development. During the reporting period, all directors participated in
continuous professional development by attending internal training,
seminar or forum. Furthermore, attending training seminars or reading
materials is also beneficial to continuous professional development.

In 2015, a summary of training taken by the directors of the Company
is set out as follows:

Directors 2=

EDs BiTES

Yu Zhiping REF

Xing Jianhua EfErc

NEDs FHITES
Zhou Zhenxing (Chairman) RS ()
Chen Qiming BR R B

Yin Engang F B
INEDs BYFHITES
Qiu Xianhong EB St

Gao Pei Ji SiEE

Lee Kwok Tung Louis ZER

Notes:

a: Attending training seminar — On 21 October 2015, the Company
organized a special training for Directors on the situation and challenges
of the nuclear fuel industry.

b: Reading training materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the

directors’ duties and obligations.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer should be
separated. During the reporting period, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company were held by Mr. Zhou Zhenxing and
Mr. Yu Zhiping, respectively. The chairman is responsible for ensuring
that the Board is functioning properly, with good corporate governance
practices and procedures, whereas the chief executive officer,
supported by the EDs and the management team, is responsible for
managing the Group’s businesses, including the implementation of
major strategies and measures adopted by the Board.

NEDS

NEDs of the Company, including INEDs, are experienced individuals
from different industries and backgrounds. At least one of them
possesses the appropriate accounting qualifications and related
financial management expertise as required by the Listing Rules.
Based on the expertise and experience of each of the director, the
directors provide independent judgment and advice on the Company’s
management. The number of NEDs representing more than half of
the Board members, which helps the Company to make objective
and independent judgment and decision. The advice of NEDs shall be
considered as major advice, in case where the conflicts of interest of
related matters arises.

Each INED has made an annual confirmation of independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the
view that, all INEDs meet the independent guidelines as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and that they are independent.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zheng Xiaowei (“Ms. Zheng”) has been appointed as joint
company secretary since 1 June 2014. Besides, in accordance with
the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company appointed Ms. Lai
Siu Kuen (“Ms. Lai”) of KCS Hong Kong Limited, as the joint company
secretary, to assist the work of Ms. Zheng. The role of the company
secretary is to support the chairman of the Board, the Board and
relevant committees, to ensure smooth communications and timely
transmission of information. At the same time, the company secretary
plays an important role such as to ensure the Board meetings
are convened in accordance with laws and regulations, and the
Board’s decisions are executed correctly. The company secretary
is an important communication bridge between the Company and
shareholders, it also assists the Board to perform the responsibility to
shareholders in accordance with the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Zheng and
Ms. Lai have received no less than 15 hours professional training for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

BOARD PROCESS AND ATTENDANCE OF
MEETINGS

There are at least 4 Board meetings held every year, and a special
Board meeting is convened when necessary. In addition to acting
by written resolutions, directors participated in the meetings either in
person, by proxy or through electronic means of communications.
Board members have full access to the business development of the
Company at the meetings at regular interval.

At least 14 days’ notices of all regular Board meetings were given to
all directors, who were given an opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for discussion. The finalised agenda and accompanying board
papers were sent to all directors at least 3 days prior to the meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there were altogether seven
(7) Board meetings held by the Company. The attendance of each
director at the Board meeting and relevant committee meetings are as
follows:
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Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held
HERY/ ERETRY

*

Zhou Zhenxing
B

Yu Zhiping
RET

He Zuyuan (resigned
on 25 June 2015)

BT (R 201556 A 25 BEHT)

Xing Jianhua (appointed
on 25 June 2015)

ERE(R20155
6425 BEZT)

Chen Qiming
BREEA

Yin Engang
FER

Huang Jianming (resigned
on 3 November 2015)
AN 20155
11 A3BEHT)

Qiu Xianhong
P

Gao Pei Ji

Sl

Lee Kwok Tung Louis

ZER

Board Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Position Meeting Committee Committee Committee

By Ezg BRZER ¥MzE8 REZER

Chairman of the Board and INED and chairman a1 2/2
of the Nomination Committee

ESOIRRANIES REEBCIR

ED and member of the Nomination Committee 57 11 2/2
and Remuneration Committee

PEE  RARESZRE  FHZELZE

ED and member of the Remuneration Committee 3/3 11

BIEE HFWRESZE

ED and member of the Remuneration Committee 4/4

YEE FWRESZE

NED a1

FHTES

NED and member of the Audit Committee 57 212

FHTES  FREESZE

NED 0/4

FHTES

INED, chairman of the Audit Committee, chairman 6/7 212 11 2/2
of the Remuneration Committee and member of the
Nomination Committee

BUENES  BRZRETR  FUMRESERR
RYZESZE

INED, member of the Remuneration Committee 7 11 2/2
and the Nomination Committee

BUSENTES  SMZBeZEREERE8%E

INED, member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration 7/7 212 11 2/2

Committee and the Nomination Committee
BUENES  EZEEZE HHZRESZER
REZEEZE

Mr. Huang Jianming attended every meeting by proxy.
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Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder
or a director arise, the matter would be considered and approved in a
physical meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Other directors and INEDs with no conflict of interest would be present
at meetings dealing with such conflict.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of potential legal action against directors.

DELEGATION AND WORK DONE BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership and oversees the Group’s business
management, strategic decisions, performance and affairs.

The Board has formulated a clear written policy that delineates matters
reserved for Board approval of the Group. The reserved matters
include, among other things:

1. the development strategy and planning;

2. corporate policies;

3. financial planning;

4, investment planning;

5. annual budget;

6. major disposals and acquisitions;

7. major connected transactions;

8. appointment and resignation of directors, company secretary

and other senior management;

9. other significant operational and financial matters.
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In addition to work relating to corporate governance function, other
major work performed by the Board during the year ended 31
December 2015 include:

1. approving the 2015 business plan and budget planning;

2. approving the directors’ report, audited financial statements
and auditor’s report for the year ended 31 December 2014;

3. approving the unaudited interim results for the period ended 30
June 2015;

4. considering the non-payment of dividend for the year ended
31 December 2014 and for the period ended 30 June 2015
respectively;

5. proposing the re-election of directors and the authority of the
Board to fix the remuneration of the directors to be approved at
the 2015 AGM;

0. proposing the share issue and repurchase general mandate to
be approved at the 2015 AGM,;

7. proposing the re-appointment of SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited as the auditors of the Company and the authority of the
Board to fix the auditors’ remuneration to be approved at the

2015 AGM,;

8. approving the establishment of England wholly-owned
subsidiary;

9, approving the signing of “the Agreement on Commercial Terms

in relation to the Design and Construction of a Fuel Assembly
Fabrication Plant in Kazakhstan and the Joint Development of
Kazakhstan Uranium Deposits”;
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10. approving the entering into “Investment Letter of Intent” in
respect of the acquisition of 19.99% equity interest in Fission
and related matters; and

11.  approving the resignation of Mr. He Zuyuan as an executive
director and a member of the Remuneration Committee, and
the appointment of Mr. Xing Jianhua as an executive director
and a member of the Remuneration Committee.

The day-to-day operation and management of the Group is delegated
to the senior management. Certain authorities are also granted to
relevant committee, the granted authorities and responsibilities are
reviewed by the Board from time to time.

BOARD COMMITTEES

There are three committees under the Board of the Company, which
are audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), respectively, with its terms of reference
established. Each specific committee performs on specific area,
provides comments and recommendations to the Board for
consideration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company is delegated by the Board to
exercise its specific rights within the ambit of the terms of reference.

During the reporting period, the Audit Committee comprised one
NED, namely Mr. Yin Engang, and 2 INEDs, namely Mr. Qiu Xianhong
(Chairman) and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis.

The function of the Audit Committee is basically to assist the Board in
providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of
the Group, and oversee the audit process. The Audit Committee
also serves as a focal point for communication, among directors, the
external auditors, and the management as regards financial reporting,
internal control and the auditing.
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Major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 December 2015 includes:

1. assessing the independence and objectivity of external
auditors;
2. reviewing the internal control and risk management systems of

the Company;

3. reviewing the audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2014; and

4, reviewing the unaudited interim results for the period ended 30
June 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board had no
disagreement with the Audit Committee’s view on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is delegated by the Board to exercise its
specific rights within the ambit of the terms of reference.

During the period between 1 January 2015 and 25 June 2015, the
Remuneration Committee comprised three INEDs, namely, Mr. Qiu
Xianhong (chairman), Mr. Gao Pei Ji and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis, and
two EDs, namely Mr. Yu Zhiping and Mr. He Zuyuan. During the period
between 26 June 2015 and 31 December 2015, the Remuneration
Committee comprised three INEDs, namely Mr. Qiu Xianhong
(Chairman), Mr. Gao Pei Ji and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis, and two EDs,
namely Mr. Yu Zhiping and Mr. Xing Jianhua.
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Corporate Governance Report

The function of the Remuneration Committee is basically to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
of all remuneration of EDs, NEDs and senior management and review
the remuneration packages of the EDs and senior management with
reference to the corporate goals and objectives.

Major work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2015 includes:

1. reviewing the management’s remuneration packages for the
year 2015, with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives of the Company; and

2. making recommendations to the Board as to the remuneration
packages of individual NEDs and senior management for the
year 2015.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior management
(excluding the directors) by band for the year ended 31 December
2015 is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)

FEEEE (GE8T)
0-1,000,000
Details of the remuneration of the directors and the 5 highest paid

individuals are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board to exercise its
specific rights within the ambit of terms of reference.

During the reporting period, the Nomination Committee comprised one
NED, namely Mr. Zhou Zhenxing (chairman), one ED, namely Mr. Yu
Zhiping and three INEDs, namely Mr. Qiu Xianhang, Mr. Gao Pei Ji and
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis.

The function of the Nomination Committee is basically to review and
formulate the nomination procedure as regards the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of directors; review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and make recommendations or
any proposed changes to the Board to implement the corporate
strategy; and make recommendation to the Board on candidates for
appointment as directors. The Nomination Committee follows rigorous
selection procedure in choosing the right person as a member of the
Board. Various criteria such as appropriate professional knowledge,
experience, skills and possible contribution of the candidate will be
considered.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, major work performed by the
Nomination Committee includes:

1. reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. reviewing the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
and their effectiveness in the discharge of their duties and
considering the need for any changes;

8, making recommendations to the Board as to nomination of
directors for re-election at the 2015 AGM;
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Corporate Governance Report

4, making recommendations to the Board as to the change of the
Board and Board committee members;

5. making recommendations to the Board as to the re-designation
of directors; and

6. assessing the independence of INEDs.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy. The Company
recognises the merits of Board diversity and sees the edge of
Board diversity in driving competitiveness. In making up the Board’s
composition, the Board considers various skills, regional and industry
experience, background, gender and other attributes of the Board
members. All Board appointments are based on the talent, skill and
experience of the individual, as well as gender diversity, so as to suit
the operational needs.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an effective internal
control system and for reviewing its effectiveness, to safeguard the
Group’s assets and shareholders’ interest. The management of
the Company at each level assesses and reports on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the internal control system by performing
reviews and testing. Internal control department reports to the Audit
Committee once a year on key findings regarding internal controls.
Audit Committee, in turn, communicates any material issues regarding
internal control system to the Board.

At the and of 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee conducted
a review on the effectiveness of the internal control systems, and no
serious deficiencies were identified. Therefore, the Board considered
that the internal control system of the Group is effective, and complied
with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards have been
adopted, appropriate accounting policies have been used and applied
consistently, and reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates
have been made. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

The Company’s auditor, Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
acknowledged its reporting responsibilities pursuant to the Corporate
Governance Code. The auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration paid by the
Company to the auditor, Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, is set
out as follows:

FriR B0 AR %

EZIRA
FREZIRIS

Services rendered

Audit services
Non-audit services

The significant amount of fee incurred for non-audit services arose from
i) reviewing financial results of subsidiaries for agreed periods of 2015;
ii) the review of interim financial statements for six months ended 30
June 2015; and iii) the preparation of cash flow projections comfort
letter, proforma financial information and letter of indebtedness for the
purpose of the circular dated 7 March 2016 issued in connection with
the major transaction in relation to the acquisition of 19.99% equity
interest in Fission.
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SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETING

In order to ensure that all shareholders of the Company enjoy equal
status and effective exercise of their own rights, the Company
convenes shareholders’ general meetings every year in accordance
with the Articles of Association. During the year 2015, one (1)
shareholders’ general meeting was held, namely the annual general
meeting held on 22 May 2015. The attendance of each director at the
annual general meeting is set out as follows:

TEERBME

BRERMBRAE

RRBEARARMBERREZE FEMALE
RIMITIE B & RN - AR BIRIBEEIZA
RAIMRESFRBFARRAE - 2015F AR
RIHBIT—(1)ARRAE - B2015F5A
22 HBRTHRRAFAE - FESHFER
RRFASBERAT

Number of meetings attended/

Number of meetings held

HERE, ERETRE
Zhou Zhenxing JE i L 0/1
Yu Zhiping RET 11
He Zuyuan {a[#8 7T 01
(resigned on 25 June 2015) (20154 6 B 25 HEHE)
Xing Jianhua* EEEE 0/1
(appointed on 25 June 2015) (FR20154F 6 A 25 HEZRT)
Chen Qiming [ B BR 0/1
Yin Engang FE M 0N
Huang Jianming =28 0/1
(resigned on 3 November 2015) (2015411 A3 BET)
Qiu Xianhong B St 0/1
Gao Pei Ji S E 1/1
Lee Kwok Tung Louis Z=E R 11
* Mr. Xing Jianhua attended the 2015 AGM in the role of Chief Financial FREFEVUERVBEZNSN0155F
Officer. BREBFAE
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association, on the requisition
of one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company having the right to vote at general meetings, the
directors are obliged to proceed to convene an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company (“EGM”).

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the directors or the
secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM and deposited at
the registered office of the Company in Cayman Islands and/or the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong. The
requisitionists must state the purposes of the meeting and sign the
requisition letter.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed to convene a meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene a meeting, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the directors
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
may be made in writing and sent to the attention of the joint company
secretary, Ms. Zheng Xiaowei, in one of the following ways:

1. By post: CGN Mining Company Limited
Rm 19083, 19/F., China Resources Building
No. 26 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

2. By facsimile: (852) 2116 4031

8, By email: ir.cgnmc@cgnmc.com.cn

O2 CGN Mining Company Limited » F EZEEER A 7

B SRR
ERBWRFEEAEHER

RBERRIEZAAIE 64 IGERTE - R
ZRER HAETIRBERNERAE L
BRENARBFRBA D Z—H—FK
ZRNBRRELESR - ERAEHAR
AMEREFRIAE (REFRIAE]) -

SZEBRARBRERRENERANE
EPARESHIATWEEL - WKER
RAPRAESRENEMREERER ALK
BENETELEME - BHBROALA
HERNHPFHAFAE B OREE -

WEEREENEEE AR 21BEAE
Fg® ZREAFgENATRIEITEH
ZAg WHRAREAERBHEHEMA
A EEEREBRZSEMELNAT
BERER -

BESSRHEANET

BRAERAEZGRLEH - MEEWAA
NEEPREL - WA TFEA—ESR
ZREMFE A RME BB AR

1. Wi - REREERRAT
BABTBEE 265
FERARE191E
1903 =

: (852) 2116 4031

©ir.cgnmec@cgnpc.com.cn




Corporate Governance Report

Voting by poll

Pursuant to rule 13.39 of the Listing Rules and article 72 of the Articles
of Association, any votes of the shareholders at a general meeting
must be taken by poll, except where the chairman decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter
to be voted by a show of hands.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at a general
meeting shall follow the procedures below:

On the requisition in writing of either: i) any number of shareholder of
the Company representing not less than one-fortieth of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or ii) not
less than 50 shareholders, the Company shall, at the expense of the
requisitionists:

a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may properly be
proposed and is intended to be proposed at that meeting;

b) circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited
at the registered office of the Company in Cayman Islands and/or
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the
attention of the joint company secretary not less than 6 weeks before
the general meeting, and in case of a requisition requires notice of a
resolution, not less than 1 week before the general meeting for any
other requisition.

Change in Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there is no significant
change in constitutional documents of the Company.
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Directors’ Report

EXEHRE

The Board is pleased to present the Directors’ Report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company and engaged in
trading of natural uranium. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
trading of natural uranium, property investment and other investment.
An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year is set out in note
8 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

The head office and principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong is located at Rm 19083, 19/F, China Resources Building,
No. 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

EARNINGS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The earnings of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
82 of the annual report.

Since the Group intends to retain sufficient capital for business
development, the Board would not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 December

2015, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period (2014: Nil).
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RESULTS

Results performance for the year 2015 and the analysis on the
influencing factors are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015, description of principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the financial year, a discussion on the
Group’s future development, an analysis of the Group’s performance
during using financial key performance indicators, discussions on the
Group’s environmental policies, relationships with its key stakeholders
and compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the Group are provided in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out on
pages 86 and 87 of the annual report.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS, PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE
RIGHT

Details of the movements in intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and prepaid lease payments on land
use rights of the Group are set out in notes 18, 19, 20 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note
41 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

At present, convertible bonds of the Company in an aggregate amount
of HK$300,000,000 remain outstanding, such part of convertible
bonds of the Company can be converted into 1,304,347,826 shares
at an initial convertible price of HK$0.23 per share. Details of the
convertible bonds are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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EXEHRE

DIRECTORS

Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

EDs

Mr. Yu Zhiping (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. He Zuyuan (resigned on 25 June 2015 due to his intention to
develop other business)

Mr. Xing Jianhua (appointed on 25 June 2015)

NEDs

Mr. Zhou Zhenxing (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Qiming

Mr. Yin Engang

Mr. Huang Jianming (resigned on 3 November 2015 due to his
intention to develop other business)

INEDs

Mr. Qiu Xianhong

Mr. Gao Pei Ji

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles of Association, any
director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting
but shall not be taken into account in determining the directors or
the number of directors who are to retire by rotation at such general
meeting. On 25 June 2015, Mr. Xing Jianhua was appointed as an ED.
He is eligible and, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Zhou
Zhenxing, Mr. Yu Zhiping and Mr. Chen Qiming will retire from office
by rotation as directors at the forthcoming AGM of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

There is no service contract, which is not terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation), in respect of all directors who propose and offer for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS,
TRANSACTIONS AND ARRANGEMENT

No contract, transactions and arrangement of significance to which
the Company, any of its holding companies, or any of their subsidiaries
was a party, in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage for the directors
and senior management.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 34 to 39.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2015
amounted to approximately HK$409 million.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

None of the Company and its subsidiaries redeemed any of its shares
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended
31 December 2015.
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EXEHRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23 July 20083 (the
“2003 Share Option Scheme”). The Company has adopted a share
option scheme (the “2010 Share Option Scheme”) at the AGM of the
Company held on 2 June 2010 and terminated the 2003 Share Option
Scheme at the same meeting.

After the adoption of the 2010 Share Option Scheme, no share option
was granted.

The 2010 Share Option Scheme

The following disclosure is a summary of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme as required by Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

(1) Purpose:

The purpose of the 2010 Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as defined
below) as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Company and/or any of the subsidiaries.

(2)  Participants:

The Eligible Participants of the 2010 Share Option Scheme to
whom option(s) may be granted by the Board shall include any
employees, NEDs, directors, suppliers, customers, advisors,
consultants, joint venture partners and any shareholders of any
members of the Group or any invested entities or any holders
of any securities issued by any members of the Group or any
invested entities.
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Total number of shares available for issue under the 2010 Share
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital at the
date of approval of the share option scheme:

The number of shares which can be issued is 155,105,699
shares representing approximately 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of approval of the 2010 Share
Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlerment of each participant:

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
Eligible Participant in any 12-month period must not exceed
one percent (1%) of the then total issued share capital of the
Company.

The periods within which the shares must be taken up under an
option:

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part and in
accordance with the terms of the 2010 Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period to be determined and notified by
the Directors to each grantee, which period may commence on
the day on which the offer for the grant of options is made but
shall end in any event not later than ten (10) years commencing
from the date the Board makes an offer of the grant of an option
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised:

Unless the Directors otherwise determine and state in the offer
of the grant of options to an Eligible Participant, there is no
minimum period for which an option granted under the 2010
Share Option Scheme must be held before it can be exercised.

3

(4)

®)

©)
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The amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments of calls must or may be
made or loans for such purpose must be paid:

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible
Participant within twenty-eight (28) days from the date of the offer
of grant of the option. A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

Subject to the adjustment made in accordance with the terms
of the 2010 Share Option Scheme, the exercise price in respect
of any particular option shall be such price as determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion at the time of making the
offer of grant of an option (which shall be stated in the letter
containing the offer of grant of an option) but in any case the
exercise price must be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which must be a trading
day; (i) the average closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five (5) business days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (i) the
nominal value of the shares.

The remaining life:

The 2010 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on 2 June 2010 and has a remaining
life of approximately 4 years and 3 months as at the date of this
report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in notes 3 and 16

to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPANY WEBSITE

Www.cgnmc.com
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(a)

(b)

The directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company had any interest and short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ interest and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2015, according to the register of
substantial shareholders kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO and so far as is known to, or can
be ascertained after reasonable enquiry by the directors,
the following persons/entities, other than a director or chief
executive of the Company, had an interest or short position
in the shares and underlying shares and debentures of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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Name of shareholder

RREM®

China Uranium (Notes 3 & 4)
B shE (FE3 R 4)

CGNPC - URC (Notes 18:3)
FEGZEBERR (1K)
CGNPC (Notes 2 & 3)

FEZEEAR (2 K3)

Silver Grant International Industries
Limited (Note 4)

REEREEERAA ([RE2ER])
GETY

72  CGN Mining Company Limited o f1 &% % AR A 7

Company/
Name of

Group member
A7/ %8
BEARAR

Company
NS

Company

el

A

Company

>
o

Company

>
=

Capacity
&4

Beneficial owner
ExnBEBA

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REEERR

Interest in a controlled
corporation
RELERER

Beneficial owner

EEHAA

Number of
shares

(Note 3)

RAEA
UEE);
4,503,695,652 (L)
550,354,609 (S)

4,503,695,652 (1)
550,354,609 (9)

4,503,695,652 (L)
550,354,609 (9)

550,354,609 (L)

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
REHAED L
97.13% (L)
11.87% (S)

97.13% (U
11.87% (9)

97.13% (1)
11.87% (9)

11.87% (1)




Notes:

CGNPC-URC holds 100% of the issued share capital of China
Uranium. Therefore, CGNPC-URC is deemed to be interested
in 4,508,695,652 Shares by virtue of its shareholding of China
Uranium.

CGNPC holds 100% of the equity interests of CGNPC-URC.
Therefore, it is deemed to be interested in the interest held by
CGNPC-URC.

The long position represents (i) the 2,974,347,826 Shares
held by China Uranium (ji) the interests in the 1,304,347,862
Shares to be allotted and issued upon the full exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the convertible bonds in the
principle amount of HK$300,000,000 at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.23 issued by the Company on 18 August 2011
(the “Convertible Bonds”), and (iii) the 225,000,000 outstanding
charged shares (pursuant to the share charge dated 1 April
2011, Perfect Develop Inc. (established by the directors of the
preceding controlling shareholders of the Company) charged
450,000,000 shares in favor of China Uranium among which,
225,000,000 charged shares were released on 18 February
2014. The remaining 225,000,000 charged shares will
continue to be charged in favour of China Uranium).

China Uranium and Silver Grant International Industrial
Limited (“Silver Grant”) entered into a subscription agreement
dated 23 March 2012 (the “Subscription Agreement”).
Upon completion of the Subscription Agreement on 1 June
2012, China Uranium had issued and Silver Grant had
subscribed for an exchangeable bond in the principal amount
of HK$776,000,000 (the “Exchangeable Bond”), pursuant
to which Silver Grant can exercise the exchange right (the
“Exchange Right”) at the exchange price of HK$1.41 (subject
to adjustment) to request China Uranium to transfer to it the
shares of the Company held by China Uranium. Assuming that
Silver Grant fully exercise the Exchange Right, China Uranium
will transfer an aggregate of 550,354,609 Shares (representing
approximately 16.51% of the then existing share capital of the
Company) to Silver Grant.

The letter “L” denotes the person’s/entity’s long position in
the shares. The letter “S” denotes the person’s/entity’s short
position in the shares.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
person as at 31 December 2015 who had an interest or short

positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
was the Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries,
or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to
subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company entered into the following continuing connected
transactions with the connected person (as defined in the Listing
Rules), and transactions have been conducted in accordance with the
agreed terms. The execution of the continuing connected transactions

for the year 2015 were as follows:

BEAQTRRZWER

BRAFRAPTREESID - NEFREEAR
A - ARAE - HEEIERA RSB A
B~ SEAERI R R B R R RT LA
2 MEARRRIEFHESITRARS
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T

Name of Transaction Connected Nature of Annual Cap/
agreement, date parties of transaction transaction Actual
and existing terms the Group parties and description Pricing basis Transaction Amount
fEsE - A8 FELR/
RARER BERZHA RALERER ERER ERRAEE

1. “Framework Agreement The Company 12015, The sale of The price per pound of natural HK$3,463,200,000/
in relation to the sale of CGNPC-URC natural uranium uranium shall be determined with HK$700,391,000
natural uranium to entered into to CGNPC-URC reference o the one-month,

CGNPC-URC” supplemental and its subsiolary three-month, six-month,

Date: Entered agreement, by the Group twelve-month arithmetic average
into on which included prices of both the spot price index
15 October 2013 with CGNPC-URC and long-term price index published
contract terms and its wholly-owned weekly or monthly by the UxC and
covered the period from subsicliary China Uranium. TradeTech and the rational price

9 December 2013 to China Uranium s the controling expectation of both parties.

31 December 2016. shareholder of the Company.

1. (FBRPEGSEER  AOF hERHRER AERLERNSE  RRUEBEREZZUCK 3,463,200000 7,/
BERMMMERTE) R25FTURR THREGHERE  TedeTech BAREATIRNEE 700,391,000 %7C
R 013510158 REEREYEE RETBA? EREERRBERERMER
- HIRCY Ok ERRAZENELA 38R 6 EAR 12 EAMENTY
018512A90Z hES - PENER ERIRETRBNABERER
0165127317 - ALRFERER -
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Name of Transaction Connected

agreement, date parties of transaction

and existing terms the Group parties

LR A%

REEHR &% BERZHA
“Framework Agreement The Company ~ CGNPC Huasheng

in relation to the financial CGNPG Huasheng is a
senvices of CGNPC Huasheng™ wholly-owned subsidlary of
Date; Entered into on CGGN Group, the utimate
22 January 2014 controller of China Uranium
with contract terms

covered the period from

1 January 2014 to

31 December 2016.

(FRERERERNME AL hEGER
RHEREE) hRGER AT RNE
BE: R0UE1 A28 SHEH AR EREEN
&l aNERE 2EMBLA
N4FIA1EZ

165124318

Nature of
transaction

and description

RAMERER

The Group may

place deposits into
CGNPC Huasheng and
CGNPC Huasheng
shall pay interests

on such deposts.

KEETRR
IpERER
RENER
INHBEHINE «
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Annual Cap/

Pricing basis Maximum Balance
EELR/

EEEH BAGRE
The interest payable by CGNPC Huasheng  USD178,000,000/
to the Group shall be calculated USD172,812,000

with referencing to the deposits

interest rate as announced by other
independent commercial banks in

Hong Kong from time to time but at

any time such interest rate shall be

(1) equal to or higher than the relevant
interest rate offered by CGNPC Huasheng
to other members of the CGN Group
(other than members of the Group)

in similar arrangement; and (i) equal

to or higher than the deposits interest

rafe as announced by other independent
commercial banks in Hong Kong from
time to time in similar arrangement.

The payment terms of the interest shall

be determined between the Group and
CGGNPG Huasheng upon making deposits.
REFESENTEE/ASRSEEE 178000000%T/
EBUBREATBHREANETIA  172812000%7
HE  HAREARNEA) SRS
R ERERARRRH AR R
DAETEM TEAR (AEEETHE
AR ReEENE  Ro)FR
IRNEREEUEERTERR
REPTEPAESAE « 1.2 ERRR
i ERARER R EEER «
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Annual review of continuing connected transactions

The INEDs of the Company have reviewed and confirmed the
continuing connected transactions set out above are:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
2. on normal commercial terms or better; and
3. entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement

governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The external auditor of the Company has also reviewed these
continuing connected transactions and confirmed to the Board that
these transactions:

1. have been approved by the Board;

2. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing the transactions;

3. are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group (if
the transactions involve provision of goods or services by the
Group); and

4. have not exceeded the relevant annual caps disclosed in

previous announcements.

The Board acknowledged receipt of the auditors’ confirmation letter
dated 30 March 2016 which confirms the matters as required by rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Related party transactions set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 constitute
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Major transaction of acquisition of 100% equity interest in
Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium

On 16 May 2014, a share purchase agreement was entered into between
the Company (as purchaser) and CGNPC-URC (as seller), pursuant
to which CGNPC-URC conditionally agreed to sell and the Company
conditionally agreed to purchase the equity (representing the entire
registered capital of Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium) at the purchase price
of US$133 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,030.90 million). The
transaction was completed on 15 April 2015. Since then, Semizbay-U is
not a connected person of the Company, the natural uranium trading with
Semizbay-U no longer constitutes connected transaction.

Acquisition of 19.99% equity interest in Fission in Canada

On 21 December 2015, the Company entered into a letter of intent
in respect of the acquisition of 19.99% equity interest in Fission in
Canada. Pursuant to the share subscription agreement in the letter of
intent, CGN Mining shall subscribe for 96,736,540 common shares
of Fission, plus an additional number of common shares at a price of
CDN$0.85 per share, for a total consideration which is equal to the
product of CDN$0.85 multiplied by the number of the equity. Pursuant
to Rule 14.06(3) of the Listing Rules, the transaction constitutes a major
transaction of the Company.

OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS

Disposal of the entire equity interest in Yugofoil Group

On 25 March 2015, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Bright Future, the Company sold the entire equity
interest in Yugofoil Group to Bright Future, for a total consideration of
HK$101,250,000. Since then, the Company completed its business
transformation, and would focus on the investment and trading of
natural uranium resources business.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Completion of acquisition of 19.99% equity interest in Fission in
Canada

On 11 January 2016, the Company and Fission (a Canadian Company)
entered into a share subscription agreement, which to subscribe for
19.99% equity interest in Fission at a price of CDN$0.85 per share.
The acquisition was completed on 27 January 2016. Following the
completion of acquisition, the Company becomes the single largest
shareholder of Fission. Fission will not become a subsidiary of the
Company and its financial statements will not be consolidated into
those of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable to the Company’s
major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier: 93%
— five largest suppliers: 96%

Sales
— the largest customer: 95%
— five largest customers: 98%

The controlling shareholder China Uranium is the largest customer
of the Company and is a connected person of the Company. Mr. Yu
Zhiping, an ED and the chief executive officer of the Company, Mr.
Xing Jianhua, an ED and the chief financial officer of the Company,
Mr. Zhou Zhenxing, a NED and chairman of the Company, Mr. Chen
Qiming, a NED and Mr. Yin Engang, a NED are all the directors and/or
the senior management of CGNPC-URC at different times throughout
2015. Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates
or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company (as service
customer) and CGNPC-URC (as service provider) entered into “Shared
Administrative Services Agreement” for providing shared administrative
services to the Company by CGNPC-URC.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In 2015, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had an interest in a business which causes or may cause any
significant competition with the business of the Group and any other
conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have with the
Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has not entered
into any equity-linked agreement.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not made any charitable donations.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the directors of the Company, at least 25%
of the Company’s issued share capital were held by members of the
public as at the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this report
as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 have been audited by Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board
Zhou Zhenxing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016

Directors’ Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A2 AR &

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

faikPAa

Shinewing

TO THE MEMBERS OF CGN MINING COMPANY LIMITED
FRZERAMRATF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CGN Mining
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 213, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

CGN Mining Company Limited ® F EZEEER A A
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P0O5591

Hong Kong
30 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEakEtEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015%12 431 B ILFE

2015 2014
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT THAT
(RESEE)]
(E5)
Continuing operations RHEREER
Revenue [ 8 703,422 1,151,707
Cost of sales SHE R (420,579) (975,750)
Gross profit EF 282,843 175,957
Other operating income H il A 8 17,416 24,866
Administrative expenses THFAX (31,390) (33,804)
Changes in fair value of investment properties BBME N EE 20 1,044 164
Share of results of a joint venture Eit—HaELEREE 5,360 (54,134)
Finance costs BE R AN 10 (21,990) (28,802)
Profit before taxation BR 7 AR A 253,283 84,247
Income tax expense PrEHi i 11 (49,920) (22,462)
Profit for the year from continuing operations FEEBFE N R 13 203,363 61,785
Discontinued operation B
Profit (loss) for the year from BN EBER
discontinued operation w A (E18) 12 94,640 (103,660)
Profit (loss) for the year FREH (E518) 298,003 (41,875)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable RARIEEANELEER
to owners of the Company: S (Ea)
— from continuing operations — R E TR 203,363 61,785
— from discontinued operation — IR BT 94,618 (103,491)
207,981 (41,706)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable R G A
to non-controlling interests: Al (&E) :
— from continuing operations — MBI ST = -
— from discontinued operation — R IEF B ER 22 (169)
22 (169)
298,003 (41,875)
Earnings (loss) per share FREAF (EE) 15
From continuing and discontinued operations e E I RIERHE I 75
Basic =N HK7.36 cents HK(1.25) cents
7.36 81l (1.25) #41l
Diluted g HK5.39 cents N/A
5.39 7Bl NER
From continuing operations eI %7
Basic AR HK5.02 cents HK1.85 cents
5.02 &4l 1.85 7811l
Diluted e HK3.79 cents HK1.52 cents
3.79 38l 1.52 741l
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBEakEtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE2015%12 431 B ILE[E

2015 2014
2015% 20146
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT
(Restated)
(f=5)
Profit (loss) for the year NEE A (E518) 298,003 (41,875)
Other comprehensive expenses: Hih2mAx :
Items that may be subsequently A Al EE
reclassified to profit or loss: BB L -
Exchange differences on translation of BEEAREEZ
financial statements of subsidiaries EHER (5,412) (1,162)
Exchange differences on translation of HmE—ReEhHE
financial statements of a joint venture S RRAER 2R (100,139) (50,843)
Reclassification adjustment for YA T EH B AR M
the cumulative exchange difference ZERERE
included in profit or loss upon ROJE A =R R
disposal of subsidiaries 5] (81,270) -
Other comprehensive expense for the year ~ AFEE {2 mEAX (186,821) (52,005)
Total comprehensive income AEEEERE
(expense) for the year (A%) Bz 111,182 (93,880)
Total comprehensive income (expense) THATEIGEARFEZE
for the year attributable to: Was (B ) 458 -
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIL7 ¥ =N 111,149 (98,723)
Non-controlling interests R 33 (157)
111,182 (93,880)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

As at 31 December 2015 HZ2015F 12 31 H ILFE

31 December 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
20155 20144 20144
12A31H 12H31H 1HA1H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THT
(RESEE)] (RESEE)]
(fe=51) (fe=51)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Intangible assets EREAE 18 - 149 212
Property, plant and equipment Y - B K& 19 20,339 41,967 45,582
Investment properties BEME 20 28,778 117,637 121,135
Prepaid lease payments on land + i TR N R E A
use rights 21 - 18,860 19,265
Interest in a joint venture R—BaErE Bx 22 138,272 233,051 338,028
Goodwill EES 23 - - -
187,389 411,664 524,222
Current assets RBEE
Inventories e 24 - 32,536 21,590
Loan receivable from a shareholder Bl —ZREHNER - - 248,082
Amount due from an intermediate JE U — e A R
holding company NEFIHE 29 10,074 7,606 3,816
Trade and other receivables FEUBRE TR R E i fE U IR 25 185,721 227,282 213,523
Prepaid lease payments on land TiE AT &R0
use rights 21 - 407 409
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries  FEU[R X B A 7718 26 476,588 1,331,196 33,401
Bank balances and cash RITEGFERIRE 27 285,528 233,655 1,038,416
957,911 1,832,682 1,559,237
Total assets BEHAR 1,145,300 2,244,346 2,083,459
Current liabilities =R
Trade and other payables FERBREZ R E M e IR 28 46,453 242,730 35,038
Amount due to an intermediate JE 5 — e Ap R iR A B 7R
holding company 29 11,772 4,997 538
Amount due to a joint venture e —Faa B0 ERIE 30 3,293 11,856 =
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries EREZWBATZIE 26 2,891 2,821 -
Convertible bonds ARk ES 32 289,933 - -
Value added tax payable JEfHIEETR - - 289
Income tax payable FERFI{ R 20,449 12,575 7,582
374,791 274,979 43,447
Net current assets RBEEFE 583,120 1,557,708 1,515,790
Total assets less current liabilites EEZAERRBERE 770,509 1,969,367 2,040,012
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R

As at 31 December 2015 &£ 201512 31 H L FE

31 December 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
20155 20144 20144
12A31H 12H31H 1HA1H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THT
(RESEE)] (RESEE)]
(fe=51) (fe=51)
Capital and reserves B
Share capital R 31 46,369 33,326 33,326
Reserves i 713,281 1,364,510 1,458,233
Equity attributable to owners AATHEE AEEER
of the Company 759,650 1,397,836 1,491,559
Non-controlling interests FERER - 1,641 1,798
Total equity ERAE 759,650 1,399,477 1,493,357
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible bonds AR E 5 32 - 549,507 520,705
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 33 10,859 20,383 25,950
10,859 569,890 546,655
770,509 1,969,367 2,040,012

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 213 were BN FE82E 213 B 2 ine M 157102016
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on FIANHEESSHERIRETIE - I
30 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: A TYESERKRES

Director &% Director &%
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Conso[iggted Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015%12 431 B ILFE

Equity attributable o owners of the Company

BOTREARE
Equiy
componentof  Exchange  Share Propertes Non-
Share  Copital comverble translation options  Reseve  Retained revauation ~ Other controling
premium resene  bonds  resemve resene fnd ~ amings resene  resene Total  interests
R Uk ik

MR ERRE  Radh EMRE BB REEE  RaRA L S A

HESODD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOM0 HKSO00  HKS00 HKSO00 RSO0 HKS00

i tA TR tEL T T TR o th th

(Noteb) (Notea) (Note )
(Fith) (iital (litb)

Kt ey 05 asorgnelysaed RO0GEIRIRIRRAT) R 69 SO I BB .1 ] - 1 18 10
Efitofadoptrgmergeraccountng~ AREHARRIARE:
frcomoncontolconbinaion. 752 = - s - ) -0 (1% - - 319 -1
MlnayDbsesdsd — ROBEIIAEEN) U6 GNN0 MR AT (M) M R0 BN o SO 1 B
hedolshaesupmconeson - REATAREREEARA
ofconver bonds 343 Xou - (094 - - - - - - B - OBl
Pt ey KEREA - - - - - - - - - W /¢
Ot compretersie RERARERS
expense o e year

Exhenge dfgences o LG s

fersion o foonclsieements 7EFEE

Wt S I " I R
Rechssfafon asmentir e EIRLENBATAZ: A

amigeecnpdioene  BEFHESZEIR

incuced inproft or ogs upon

drpnsof s . . . - omm - . . . - - B
Echangsdfeercss ntenseon A& $ASEHER B

offirancl staemerts of Eree

ajort venture - - - - (10039 - - - - - (100439 - ({00
Tota compredensie fcome TERRENG (B8

(proense for e ear - - - - (1668 - - o - - B e
Mg esnes g o AREHRNE AR

conmon conl combiain - - (e - - - - (86385 (1030859 - (008
Disosd o s HENELA - - - - g - (M dE6 e - S /3]
At 31 December 2016 HufsERAYA 4639 9956m - G (6506) s Wi - (% ThgN0 - T80
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE2015%12 431 B ILE[E

Equty trbutatle f onners of e Company

Equiy
componentof— Exchange Propertes Non-
Swe  Catd  comerble  trenshion Resene  Refened  revalition contolng
pemun e bonds resene fnd  eamngs  resene nfeests
TakEs hgh
EffE HREE  REEH BB R B
HS00 HESOD  HKS0D  HKSOOD  HKSO0 HSo
Thn Tir T in il A1
(Note2) (Noteb)
(ite)
A oy 0, asorigrelystaed - R0VEIFIB(BESH) R 67 1887 86w W U 0 9011 1076778 17% 1078576
Ffectof aopigmergeraoounng — RBSIA R A RE3E
forcommon conrolcombiaon 72 QA5 (#70.499) 0% e 414781 44781
At 1 January 2014, asrestated ROV A1 B(EEH) BB 609 MR 180T pOTEN) 5 90t 1491559 1% 149387
Lossfor e year TEERR (14,706 {11,708 69 (e
Oberoompelensieepense  BEREK2ERY
forthe year
Bxchnge dfeences o AEhBNFRERES
sk offrercalseements Ef2E
of b (L] (174 (/A A (7
Botngedfenesontangaion  A40ERER SRR
Of i st o HEH
ajont venturg (08 (08 (08
Todomehensiesperss  BERREEREE
forte ear B0 {t709 (7 T 1/ I
At 31 December 2014 HOUERAYA B 609 MR 180T (96T e Bk 9o 1.307.6% 164 130947
Notes: B e -

(a) Subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) have (@) R ARLFE ([ E]) K2 M AR

appropriated 10% of the profit to reserve fund. The reserve fund is
required to be retained in the accounts of the subsidiaries for specific
purposes.

The other reserve represents the difference between the consideration
of United States dollars (“USD”) 133,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,030,899,000) and the aggregate paid-in capital
of 4k R MR E EI&E A R A 7)(for identification purpose, in English,
Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium Resources Investment Company Limited,
referred to as “Beijing Sino-Kazakh”) of Renminbi (‘RMB”) 823,770,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$944,534,000) acquired under
business combinations under common control.

AREMZ10% BARBES - FRESA
RENHE AR 28R B AERERE °

HiEEERELRZEST 2 X246 0
U & & AR 18 133,000,000 7T (1 & R 4
1,030,899,000 7% 70 ) SR4L AR I5 $ B JRIEE
BRAR(MtRPREH]) BEEABBAR
823,770,000 7T (48 & H 4 944,534,000 7
JL) 2R ESE -

Annual Report 2015 ¢ —Z — H F 45

87




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015%12 431 B ILFE

2015 2014
20155 20145
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT
(RESEIE))
(€ l))
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEEK
Profit (loss) before taxation BREATER (B518) 347,842 (19,499)
Adjustments for: AR
Amortisation of intangiole assets BREmEE 15 62
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BT AERARER
on land use rights 102 407
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ -  BERRETE 3,216 4,607
Changes in fair value of investment properties BEMEAREET (735) 3,068
Finance costs BARA 21,990 28,802
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR 2 (99,040) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of TR - BB RE
property, plant and equipment BEEE = 1,521
Bank interest income RITHBUA (565) (3,679)
Loan interest income from a shareholder —BBRRZEZFBMA = (3,560)
Interest income from overdue trade receivable from Fh REERR A B 2 B R M R X
an intermediate holding company ZHBIA (3,514) (680)
Loan interest income from fellow subsidiaries RIZME AR ZEHFEHA (6,319) (16,772)
Trade deposit interest income from a joint venture —REELECEFTSHA (3,326) -
Reversal of impairment loss previously 5o BT L A R U I RERR
recognised on other receivables REEERE = (21)
Share of results from a joint venture EE—fRAELEEE (5,360) 54,134
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEWE - BiE KR EERFE 81 886
Write-down of inventories WREE = 3,507
Operating cash flow before movements in working capital 28 &4 & &5 v KLHETE 254,387 52,683
Increase in inventories GFEEN (5,771) (14,477)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables FEMR S E A R IR R (38 ) 43,239 (11,903)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables FERBRFR R EL AR 5108 CRt ) 1B (83,183) 207,692
Decrease in value added tax payable BT ER R = (89)
Increase in amount due from/to an intermediate FEUR, /P eP R AR A Bl FUAE A
holding company 3,956 672
(Decrease) increase in amount due to a joint venture ERAECERECRD) M (8,563) 11,856
Increase in amount due to fellow subsidiaries BN RZNBRRFIEEM 70 -
Cash from operations ReEBmERE 204,135 246,234
Hong Kong tax paid ERERTE (35,391) (23,191)
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ERRBEMEMEH S -
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXBMBRETR 168,744 223,043
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE2015%12 431 B ILE[E

2015 2014
2015% 20146
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT
(RESEIE))
(&=E7)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Repayment from fellow subsidiaries BESENG 11,325,994 5,321,235
Loans repayment received from a shareholder BM—fIRE 2 EHER = 248,082
Interest income from fellow subsidiaries RZHBRRZFIEMA 7,595 15,319
Bank interest income received ERERITRIEHA 658 3,586
Loan interest received from a shareholder BR—RREZEHFIE = 3,560
Interest income from overdue trade receivables RN Al 2 BRI
from an intermediate holding company B ZFIBHA = 517
Trade deposit interest income from a joint venture —REECECEFTSHA 3,326 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE « BE K&
plant and equipment FT85vE - 366
Deposits advanced to a fellow subsidiary A—ARZRBARRE  BE (10,472,024) (6,619,607)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BEKR (863) (1,270)
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZRERLIESR
(net of bank balances and cash disposed of) (B BEZSTEERES) 35 50,973 -
Payment for common control business combinations ¢ St A S £ A G (1,030,899) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZDHRAREFE (115,240) (1,028,212)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ReRkBSEEEREM(RD) FE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 53,504 (805,169
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENZRERAEEEER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 233,655 1,038,416
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXZEHE (1,631) 408
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERZRSRRSEERE -
END OF THE YEAR, represented by PEERRTEERES
unpledged bank balances and cash 285,528 233,655
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 ;22015512 A31 B It FE

90

GENERAL

CGN Mining Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liabilities. The shares of the Company are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its parent is FEfHEZEREARE A7 (China
Uranium Development Company Limited) (“China Uranium
Development”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of # 4% i3 3 R AR A 7 (CGNPC
Uranium Resources Co. Ltd.) (“CGNPC-URC”), which is in
turn a subsidiary of REEZEEBR AR (China General
Nuclear Power Corporation) (‘CGNPC”). CGNPC is the ultimate
parent of the Company. Both CGNPC-URC and CGNPC were
established in the PRC and state-owned enterprises.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the Annual Report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to the “Group”) are property investment,
trading of natural uranium and other investments. The
Group discontinued its operations in selling, distributing and
manufacturing of pharmaceutical and food products during
the year ended 31 December 2015 following the completion of
the disposal of Yugofoil Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Yugofoil Group”) on 25 March 2015.

The functional currency of the Company is the USD. As the
Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors of the Company
consider that it is appropriate to present the consolidated
financial statements in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)”), amendments and
Interpretations (“Int(s)”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

2.

& R #TR] R AR ME ] & 8 B
BIREER ([ FRM IR
HEA ) RMERATE

RAFE - AEEEEATIIHE
AERTIAE ([EEEMAE])
e 2 #a] RSERT BB IR E
R - BREBEMGEHRELD - &
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG

2.

P& R #TR] R R RT BB B
BREER ([ FRMBR
HER ) RMBEERQIRE

KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (continued) (=)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle BB EHE %R 2010 F£ £ 2012
FREANFEEIE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition’ and ‘market condition’; and (i) add
definitions for ‘performance condition’” and ‘service condition’
which were previously included within the definition of ‘vesting
condition’. The amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for
share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is
on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective of
whether the contingent consideration is a financial instrument
within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-financial
asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than measurement
period adjustments) should be recognised in profit and loss.
The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July
2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria to operating segments, including a description of the
operating segments aggregated and the economic indicators
assessed in determining whether the operating segments
have ‘similar economic characteristics’; and (i) clarify that a
reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ assets
to the entity’s assets should only be provided if the segment
assets are regularly provided to the chief operating decision-
maker.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
18 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove
the ability to measure short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant and
equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The amended
standards clarify that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a
manner consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount
of the asset and that accumulated depreciation/amortisation
is the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the carrying amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting
entity is a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the
reporting entity should disclose as related party transactions
the amounts incurred for the service paid or payable to the
management entity for the provision of key management
personnel services. However, disclosure of the components of
such compensation is not required.

The directors of the Company consider that the application
of the amendments to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle has had
no material impact in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG

2.
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HER ) RMBEERQIRE

KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (continued) (=)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle BEMEHREZER 2011 £F£2013
FREANFEEIE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint
arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement
itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for in
accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts
do not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial
liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS
3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards
may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment
property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment property
in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The amendments are applied prospectively. The directors of
the Company consider that the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle has had no material impact in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

Part 9 of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

In addition, the annual report requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) come into operation during the financial year. As a result,
there are changes to presentation and disclosures of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers®

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle'
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation’
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants'
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERAFIR&ETEEBH

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the Consolidation Exception'

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

& Effective date not yet been determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS
9 that were issued in previous years with limited amendments
to the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair
value through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”)
measurement category for certain financial assets. The finalised
version of HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected credit loss”
model for impairment assessments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FERHTRKZETEEBY
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B EEA ([ BB KR
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG EEH| ) RFEEBATE
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (continued) &)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued) & B B % 3R & % B 35957 (2014
F£)-S@MTHE(E)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows: AU BHREERE 95 (2014 F)
ZEEBHFEEHMMAT ¢

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in
other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

° In the aspect of impairment assessments, the
impairment requirements relating to the accounting
for an entity’s expected credit losses on its financial
assets and commitments to extend credit were added.
Those requirements eliminate the threshold that was
in HKAS 39 for the recognition of credit losses. Under
the impairment approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised. Instead, expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses should always be accounted for. The amount
of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition and, consequently, more timely information
is provided about expected credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

. HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging
their financial and non-financial risk exposures. As
a principle-based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks
at whether a risk component can be identified and
measured and does not distinguish between financial
items and non-financial items. The new model also
enables an entity to use information produced internally
for risk management purposes as a basis for hedge
accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary to exhibit
eligibility and compliance with the requirements in HKAS
39 using metrics that are designed solely for accounting
purposes. The new model also includes eligibility criteria
but these are based on an economic assessment of
the strength of the hedging relationship. This can be
determined using risk management data. This should
reduce the costs of implementation compared with
those for HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it
reduces the amount of analysis that is required to be
undertaken only for accounting purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B ILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 (2014) in the future may have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Thus, HKFRS 15
introduces a model that applies to contracts with customers,
featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of transactions
to determine whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. The five steps are as follows:
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i) Identify the contract with the customer; ) BAEEFRIMEL
i) Identify the performance obligations in the contract; ) BRIEHFRHBAEME
i) Determine the transaction price; i) EEXRSE

iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

V) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable users
of the financial statements to understand the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until
the Group performs a detailed review.

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing from
one of the disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or
disposal through distribution to owners) to the other should
not be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it
is a continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no
interruption of the application of the requirements in HKFRS
5. Besides, the amendments also clarify that changing the
disposal method does not change the date of classification.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract
that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a
financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and
arrangement against the guidance for continuing involvement
in HKFRS 7 in order to assess whether the additional
disclosures for any continuing involvement in a transferred
asset that is derecognised in its entirety are required. Besides,
the amendments to HKFRS 7 also clarify that disclosures in
relation to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities are
not required in the condensed interim financial report, unless
the disclosures provide a significant update to the information
reported in the most recent annual report.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth
of high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the
currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than
the country where the obligation is located. When there is no
deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that currency,
government bond rates must be used.

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the notes
to the interim financial statements ‘if not disclosed elsewhere
in the interim financial report’. The amendments to HKAS 34
clarify that the required interim disclosures must either be in the
interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference
between the interim financial statements and wherever they are
included within the greater interim financial report. The other
information within the interim financial report must be available
to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements
and at the same time. If users do not have access to the other
information in this manner, then the interim financial report is
incomplete.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle will have
a material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

102 CGN Mining Company Limited » H EZE2 AR A F

2.

R RGBT EEM
BREER ([ FRMBR
HER ) RMBEERQIRE
(%&)

EHEIEREZAR 2012 F £ 2014
FRMZFERE(&Z)

BRMBREENF 75 (EFTA)
BEERNEBRZRIGENBRETE
SHESHEE - BRARBEEY
BREERNE 7R 2 FE2 8
HEBRARZHZIEE - UHER
BARSE2E2 R IR E
BEEFLEMEKE - o BE
IR EERIE 7 5 (BFTAS) IhEE
AR A R E W ER TG
BEHTRHEERSRABIHE
BOFRBEREOINFRABEE
Btz EREH

BAGEANZ19R(ERTAN)ER
REBRAIESR 2 MGRERIZE
BrHER B M IHRERSAEBERT
ft - A 2R EERRERYL
ERATS - RIRERBFESFF

R GTERIEAFREEEN S
AR 75 R P R I BE B R (fif 3
R BPFBREFRTRE) - &
BRI ERE34 (EBRIAR) EE
HE 2 BB AN T B HREk
RIEH RN P BB IRR < MHEE
SRR BET AE A B 5
& PHPBHREAZEMERFR
2 A ¥R R 2 AR R GR B R AR
RIE AP ER © AP TR
WEHTAEHEMEFR - Rl B
BRERIETTE ©

RNARIEETEM [ BB BmELE
BI2012 F £ 2014 FA 2 FEK
E]BEZREEBITTSEHAEE
HERE B RERBREATE -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue-
based depreciation methods for property, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce
a rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based
amortisation methods for intangible assets is inappropriate.
This presumption can be rebutted only in the following limited

circumstances:

i) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue;

if) when a high correlation between revenue and the

consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
assets could be demonstrated.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will become
effective for financial statements with annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments should be applied prospectively.

As the Group use straight-line method for depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, the directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of the amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments to HKAS 27 allow an entity to apply the equity
method to account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates in its separate financial statements. As
a result of the amendments, the entity can choose to account
for these investments either:

i) at cost;

ii) in accordance with HKFRS 9 (or HKAS 39); or

iii) using the equity method as described in HKAS 28.

The amendments to HKAS 27 will become effective for financial
statements with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments should
be applied retrospectively.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKAS 27 will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments provide guidance on addressing the
acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and those in HKAS 28, in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its joint venture
and associate. An investing entity is required to recognise
the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing assets
that constitutes or contains a business to a joint venture or
associate in full. An investing entity is required to recognise
the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing assets that
does not constitute or contain a business to a joint venture or
associate only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that joint venture or associate.

The effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
has not yet been determined. However, earlier application is
permitted. The amendments should be applied prospectively.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use
professional judgement in determining what information as
well as where and in what order information is presented in
the financial statements. Specifically, an entity should decide,
taking into consideration all relevant facts and circumstances,
how it aggregates information in the financial statements,
which include the notes. An entity does not require to provide
a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS if the information
resulting from that disclosure is not material. This is the case
even if the HKFRS contain a list of specific requirements or
describe them as minimum requirements.

Besides, the amendments provide some additional
requirements for presenting additional line items, headings
and subtotals when their presentation is relevant to an
understanding of the entity’s financial position and financial
performance respectively. Entities, in which they have
investments in associates or joint ventures, are required to
present the share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method,
separated into the share of items that (i) will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (ii) will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

@i an entity should consider the effect on the
understandability and comparability of its financial
statements when determining the order of the notes;
and

(ii) significant accounting policies are not required to be
disclosed in one note, but instead can be included with
related information in other notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial statements
with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
Earlier application is permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the amendments to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material
impact on the disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the “CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment properties that
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary prepares its
financial statements using accounting policies other than
those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that subsidiary’s financial statements
in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure
conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (jii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.
When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, power over the investee may be obtained through:
(i) a contractual arrangement with other vote holders; (i) rights
arising from other contractual arrangements; (i) the Group’s
voting rights and potential voting rights; or (iv) a combination of
the above, based on all relevant facts and circumstances.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Company reassesses whether it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control of the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
(please describe how the adjustment to non-controlling
interests is determined) and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination involving
entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this is
a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the end of the previous reporting period
or when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwiill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, if the joint venture uses
accounting policies that differ from those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments have been made to conform the joint venture’s
accounting policies to those of the Group. Under the equity
method, an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture exceeds
the Group’s interest in that joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint venture.

If a joint venture uses accounting policies other than those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made to make the joint
venture’s accounting policies conform to those of the Group
when the joint venture’s financial statements are used by the
Group in applying the equity method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 ;22015512 A31 B It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in a joint venture (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

After application of the equity method, including recognising
the joint venture’s losses (if any), the Group determines whether
it is necessary to recognise any additional impairment loss
with respect to its investment in the joint venture. Goodwill
that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment in a
joint venture is not separately recognised. The entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment
in the joint venture. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the investment ceases to be a joint venture upon the
Group losing joint control over the joint venture, the Group
discontinues to apply equity method and any retained interest
is measured at fair value at that date which is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance
with HKAS 39. Any difference between the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part
interest in the joint venture and the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the equity method was discontinued is
recognised in profit or loss. Any amount previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that investment is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings on the same
basis as it would have been required if the investee had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R R B A

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in a joint venture (Continued)

When an investment in an associate becomes an investment in
a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate, the Group continues to apply the
equity method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

When the Group’s ownership interest in a joint venture is
reduced, but the Group continues to apply the equity method,
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest is reclassified to profit or loss if
that gain or loss would be required to be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its joint venture are recognised in consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investors’
interests in the joint venture. The Group’s share in the joint
venture’s gains or losses resulting from these transactions is
eliminated.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below). Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B IL &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBEX@®
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued) BLEE (&)
Research and development expenditure HEFH LT

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
buildings (classified as finance leases) held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

If an investment property becomes an owner-occupied
property when there is a change in use, as evidenced
commencement of an owner-occupation, the fair value of
that property at the date of transfer is the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting for that property as an item of property,
plant and equipment.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 ;22015512 A31 B It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IFEEHEw®E)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SWIA(E)
Financial assets THEE

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial asset and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

LLoans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including loan receivable from a shareholder, trade and
other receivables, amount due from an intermediate holding
company, amounts due from fellow subsidiaries and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

. disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the credit period ranging from 25
to 180 days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFHBEE®
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SWIA(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued) SREERE(E)

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance amount are
recognised in profit or loss. When trade and other receivables
are considered uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries/an intermediate holding company/a
joint venture and convertible bonds are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 ;22015512 A31 B It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFHBEE®
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SWIA(E)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued) THEERRETA ()
Convertible bonds (Continued) AR ES (8)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest rate of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the bonds into
equity, is included in equity (equity component of convertible
bonds).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component, representing
the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in equity component of
convertible bonds until the conversion option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated in equity component of
convertible bonds will be transferred to share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in equity component of convertible bonds will be
released to the retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity components are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities of the Group are offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognise its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 ;22015512 A31 B It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash
as defined above.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(other than impairment of goodwill set out in the
accounting policy of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(other than impairment of goodwill set out in the
accounting policy of goodwill above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 22015512 431 B ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy below.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees (after 7 November 2002
and vested on or after 1 January 2005)

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to
be held in share options reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 ;22015512 A31 B It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R R B A

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
general principles above.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEHEBE®
(Continued)
Foreign currencies IhitE

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period, except for exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the exchange translation reserve.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B IL &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHEw®E)
(Continued)
Leasehold land and building (Continued) HELHREF(E)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments
on land use rights” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis, except for those that are classified and accounted for
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as investment properties under the fair value model. When the BEfE L M FE 9 2 [E A 58
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land iﬂg SR - BRIBFHE —MRE D EA
and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified MERE - WIERYZE - BE &K

as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and HEFI|BE o

equipment.

Retirement benefits EREF

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and the REBRIREN G E o dER

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (defined contribution plans)
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to terminate the
employment of current employees according to a detailed
formal plan without possibility of withdrawal.
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Borrowing costs BE A
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in EERAGNEEPEEEIRE
which they are incurred. R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, net realisable value
of inventories and value in use of tangible assets for the purpose
of impairment assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as
follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy
for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value
on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the entity’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities from
investment properties that were measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties in the PRC were held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantively all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors of the Company determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model recovered entirely through sale
was rebutted. As a result, the Group continues to recognise
deferred tax liabilities on change in fair value of investment
properties on the basis that the entire carrying amounts of the
properties will be recovered through use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated useful life and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment were depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into
account their estimated residual values. The determination of
the useful lives and residual values involved management’s
estimation. The Group assessed annually the residual value
and the useful life of the property, plant and equipment and
if the expectation differed from the original estimate, such
a difference may impact the depreciation in the year and
the estimate would be changed in the future period. As at
31 December 2015, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment was approximately HK$20,339,000 (2014:
HK$41,967,000).

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performed ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusted credit limits based on payment history
and the customer’s current credit-worthiness, as determined
by the review of their current credit information. The Group
continuously monitored collections and payments from its
customers and maintained a provision for estimated credit
losses based upon its historical experience and any specific
customer collection issues that had been identified. Credit
losses had historically been within the Group’s expectations
and the Group would continue to monitor the collections from
customers and maintain an appropriate level of estimated
credit losses. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of trade receivables was approximately HK$125,800,000
(net of accumulated impairment loss of nil) (2014: carrying
amount of approximately HK$213,724,000 net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$4,330,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables,
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries and amount due from an
intermediate holding company

When there was objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group took into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss was measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows were less than expected, a material
impairment loss might arise. As at 31 December 2015, the
carrying amounts of other receivables, amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries and amount due from an intermediate
holding company were approximately HK$42,255,000 (2014
HK$2,184,000), approximately HK$476,588,000 (2014:
HK$1,331,196,000) and approximately HK$10,074,000 (2014:
HK$7,606,000) respectively.

Write down of inventories

The directors of the Company reviews an aging analysis at the
end of each reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production. The management estimates
the net realisable value for finished goods based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at end of each reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete items. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of inventories was nil (2014: carrying amount of approximately
HK$32,536,000, net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$3,203,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment was
recognised for the amounts by which the carrying amounts
exceed their recoverable amounts, in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment are the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. In determining
the recoverable amount, use of estimates such as the future
revenue and discount rates is required. As at 31 December
2015, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was approximately HK$20,339,000 (net of accumulated
impairment loss of nil) (2014: carrying amount of approximately
HK$41,967,000, net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$56,428,000).

Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by independent professional valuers. In determining the fair
value, the valuers have based on a method of valuation which
involves certain estimates of market conditions. In relying on the
valuation report, the directors of the Company have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions used
in the valuation have reflected the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions would result in changes in
the fair values of the Group’s investment properties being
recognised in profit or loss. The carrying amount of investment
properties measured at fair value at 31 December 2015 was
approximately HK$28,778,000 (2014: HK$117,637,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on investment in a joint venture

At the end of the reporting period, the Company reviews the
carrying amounts of investment in a joint venture to determine
whether there is any indication that the investment has
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the investment is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The
determination of recoverable amount of investment in a joint
venture involves estimates as to: (1) future revenues based
on forecasted uranium prices; (2) actual production volume
of uranium mines held by the joint venture; (3) exchange rate
between Tenge, the currency of the Republic of Kazakhstan
(“Kazakhstan”), and USD; (4) the discount rate to be applied
to such revenues and costs for the purpose of deriving
a recoverable amount. If the recoverable amount of the
investment is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss. The carrying amount of investment in a joint venture is
approximately HK$138,272,000 (2014: HK$233,051,000) as at
31 December 2015.

Fair value measurement and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets including investment properties
are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.
The directors of the Company are responsible to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements. Details are set out in note 20.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The directors of the
Company work closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4, FESHHE R &S
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION BIRZEZEERE @)
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) T THPEZECEERR (Z)
Income taxes Va2

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has not been recognised R2015%F 12 A31H » &~ & & &
the tax losses and deductible temporary differences of RELFIBEEA R ARG ER
approximately HK$60,858,000 (2014: HK$177,682,000) 4 Bl #960,858,000 7% It (2014 4F :
and nil (2014: HK$67,771,000) respectively due to the 177,682,000/ 7T ) & Z (2014 4F :
unpredictability of future profit streams. These losses relate to 67,771,000 7T ) ERELEFHIAE
subsidiaries that have a history of tax losses and the Group has E - MR BEEREERNHER
not accounted for the relevant deferred tax. The realisability of AIMETE - REBI R A ASIEEN
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient FEIEFTEALRR » IR IBEER A
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the BIEHM T EERTAKREREEH
future. The directors of the Company determine the deferred A Sk E AR EE R = B n A o
taxation assets based on the enacted or substantially enacted ARAREFZE BB AR EEM
tax rates and the best knowledge of profit projections of the TR » A RAREBEARTEEE
Group for coming years during which the deferred taxation MERITE A EE A1 ED A A R SR B4R P
assets are expected to be utilised. The directors of the 5 1 ORI B9 Bx (2 BT AN S TR SR AL
Company will review the assumptions and profit projections by TBEE - NRnlEEHRNREER
the end of the reporting period. EHZ SRR s TER
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. EXRERER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes convertible bonds disclosed in note 32, amounts due
to fellow subsidiaries/an intermediate holding company/a joint
venture net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and retained earnings. The directors of the Company
review the capital structure on a regular basis. As a part of
this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital, and
take appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

6. ERMTA
SRMTAES

2015 2014
2015F 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Restated)
(FeE5l)
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables B R ERGRIA
(including bank balances and cash)  (&#ER1TEFRIRE) 940,245 1,791,232
Financial liabilities EA =
At amortised cost RHESHR R 354,342 810,979

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include amounts due
from an intermediate holding company/fellow subsidiaries,
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries/an intermediate holding
company/a joint venture, trade and other receivables, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and convertible
bonds. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from rental income and purchases by
the Group in currencies other than the entities’ functional
currencies. Approximately 60% (2014: 33%) of the Group’s
rental income and 6% (2014: 5%) of the Group’s purchases are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the group’s entity making the purchases. In addition, certain
portion of bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables,
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, amount due from an
intermediate holding company, trade and other payables,
amount due to an intermediate holding company and amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the end of
the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised
monetary assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

USD’000
Fxr

Presented in: 2015 2014 2015
HIR A 20156 20145 2015%

(Restated)

(s =31)
Assets BE 945 1,035 41,362
Liabilities B - - (10,250)

RMB’000
ARBTR

2014
20144

(Restated)

(E=E75)

32,121
(9,038)

BEEBEEEBERBER
(#)

BRER

AEEHERZFEKERR - 5
E bR A RS U A R A EE AZ
SEBNIREEEUIINZEEE
TEREE - REEX60% (20144 -
33%) B & W A & #16% (2014
F 5% MNFBNEBEEESY
R 2 e B AN B¥EFI)(E -
o - BEF A RITEFRES -
JRE LS B R e EL A PR W RO FE L[]
RMB A RIFRIE - B EERA
A~ R R EAMEMNRIE - &
P R IR 2 B SR8 K FE 1 [R) & B
BARFIE - JYAER 2 B
BM AN E¥EEEE o

TRETASBERN RS BREERE
AERREBEERAENEER
HEATEEE R AN e B EEES
Z B o

Canadian dollars
(“CDNS$”) $°000
T

2015
20155

HK$'000
THET

2015

20155

2014
20145
(Restated)
(s=31)

2014
20144

364,256 314,441 44,535 -
(4,936)  (1,870) - -

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of RMB, USD,
HK$ and CDNS$.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity (i) to a 5%,
5% and 0.5% increase or decrease in HK$ against the RMB,
CDN$ and USD respectively for the year ended 31 December
2015 and (i) to a 5% and 0.5% increase or decrease in HK$
against the RMB and USD respectively for the year ended
31 December 2014. 5%, 5% and 0.5% are the sensitivity
rates used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represent management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5% or 0.5%
(2014: 5% or 0.5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit where
HK$ strengthen 5% or 0.5% (2014: 5% or 0.5%) against
the relevant currency. For a 5% or 0.5% (2014: 5% or 0.5%)
weakening of HK$ against the relevant currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit.

USD’000
TER

2015

20155

RMB’000

ARBTT
2015 2014
2015F 20145
(Restated)
(s=3)

2014
2014
(Restated)
(s &31)

Presented in:

IRA

Profit or loss Ak 1E (27) (30)  (1,550)  (1,222)

BEEBEEEBERBER
(#)

EWER(E)

AEETZEHARKE - XT 8
TRITEERR

NERFETIAERE () EE 2015512 A
31 BIEFEHETH R AR
ELRMTAESEZES% 5% &
05% 2 SURNE + K (i) EZ= 2014 4F 12
A3 BIEFEHETH R ARE
NETTH{ESEZES% &% 05% © 750
RRELE R (5% ~ 5% & 0.5% ) AlA1E
ZEE A BRINERBRIEN RS
R SURRE - REREEERIN
PEFE R A geE £ 2 A B F B FTERT
fl o

BRESTERERKREE 2 INE
FHEEMEIE B RN WS SR R
FLHNEE Z 7 5% 5% 0.5% (2014 4F :
5%3%0.5%) BB EH 2 MEFE -
T Z EBBERMGBTHBRER
F 185%3%0.5% (2014 FF : 5% 5k
0.5%) FT &8 BUBR B 18 5 A1 2 FH18 o
fisi 75 7T %, 4 88 5 K B2 (E.5% 2k 0.5%
(2014 4F : 5%3505%) - e
TERAER < ERERAZE o

HK$'000
THET

2015

20155

CDN$000
Fmr

2015

2015%

2014
20146
(Restated)
(s=31)

2014
20144

1,500 1,305 (9,332 -

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

EEERS  BRNFER AR
ERREARER - HEEREDITIL
PEREBEINER -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its variable-rate bank balances and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries and is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest rate exposure
is anticipated.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
including bank balances and cash and loan receivable from a
shareholder at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis points (2014: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2014: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
would increase/decrease by approximately HK$3,372,000
(2014: HK$6,516,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its bank balance and loan
receivables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability of
each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The directors of the Company consider the credit risk
attributable to the amount due from an intermediate holding
company and amounts due from fellow subsidiaries to
be insignificant as the default risk of the advance to the
intermediate holding company and fellow subsidiary is limited
as the intermediate holding company and fellow subsidiary has
sufficient net assets to repay its debts and a good history of
repayment. The Group does not expect to incur a significant
loss for uncollected amount due from an intermediate holding
company and amounts due from fellow subsidiaries.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 100%
(2014: 100%) of the total trade receivables as at 31 December
2015.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Besides, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 100%
(2014: 91%) of the total trade receivables as at 31 December
2015 was due from the Group’s largest customer within
natural uranium trading segment. However, the directors of
the Company consider the credit risk to be insignificant as
the major debtor was immediate holding company (2014
intermediate holding company) with good creditworthiness.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed

adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk tables

Carrying
amount at

31 December
M12A318
A
HK$'000
THL

BEEBEEEBERBER
(#)

FERR(E)
B ETERSFR

Total
Less than undiscounted
cash flows

KR

1 year 1-5 years

1£R 1-5%

RERBaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL ThT TR

2015 20155
Non-derivative financial liabilities FEERER
Trade and other payables JEBR TN I B At P 2R 46,453 46,453 - 46,453
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRZNBARZIE 2,891 2,891 - 2,891
Amount due to an intermediate FEf—FaERETE
holding company 11,772 11,772 - 11,772
Amount due to a joint venture EABLE0A 3,203 3,203 = 3,203
Convertiole bonds A#RES 289,933 300,000 - 300,000
354,342 364,409 - 364,409
2014 20145
Non-derivative financial liabilities FEERER
Trade and other payables JER RA R AR F0E 241,798 241,798 - 241,798
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary el —FRZNBARZE 2,821 2,821 - 2,821
Amount due to an intermediate ER—HEEREHA
holding company 4,997 4,997 - 4,997
Amount due to a joint venture EREENETE 11,856 11,856 - 11,856
Convertiole bonds A#RES 549,507 - 600,000 600,000
810,979 261,472 600,000 861,472
Fair value NRE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded

at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values due to their immediate or short-

term maturities.

THEENEBRBEZAAETIR
BLREBRANGRBEDRED
IEETE °

BHMBREIEZERHEENRSR
BECREEREAARERS It
Ty EL RS sl e BRI -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B ILFE

8. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING 8.

INCOME

Revenue represents amount received and receivable from

sales of natural uranium, net of returns, discounts allowed
and sales related taxes, and gross rental income during the
year. Revenues recognised during the year from continuing

operations are as follows:

ERARHMEERA

BEEIEFANGREE - A
- HEEEREREHERAH
2B R ERRIE - RS RA
BEE o RAFERFBEMEBHERZ
I

2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FAT
(Restated)
(F&:751)
Revenue EEE
Sales of goods HEEm 700,391 1,147,920
Gross rental income (note a) e WAL (HfiEa) 3,031 3,787
703,422 1,151,707
Other operating income HAh QWA
Bank interest income HRITH) BIA 549 3,574
Loan interest income from —ERFEZEFFEWA
a shareholder (wholly repayable (Z2EBRAFAKE)
within five years) = 3,560
Loan interest income from fellow FZMB AR 2 ERFEHA
subsidiaries (wholly repayable (EBRAFRURE)
within five years) 6,319 16,772
Interest income from overdue trade  — [ H AR A 7] 2 BIEAFEULBR 3¢
receivable from an intermediate 2 BUA
holding company 3,514 580
Trade deposit interest income from — —RE& & E 2 BN A BUA
a joint venture 3,326 =
Net exchange gain R H = 376
Tax on disposal of subsidiaries HERSRER ZWIEH
reimbursed by the acquirer RERNERBARFR
of Yugofoil Group 3,706 -
Others HoAh 2 4
17,416 24,866
Total revenues B 720,838 1,176,573
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING EEBEREMEE WA
INCOME (Continued) (&)
Note: BsE
(a) An analysis of the Group’s net rental income is as follows: (@) REBZHSWMNFEITHT :
2014
20144
HK$'000
T
(RESEE)]
(5 =51))
Gross rental income S WALz 3,031 3,787
Less: Outgoings B ABRER S
(included in cost of sales) (FFASHERKA) (170) (216)
Net rental income FHESUA 2,861 3,571

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer, being the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided. Operating
segments identified by the chief operating decision maker are
the same as the reportable segments of the Group.

Pharmaceutical and food segment (the “Disposed Business”)
was discontinued in the current year (details set out in note 12).
Accordingly, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
from continuing operations are as follows:

a) property investment segment engages in leasing and
selling of office premises;

b) natural uranium trading segment engages in trading of
natural uranium; and

) other investments segment engages in investment in a
joint venture.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
above reportable segments.

2 EER

AEEAREFA RIS BRAF
5 B A BEERRE R E AR
TR R R R BT A
RN ERNRGTEA - TBEE
REE BRI E 5 B EIAMB AR A
S W0 T s 5 HAER o

mERAD B (R THEERKD
RAFEENFRLE (FBERME
12) ° it - AEEE A HRE R
FEEEBOLEDEMT

i 70 8B (

% B

d MERESBEEERS
EWAE

b) i%ﬁiﬁ%“ﬁﬁaﬂi%ﬁﬁ

0) HENHEEaiDh
EHIE °

$%@Im%@ SRR DA
AT D -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B ILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by reportable and operating segments:

Continuing operations
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Property
investment

NREE
HK$'000

TR

DEER (&)
A ONE 7 |
AEEZARE RELH LT E

BRI 2 Wes MEAE T ¢

=l
BE2015F12 31 HILEE

Natural
Other uranium

investments trading Total

HiRE RA#EZ )
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

TR TR TR

Turnover L 3,031 - 700,391 703,422
Segment (loss) profit A (E1R) & A (2,536) 5,360 269,218 272,042
Other income and gains H AU A R dlizs 17,416
Central administration costs R RATHAAR (14,185)
Finance costs BMAKAR (21,990)
Profit before taxation from SE BB AR

continuing operations 253,283

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Property
investment
MERE
HK$'000
THT
(RESEIE)]
(&g=&71)

HE2014FE12 A31 BILEE

Natural
Other uranium

investments trading Total

Hio& RREES H)
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET TAT TET

(RESEIE)] (RESEUE)! (Restated)

(B&71) (E5) (&&5)

Turnover BE 3,787 = 1,147,920 1,151,707
Segment profit (loss) DERF (E518) 2,283 (54,134) 172,382 120,531
Other income and gains H g A KUz 24,866
Central administration costs FRRITERA AR (32,348)
Finance costs BB (28,802)
Profit before taxation from STV G Il

continuing operations 84,247
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEER (&)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DEBMA R ELE (2)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the SANMIFES Pl - RE DI BET
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note BERFER o ZpiaFl (Ei8) I8&5
3. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned by (loss HETEEEY R (A EIR) - WAk D
from) each segment without allocation of central administration FEARRITERA - EEHH - Ht
costs, directors’ salaries, other income and gains and finance WA RS KRB o 1t Thst
costs. This is the measure reported to the Chief Executive A& BN RIS A EEHTE R
Officer for the purposes of resource allocation and performance L= e
assessment.
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities TRESAREB A RE R L&D
by reportable and operating segments: AT BERAE :
Segment assets DEEE
2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
(Restated)
€=
Pharmaceutical and food BYIRE W - 110,755
Property investment YIFEIRE 55,980 129,808
Other investments HEiig & 138,272 233,051
Natural uranium trading KRIME 5 125,800 198,277
320,052 671,891
Unallocated corporate assets RO ATIEE 825,248 1,572,455
Total assets BEMAE 1,145,300 2,244 346
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e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B ILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEPER (2
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEERERB(E)
Segment liabilities HEFRIE

2015 2014
2015 £F 2014 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Pharmaceutical and food B R - 98,201
Property investment VISR E 4,850 2,694
Other investments HpEE = _
Natural uranium trading KAHE 5 46,564 146,532
51,414 247,427
Unallocated corporate liabilities RO AFARE 334,236 597,442
Total liabilities BERRE 385,650 844,869

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, bank
balances and cash and other assets for corporate use
including certain property, plant and equipment and
other receivables.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than convertible bonds, income tax payable, deferred
tax liabilities, certain other payables, amount due to
an intermediate holding company and amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. 7ER(#)
Other segment information Hith o S BE
Continuing operations BT
2015 20154
Natural
Property Other  uranium
investment investments trading Unallocated Total
NERE EtRE XRHES KA At
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
THL THR TAL THET THT
Amounts included in the STEAMERR I BEER
measure of segment profit Bt ANE:

or loss or segment assets:

Addition to property, NENE  BEER

plant and equipment 111 - - 624 735
Transfer from investment properties BB EREYE 17,963 - - - 17,963
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 526 - - 996 1,522
Changes in fair value of REANENA BT

investment properties (1,044) - - - (1,044)
Net loss on disposal of property, LENE - BERREL

plant and equipment BRFE - - - 81 81
Operating lease rental on land T RkEF EERERS

and buildings - - - 3,290 3,290
Share of results of a joint venture Eli-BAE0EEE - (5,360) = = (5,360)
Amounts regularly provided to EHEERRTERERE

the Chief Executive Officer but BEFEERAL BER

not included in the measure of ANEETEZHE

segment profit or loss or

segment assets:
Interest expense FERY - - - 21,990 21,990
Income tax expense FraRs - - - 49,920 49,920
Bank interest income FATHIEMA - - - (549) (549)
Loan interest income from ENRAZRBARERFERA

fellow subsidiaries - - - (6,319) (6,319)
Interest income from overdue RRER A ] 2 U R S A

frade receivable from an

intermediate holding company - - (3,514) - (3,514)
Trade deposits interest income from — —EAZMNE 7B ZFISMA

a joint venture - - (3,326) - (3,326)
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e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B ILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oIER
Other segment information (Continued) Hih D EHEE (&)
Continuing operations (Continued) BT ()
2014 20144

Natural
Property Other uranium

investment  investments trading  Unallocated Total
NEEE  EtRE AR a5t

HK§000  HK$'000  HK§000  HK$'000  HK§000
TAT TAT THx TAT TAT
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(E=5)) (g35) (GZ5) (£85) (K5)

Amounts included in the measure  StESHEHER I BEER

of segment profit or loss or BEtARE:

segment assets:
Addition to property, REME  BERR

plant and equipment 296 - - 2,821 3117
Depreciation and amortisation FEREHE 21 - - 383 404
Changes in fair value of RENEZDABES

investment properties (164) - - = (164)
Share of results of a joint venture Eli-BAE0EEE = 54,134 = = 54,134
Operating lease rental on land T kEF EEHERS

and buildings - - 366 4977 5,343
Amounts regularly provided to the EHI EEH{TE RASIEE

Chief Executive Officer but BAEERDBBERL B

not included in the measure EEHEZNE:

of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:
Interest expense F2mE% = - = 28,802 28,802
Income tax expense R - - - 242 2462
Bank interest income FATFIEMA = = = (3,574) (3574)
Loan interest income from —EREMEFHFISHA

shareholder - = = (3,560) (3,560)
Loan interest income from RAZNBAEZFERA

fellow subsidiaries = = - (8772 (16772
Interest income from overdue —EREER AR 2858

trade receivable from an JEUERSR 2 RIS HA

intermediate holding company = = (580) = (680)
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RE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.

Geographical information
Continuing operations

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (“HK”), the
PRC and Kazakhstan.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current assets
is presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

DEBER @)

o R

T i T
AEBNEBLIAES  RERB
BT -

BRAKERAIINSBEEHBAD
BEMRREBEEMAEMEHZS - A
BASEIFRBEENEHERE
BEMENMEZS -

Revenue from
Non-current assets

external customers

REIMFEF WA FRBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
2015 % 2014 4F 2015 % 2014 4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FHET AT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E75) (&E5)
HK BB - - 3,211 3,664
PRC =8 703,422 1,151,707 45,906 174,949
Kazakhstan reiEsT AR - - 138,272 233,051
703,422 1,151,707 187,389 411,664

Information about major customers BEREXEEFZEHR

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group is as
follows:

AT #0512k B AR B B AR A&
BEHEREBBIOBHE S 2K
A

2015 2014

2015 2014 4F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

THExT AT

Customer A' ZPEH 297 1,147,920

Customer B' BEZ! 700,094 -
! Revenue from natural uranium trading segment 1 REFRIME 5D 22 WA
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B ILFE

10. FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on imputed

AR ESZ EEFE

A& B AN
2015 2014
2015 % 2014 4

HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAET

interest charged on convertible sz (fizE32)
bonds (note 32) 21,990 28,802
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8%
Continuing operations BEMtER

Hong Kong Profits Tax

BRMEH

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000

THET FHETT
(Restated)
(&)

— current year —RFE 44,259 28,206
— overprovision in prior years —BEFE B (376) ©)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax HEME AR F
on disposal of subsidiaries RS
— current year —REE 3,706 -
UK Corporation tax R EFTSTR
— current year —KFE 478 -
48,067 28,200
Deferred tax RIETRIE 1,853 (5,738)
49,920 22,462

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax

BRMNEHIEZMEF RO G E
ARBUR A 16.5% BB R E o

REFBEEEMETE ([REMEF
BOE]) REERES - hEEEA

rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years. AR 2 B R 25% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Certain PRC subsidiaries were either in loss-making position for
the current and the previous years or had sufficient tax losses
brought forward from previous years to offset the estimated
assessable income for the year and accordingly did not have
any provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax for both years.

The subsidiary operating in the United Kingdom (“UK”) is
subject to Corporation Tax Act of UK and the tax rate of the UK
subsidiary is 20% for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Pursuant to the tax law of Kazakhstan, withholding income
tax is levied on 10% of profit before distributed to overseas
investors. The above Kazakhstan Income Tax is withheld by the
joint venture when 49% of total dividends were distributed to
the Company by the joint venture.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the Biritish Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI for the both
years.

11.

B E @)

RAFERBEFE - & THEH
BRBERNERAR - REFFN
EFE 2 HIER R AEHFAML
FHRERTUA - EE R EF E I
AT BEEEMEHARE

RIREEE 2 B A RIARRIZRE
EEMBHZE  REZE2015412
HAB1BLLFE - ZERBATZH
F520% o

REGERITHETE - RINMAEHR
BOIKBIMRE BRI BADR N 2
10% B o Eiltha i e AT TS AL
HABELEEEAARTDIK49%
Z RS RSTR o

RERSHERRBRELES
(IBVI]) ZZRRER - ARER
MIEFEBBEHRFERSRBVI
FS®i -
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e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015%12 431 B ILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss as follows:

FRrEHZE @)

REEREHRXHEGABRRA
RERTHADE NSRRI T

2015 2014
2015 2014 4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx T
(Restated)
(&E5)
Continuing operations B ER
Profit before taxation FRA5 AL A 253,283 84,247
Tax calculated at rates applicable HAEBHE A AERBRAR
to profits in the respective tax A 2 BERETE 2 BiE
jurisdiction concerned 42,147 9,543
Tax effect of share of results Bl —FRaBhE 2 BgEwE
of a joint venture (1,340) 13,534
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBIMA Z B2
for tax purpose (1,385) (990)
Tax effect of expenses not DA 2 R 2
deductible for tax purpose 5,157 6,560
Tax effect of disposal of subsidiaries  HEREB A G ZHE 2 3,706 -
Deferred tax on undistributed —HBABEEARDE R
earnings of a joint venture RO IR IH 1,049 (5,779)
Tax effect of tax losses not RIER S EIE
recognised IR E 962 -
Utilisation of tax losses AT FERERNRBEEE
previously not recognised - (400)
Over provision in prior years B FE B (376) 6)
Income tax expense for the year NEZRRER Y H 49,920 22,462

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 33.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE2015%12 431 B ILE[E

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 25 March 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Yugofoil
Group, which carried out all of the Group’s pharmaceutical
and food products operation, to an independent third party for
a total consideration of HK$101,250,000. The disposal was
completed on the same day, on which date control of Yugofoil
Group passed to the acquirer.

Following the completion of the disposal of Yugofoil Group, the
Group discontinued its operation in the Disposed Business.
The profit (loss) for the year from the Disposed Business was
set out below. The comparative figures in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss have been restated to re-present the
pharmaceutical and food products operation as a discontinued

operation:

12.

FIFEMRE

R2015F3HA25H © & & & 7]
VHERFEEHZ  LERKE
101,250,000 8 T M B 5% =75 )
EERBEREENZEIE - @
HEaREEREASE 2 FE &R
REMER - HETKER - 1A
WaREBE TGS ETRER
prdl=}: I

R ERSREB TR - AEE
RIEERZHEXRBEE - AF
Bzt EEBHeE M (BE) &
TX - FEBaRNEBHFES
5l - #S B R RS2 5 RIER
BT -

2015 2014
2015 £ 20144
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FEx FA&T
(RESEET))
(FeE=51)
Loss of the Disposed Business REEZHEEB 2 ER
for the year (4,400) (103,660)
Gain on disposal of the & 5% & 375 2 e
Disposed Business 35 99,040 =
94,640 (103,660)
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e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B IL &

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

The results of the Disposed Business for the year ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

12.

FFEMER 2

#H E20154F N 201412 A31H
IEFEZNEEBNERFNOT ¢

2015 2014
20155 2014 %
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET FAT
(Restated)
('=&%))
Revenue S0 35,221 95,625
Cost of sales SHERKAR (29,071) (72,011)
Gross profit EA 6,150 23,614
Other operating income H a8 U A 60 366
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAY (3,362) (18,999)
Administrative expenses TE R (7,020) (103,974)
Impairment loss recognised in BRI - BB KR&
respect of property, plant 2 RREEE
and equipment - (1,521)
Changes in fair value of 1B E N (EEE)
investment properties (309) (8,232)
Loss before taxation PR AL R ETHE (4,481) (103,746)
Income tax credit FiisBife 81 86
Loss of the Disposed Business REEZHEEB 2 EE
for the year (4,400) (103,660)

Income tax credit from the Disposed Business included the

following:

Deferred tax

ZHEEBAERELBENAT

2015

2015 F
HK$’000

FERx

81)

2014
2014 4
HK$'000
FAT
(Restated)
(F&E5))

(86)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

12.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
disposed of its entire interests in Yugofoil Group and the 10%

on the gain on disposal of subsidiaries in the PRC is subjected

to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax.

Loss for the year from the Disposed Business included the

following:

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments on land use rights

Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of
other receivables (included in
other operating income)

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Operating lease rental on land
and buildings

Staff costs

Write-off of inventories
(included in cost of sales)

Research and development costs

Bank interest income

Rental income from investment
properties

Net exchange loss

BIEEVAE
HSH T o AETR TR E R

ERRRAXMNFEMRA

W% - BERRETE

PR EL A 8 WK IR RE R HO R (E

BB E (FTARAMLEWRA)

HEWE - BE k&R ZER

THREFZEEHEES

BIRAK

MEETEE (FEAHERA)
3 Ak 2R

SRITH B UL A
BEMERSWA

JHIE B 1E

FFEMER 2

HE2015F12A31HIEFE - &
ARIHERERER 2 25k -
P BRI A R AR B 10% 78
B B SRS HL

ZHEXBAFEBERBENTS
15

2015 2014
20154 2014 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Restated)

(&E5)

15 62
102 407
28,756 67,086
1,694 4,203
= (221)

- 886

110 566
5,232 88,606
- 3,507

7 944

(16) (105)
1,986 7,534
136 9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B IL &

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 12. FBFEMEK @)
Net cash outflows on the Disposed Business are as follows: ZHEEK RS REFRENOT ¢
2015 2014
2015 £ 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
(Restated)
(ge=75)
Operating activities KR 2T (1,327) (9,097)
Investing activities HEES (110) (254)
(1,437) (9,351)
13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. KREEZF
Continuing operations BEMEK

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000

THET T
(Restated)
(#&&E75))

Profit for the year has been arrived REZHFE MKk TFFE
at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration Z A & 1,250 1,336
Cost of inventories recognised as AR RET ASHEK AR

an expense and included in FEHEEKA 420,409 975,534

cost of sales
Depreciation of property, Y% - BREREREITE

plant and equipment 1,522 404
Operating lease rental on THREFREHERE

land and buildings 3,290 5,343
Staff costs (including directors’ BTN (BIEESENE)

emoluments) (note 16) (fIzE16) 9,444 6,198
Share of income tax expense JElh—RaEEMEHE N

of a joint venture 7,896 3,151
Net exchange loss FIE H EsiE 703 -
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEMEE2

plant and equipment 5185 58 81 -
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14.

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: nil), nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
from continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

B (BR)

Earnings (loss)

Earnings (loss) for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company for the

14.

15.

AEBREREN(BR) ZARF
BAABEREREN (BE)

RE
HE22015F12A31H IEFEE W
AR o E R IR AR B (2014 4 ¢
) 0 B RS HAE A E B AR TR
HERIR MRS, ©

BREF (HE)
PRSI RS E R

ARBHEB ARGIERBERBT R
FRBUETNERERNLE SR
M (E1R) THZ NI BURAT &

2015
20155
HK$°000

2014
20144
HK$'000
FET
(Restated)
(=E51)

TRET

purpose of basic earnings (loss) per share 297,981 (41,706)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: ~ EL#iEaifE 2 B L@k /2

Interest on convertible bonds AHARESFIE 21,990 N/A i
Earnings for the year attributable to the AR ESREERA 2 ARF)

owners of the Company for the purpose BE ANEILAFEEEF

of diluted earnings per share 319,971 N/A N A
Number of shares RAPEE
Weighted average number of ordinary SHEGRENERN (BE) 2

shares for the purpose of basic LB anE TS 2

earnings (loss) per share 4,047,298,131 3,332,586,993
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: ~ AB#EaifE 7 Bh L@k 7 /2 -

Convertible bonds RES 1,893,984,514 N/A iz A
Weighted average number of ordinary AR ESREERMZ

shares for the purpose of diluted L@ T2

earnings per share 5,941,282,645 N/ATNE R

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the computation of
diluted earnings per share does not assume the conversion
of the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds since their
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.

HZE2014F 12831 BILEE B
Han ik =R e o| e AR AR R
D R EEEE R B AT
TEA o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B IL &

15.

From continuing operations

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

from continuing operations attributable to the owners of the

Company is based on the following data:

Earnings

Earnings (loss) for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company for the purpose

27

AEEBBREAREERN AT
BEAREAFREEN (B])

15.

BRER (&E8) =)
=y (e 3

RRABEE ANEHREFEIEE
M EIEAR R EER N THZ T 52K

BEtE -

2015
2015
HK$°000

TRET

2014
20144

HK$'000

FAT

(Restated)
(fe=51)

of basic and diluted earnings per share 297,981 (41,706)
Less: (earnings) loss for the year B REFEFEEEBNARFE

from discontinued operation (&H) B8 (94,618) 108,491
Earnings for the purpose of basic HEGRENERN 2 RAT]

earnings per share for the year attributable 5 A (L ANEE B 7

to the owners of the Company 203,363 61,785
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: B #EME 2 B L@ T2

Interest on convertible bonds AR EAF B 21,990 28,802
Earnings for the purpose of diluted earnings IRt E G MRESR T2 A A

per share for the year attributable BB ANEIAFERF

to the owners of the Company 225,353 90,587
Number of shares RAEE
Weighted average number of ordinary STEERERET

shares for the purpose of basic L@ T2

earnings per share 4,047,298,131 3,332,586,993
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: ~ E#Euipe v B L@k 2 /2

Convertible bonds AR ES 1,893,984,514 2,608,695,652

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
eamings per share

ARGt ESREERN 2 R
IEFHH

5,941,282,645

5,941,282,645
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15.

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 15.

From discontinued operation

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operation for
the year ended 31 December 2015 is earnings HK2.34 cents
per share (2014: loss HK3.10 cents per share) and diluted
earnings per share for the discontinued operation is HK1.59
cents per share (2014: N/A), based on the profit for the year
from discontinued operation of HK$94,618,000 (2014: loss of
HK$103,491,000) and the denominators detailed above for
both basic and diluted earnings per share.

STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 16.

EMOLUMENTS)

From continuing operations

Salaries, allowances, e~ FER - EEFRIEA

BRER (&E8) =)
YDA R

BREREERIEEEER 2 AFE
794,618,000 870 (2014 F : &
$8103,491,000/8 7t ) K& £ Xt
et E 2 SREAREFRF 2
A& B E2015%12A31 8 Ik
FE BRIECEER 2 BRER
BRI AEI2.34811(2014F : &
BEEB3A0B(L) BRIEEEE
B2 BIREERTRER1.59 81
(2014 : @A) °

BETRAS (BEESHE)

REFEMERE

2015
2015 &
HK$’000

2014
2014 5
HK$’000
FA&T
(Restated)
(&)

FERT

other benefits and bonus 8,155 6,109

Retirement benefit schemes RIRERET B TR
contribution 1,289 89
9,444 6,198

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate defined contribution
schemes (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance which are available to
qualified employees. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the subsidiaries in independently
administered funds. Monthly contributions made by the
subsidiaries are calculated based on certain percentages of
the applicable payroll costs or fixed sums as stipulated under
the relevant requirements, as appropriate. The employees are
required to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up to a
maximum of HK$1,500 (HK$1,250 prior to June 2014) and they
can choose to make additional contributions. The employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’s Mandatory Contributions
upon their retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

EBHBRAR AL ERERERES
SEFIEATE ST EHEGIHETT E R
BBt E ) - ZF55t
Bz EEENBARZEERBL
ERESANFAREE - SEZEA
IR TR R B AR E FTR] BA LAE AR
FMRAZETED LR EERE
(BEABRME)E - BREAR
H A% 2 5% sk &= 1,500 77t (R
201446 ARI/A1,25078 70 ) fEH
K MEE R EHREIMEK o
EBRB5FRIN « BT REER
TERE N =6 100% 2 18 =55 4
MEEEER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B IL &

16.

STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

From continuing operations (Continued)

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the
PRC, the subsidiaries of the Company in this country participate
in respective government retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute
to the Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of the eligible
employees. Contributions made to the Schemes are calculated
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant
authorities of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the Schemes is to pay
the ongoing required contributions under the Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represent gross
contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated by the
relevant authorities of the PRC and the defined contribution
schemes operated in Hong Kong.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$1,289,000
(2014: HK$89,000) represents contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting
period.

Details of the Company’s share options granted to the
employees of the Group are set out in note 37.

1066 CGN Mining Company Limited » H EZTE2 AR A

16.

BEIXK(BRESHE)
(#)
RE R ()

RETEEEER AP - ARF
Z BB A 2 ERIRBTRK
wAEE (T FTE)) - &t
ZEH B AR AR XS EIFL
R UEBNEERER ZENKE
M o [zt BIEL 2 HR TR
o B A5 51 P AT B PR R MK AN 2 s
ERADLFE -hBEAEHEERAR
AR AE & ST 2 2 BUR IR
B o REEFZFTE 2 RIEER
RIBEZ ST BIELAFHEN -

RAEAIET &I R BN A S B A d
BAERE REF I ZFTEARR
BREIEZ ERHEFEHEIER Z #
TREERE -

BBk 2 45K 2 1,289,000 7
76 (2014 4F : 89,00078 7T ) + BIA
SENRAS TR Z S EIES
2B o

ARBAAEE S TRHBREL
FHBEENHIFEST ©




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

17. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 17. EZNZESHFMALZH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS &
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) ESBRTIETHAEMSE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve B ER + =% (2014
(2014: twelve) directors and the chief executive were as F A+ R)EENFTETT
follows: BABZMEWT ¢
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE2015F12A31HILFE

Other emoluments

Rfohe

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit

and other Discretionary schemes

Fees benefits bonus contribution Total
R 4i) BB
e RHEMER SN SHEfS it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T BT TR TR
Executive directors: HiTEE -
Yu Zhiping' FET - 950 - - 950
Xing Jianhua® g’ - 444 - - 444
He Zuyuan® A - 420 - - 420
Non-executive directors: HHTEE
Huang Jianming’ R 126 = - - 126
Zhou Zhenxing B 200 - - - 200
Chen Qiming BB 150 - - - 150
Yin Engang FER 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive directors: BUHBTEE -
Qiu Xianhong i 120 - - - 120
Lee Kwok Tung TER 120 - - - 120
Gao Pei Ji SHEE 120 - - - 120
986 1,814 - - 2,800
! Mr. Yu Zhiping was also the Chief Executive Officer of L REFLEETBRATN
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above BRHITE - EXFAHRE
included those for services rendered by him as the BEMNMe D BEER
Chief Executive Officer. TERERIITE BT
<
2 Appointed on 25 June 2015. 2 R2015F6 250 # &
8 Resigned on 25 June 2015. £
! Resigned on 3 November 2015. 2 1201546 A25 HEHE °
. 120154 11 A3 AFHT °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B IL &

17. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 17. EZNZESHFMALZH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (continued) ® (8
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@ EEBERXETHAEMHS
(Continued) (%)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE2014F12A31HILFE

Other emoluments
X 6
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit

and other  Discretionary schemes

Fees benefits bonus  contribution

e 2 RINGEA

e RAMEN BfEiEa ATl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THL THL

Executive directors: HITEE -
Yu Zhiping' FET - 1,029 = = 1,029
He Zuyuan 8T - 936 - - 936
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Huang Jianming sz 150 - - - 150
Zhou Zhenxing® FiRE® 200 - - - 200
Chen Qiming TRREA 150 - - - 150
Xing Jianhua® g’ 63 - - = 63
Yin Engang’ FaH° 88 - - - 88

Independient non-executive directors: BUHBTEE -

Qiu Xianhong APt 120 - - - 120
Ling Bing" AR 78 - - - 78
Huang Jinsong’ EYH 78 - - - 78
Lee Kwok Tung’ BEE® 43 - - - 43
Gao Pei Ji RHRE 43 - - - 43
1,013 1,965 - - 2,978

! Mr. Yu Zhiping was also the Chief Executive Officer of u REFERETRBARFN

the Company and his emoluments disclosed above HEWITE - EXFIRE

included those for services rendered by him as the REMOMEE 2IEERE

Chief Executive Officer. THEAERHIITE KB

R20144F6 A 1 HEHT -
R2014F6 A1 BESRT -
1201448 A 22 HEHE -
R2014F8H22H # %
£

Resigned on 1 June 2014.
Appointed on 1 June 2014.
Resigned on 22 August 2014.
Appointed on 22 August 2014.

[S BN R )
o s o N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

17. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014, retirement benefit schemes
contribution for directors is borne by CGNPC, the
ultimate parent of the Company, and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “CGNPC Group”). No
apportionment has been made as the directors of the
Company consider that it is impracticable to apportion
this amount between their services to the Group and
their services to CGNPC Group.

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2014: none) were directors and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures in note 17(a) above.
The emoluments of the remaining three (2014: five)
individuals were as follows:

e o REL R EMER

Salaries, allowances and

17.

EERESHMALZH

& (8)
@ EERISFHRAEMS
(%)

(b)

REZE2015F12 A31 Bt
F g &2014F12 A31H
WEEE - EFRRENE
BIERTAAR R Z &R
BRARFEZRENEBA
A (#e [REZEE]) &
E-BANARREZTRA
HERAAEERPEZSE
ERERG M S #ZEE
WAE T - B i s R AE

REFHMAL

RASEEREZR=HMA
T BB (20144 « )
BEARRESTRITHA
- EFHEE LM
17(a) FIELHEE - 2 T =
ZAE(20145 : 55)M%F
AT -

2015
2015 &

2014
2014 4F
HK$’000
FAT

HK$°000
FTExT

other benefits 2,202 5,880
Discretionary bonus BISTEAT 126 7,840
One-off termination —RIEEHRE A

benefits (note (i) (BFEE () - 1,900

2,328 15,620
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B IL &

17. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 17. EZNZESHFMALZH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (continued) ® (8
(b) Individuals with highest emoluments (Continued) b) EBEFMALGEE)
The emoluments were within the following bands: HEMEEATSEER :

2015 2014
2015 20144

Number of Number of
Individuals individuals

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 57T 3 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & CZ 1,500,000 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T 2 2,000,000 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & 7CZ 2,500,000 57T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T £ 3,000,000 /57T -

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 & 7T 2 3,500,000 7T - 3
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 /& 752 4,000,000 57T -

() One-off termination benefits represent payments () — KM B AR A F) AP
in relation to termination of employment for HZE 2014412 A 31
certain staff for planned disposal of certain BIEFEHRARDF
subsidiaries of the Company during the year FrEl S E TH B
ended 31 December 2014. AAIXMNETET

B2 5ROR -

170 CGN Mining Company Limited » f EZTE2 AR A




18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BFEE
Technical
know-how
B A
HK$’000
FET

cosT R
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 A1 H 3,024
Exchange realignment i 3 (10)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12 A 31 H 3,014
Exchange realignment M 5, B (12)
Disposals of subsidiaries i EHTE A 7] (3,002)
At 31 December 2015 MR2015%12 31 H =
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION E-SE 1]
At 1 January 2014 R2014%1 A1 H 2,812
Exchange realignment i 3, ©)
Provided for the year INEEE R 62
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H 2,865
Exchange realignment b 3 R (12)
Provided for the year RF G 15
Disposals of subsidiaries HERNBAR (2,868)
At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 431 H -
CARRYING VALUES FREIE

At 31 December 2015 M2015% 12 A31 B =
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12 A31 H 149
Technical know-how has finite useful lives and are amortised on B R aN s B A5 PR Al 6 AR R

a straight-line basis over five years.

RAFHARREHEH ©

Annual Report 2015 ¢ —Z — H F 45

171




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B IL &

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. Y% - BMERRE

Landand
buildings

HHRET
HK$'000
TR

Leasehold
improve-
ments
BENF
5B
HK$'000
THEL

Plant and
machinery

HERHE
HK$'000
Tz

Motor
vehicles

RE
HK$'000
TR

Furniture,
fixtures and
office
equipment
fRifl - %E
R AR
HK$'000
TEL

Total

a3t
HK$'000
Ti7

COST KA
At1 January 2014, as restated 201441 A1 (BEF) 49,135 5,431 84,217 10,651 8,706 158,140
Exchange realignment B 5 SR (402) (24) (194) 40) (29) (683)
Additions NE - 185 268 116 3,622 4,091
Disposals L& (791) - (1,095) (1,150) (137) (3,179)
At 31 December 2014 and 12014512 A31 B
1 January 2015, as restated R2015%1 A 18
(i &5) 47,942 5,592 83,196 9,577 12,068 168,375
Exchange realignment gl (972) (26) (229) 48) (52) (1,327)
Additions NE - 577 108 - 178 863
Disposals & - (165) - - (185) (350)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHBAR (47,673) (401)  (83,075) (9,529) (7,343)  (153,021)
Transfers from investment BRERENE
properties (note 20) (KizE20) 17,963 - - - - 17,963
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12 531 B 17,260 517 - - 4,666 22,503
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ RiHTERF{E
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2014, as restated R201451 A1 B (FEE5]) 34,197 4,614 57,687 8,966 7,004 112,588
Exchange realignment B 5 SR (100) (18) (190) (30) (19) (357)
Provided for the year AEERE 1,750 342 1,298 613 604 4,607
Impairment losses recognised (note) B REERE (fit:) 647 - 503 100 271 1,521
Eliminated on disposals HER S (183) - (985) (631) (122) (1,921)
At 31 December 2014 and 12014E12 A31 B
1 January 2015, as restated R%2015%1 A (FE5]) 36,311 4,938 58,313 9,018 7828 116408
Exchange realignment AR (119) (17) (264) (34) (70) (498)
Provided for the year TEERE 1,379 178 493 156 1,010 3216
Eliminated on disposals T ER 5 = (160) - - (109) (269)
Disposals of subsidiaries LERBAR (37,146) 4827) (58,542 (9,140) (7,08 (116,693)
At 31 December 2015 R2015512A31R 431 112 - - 1,621 2,164
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2015 R2015612 531 16,829 465 - - 3,045 20,339
At 31 December 2014, asrestated 720144 12 A 31 B (48 &51])11,631 654 24883 559 4240 41967

172 CGN Mining Company Limited e # &£ AR A &




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The carrying values of properties shown above comprise:

19. Y% - - BERRE#)

bt REERRE

2015 2014
20154 2014 4

HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAET

Land and buildings REBTEINZ
outside Hong Kong: THREE
Medium-term lease REIRE

16,829 11,631

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following useful lives
and rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the term
of the lease or 40 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term
of the lease or 5 years

Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 27%

office equipment

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the directors of the
Company conducted a review of the Group’s manufacturing assets
and determined that a number of those assets were impaired, due to
physical damage and technical obsolescence. Accordingly, impairment
losses of approximately HK$647,000, HK$503,000, HK$271,000 and
HK$100,000 were recognised in respect of land and buildings, plant
and machinery, furniture, fixtures and office equipment and motor
vehicles respectively which were used for Yugofoil Group. The directors
of the Company assessed the recoverable amounts of the relevant
assets based on their fair values less costs of disposal using the market
approach with reference to the recent transaction prices which is within
Level 2 fair value hierarchy.

Lt - BB RREEE THIRE
B AORIZ AT Al A 6 B e S K5
BirE

METHE REEFHN

B 405 - AR E
HEMHERE RHEFHNGF -
ARG B A
MREs Mkzs  10% £ 20%
E 20%

B RER 10%ZE27%
NG

B 5E

R

REZE2014F12 A1 BIEFE ARRIES
BHNAEBREEE  RARSEEFRH
ZIEAE YRR R BINRRE ELRE
It EStARMERERZ i RIEF - K&
B R AR RA, - KB RPFARES BIFE
RBIEEEH647,000/4 7T + 503,000787T *
271,000787T & 100,000/ 7T ° NARIESE
REBEEZ AR BERELERANT2EE
AFEE-RERZEHR S EREATS
5 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B IL &

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. Y%  WEKRE &)
(Continued)
Note: (Continued) MycE ()
Details of the Group’s property, plant and equipment for which MN2014F12 A1 BAEEZ W% - BE R
impairment loss had been recognised and information about the fair R EMEDREER L FBERAAERER
value hierarchy as at 31 December 2014 are as follows: ZEAREHNT
Fair value
as at 31
December
Level 2 2014
HZE20145F
12 431 BAY
F_R AL
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FAxT
Land and buildings T RAEF 11,631 11,631
Plant and machinery R TR B8 24,840 24,840
Furniture, fixtures and BRI HER
office equipment HENSI 559 559
Motor vehicles R 273 273
There was no transfer in or out of level 2 during the year ended 31 EHZE2014F 12 A31 8 » WHEEASKE LR
December 2014. The assets of Yugofoil Group were disposed of during BB - MEREBNEEEREBE2015F
the year ended 31 December 2015. 12 A1 BIEFEHE -
20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. BREYE

HK$’000

TR

FAIR VALUE DRE
At 1 January 2014, as restated R2014%1 A1 H (&E5) 121,135
Net decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss B ABZER Y A 2 EF R (3,068)
Exchange realignment b 3 5% (430)
At 31 December 2014 and R2014F 12 A31 B X

1 January 2015, as restated 201541 A1 8 (&K&E5I) 117,637
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss B R BZEIER 2 A St [EFIE 1 735
Exchange realignment BE 5, 28 (2,422)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAT (69,209)
Transferred to property, plant and EEEYX - HER

equipment (note 19) %t (MiEE19) (17,963)
At 31 December 2015 201512 H31H 28,778
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 20. BREWHE &)
Notes: B &
(@) The carrying value of investment properties shown above are (@) FHEREEZREMETICLRF

situated in the PRC and held under medium-term lease.

IR HAERE

(o) All of the Group’s property interests held under operating (o) REEFMARBCEHEFF AR
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are RS IEERNISER R ZYEE
measured using the fair value model and are classified and BEUARERAGE - UHER
accounted for as investment properties. ARRIIVER B -

(©) The fair values of the investment properties held by Yugofoil () HEREERLE A B RR2014
Group on the disposal date and 31 December 2014 and held F12 A31 B RILRF BN 20155
by Beijing Sino-Kazakh on 31 December 2015 and 2014 2014412 A 31 Elﬁﬁ%ﬁ?xﬁ%
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on ENRARBEHERRAEE
that date by an independent qualified professional valuer not ZBIE é*ﬁﬁiﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂiﬁ@;iﬁ%
connected with the Group, Avista Valuation Advisory Limited HBAARARE ([ E]) FrEsT
(“Avista”), who has among its staff members of the Hong Kong hEMEY - VEBHDHETRE
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and BREMBEE®E - HEIHMG
category of property being valued. The valuation was arrived at 1E4%¥Fﬁ&ﬁt¥ﬁ MERERI 2 HEE
on an open market value basis by using the income approach o ZILEREARMAERE &
of capitalising the net rental income receivable from the existing EiﬁﬁfﬁisTEd’% FERENE
tenancies and the reversionary income potentials. RERAHENHS KA FERE

BB & IRATER

(d) There has been no change from the valuation technique used (@) HERMNR E—FEMAE T ER
in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, &R EMEZLAREBME W
the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. (HREREREAERR ZEH

& -

(e The Group’s investment properties that are measured © REBEZREMENN S TERIEZ
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are 2 Jt 828,778,000 7T (2014 £F :
HK$28,778,000 (2014: HK$117,637,000). They are grouped 117,637,000 C) 5t & * JHRAR
into fair value hierarchy Level 3 based on the degree to which EABRENEESBEAAAESE=
the inputs fair value measurements is observable. & o

® Part of the investment properties held by Bejing Sino-Kazakh () HHOLRPREBFENREYSE

has been transferred to owner-occupied purpose since 1
July 2015. The fair value as at the date of change in usage
of approximately HK$17,963,000 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Avista. The
valuation was arrived at on an open market value basis by using
the income approach and the reversionary income potentials.
Increase in fair value of approximately HK$465,000 was
recognised in profit or loss on the date of transfer.

There were no transfers between levels in fair value hierarchy for the two
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

R2015F7ATBERES AR
%o HRNERAARAEAZAAE
817,963,000 7% 7T J9 & 1 X 2 i
EREBNGEEEREREBMAE
RIEAFTEEEESBBAERE

EBIEWRATIES » R ERE L
465,000 7T TN 85 % B HiTE B 5
FRHER o

R2014F 2015512 A 31 HMFERILEA
RESHHIE 2 HHERERE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 22015512 431 B ILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 20. BREWHE &)
Notes: (Continued) sk - (88)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of investment BARENMEE=RAABEFEZER :
properties:
Valuation Significant
technique Key input unobservable inputs
(ENEEST) FEHAE Tr#ERzE2ER
All Investment Income approach Income approach takes into the account  Term yield and reversion yield
properties of net rental income of the properties  ranging from 6% to 15% and

derived from the existing leases and/ 6% to 15% respectively.
or achievable in the existing market

with due allowance for the reversionary

income potential of the leases, which

have been then capitalised to determine

the market value at an appropriate

capitalisation rate.

FRE&REYZ WAE WNETETRERMENRGHEER MEKREXRERKREED 5
B/ FERFTS EARRZEER  NF6%ZE16%K6%ZE15% ©
NFHE - BERARES Z EREAE
NEEEHE - BAREAETUER
EARRE —EE BEAME L R EETE

The fair value measurement of the investment properties determined by HARNEEE ZIREME AL ETE T
using income approach is negatively correlated to the term yield and HAR UGS R e Bl 24 R 2 & 4R o 2Rk
reversion yield. A slight increase in term yield and reversion yield used HERREBNGZREIERSEHYEAR
would result in a significant decrease in fair value measurement of the Bt E8BERYD  R2ZIFA -

properties, vice versa.

The net increase in fair value of approximately HK$735,000 was HZE2015F 12 A31 BILEE - AR EEM
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 SREE49735,0005 0 (2014%F : AR ERIF
(2014: net decrease in fair value of approximately HK$3,068,000). {B493,068,000587T) Ty 825 HER -
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RE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

21. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND 21. I EARERNGEERE
USE RIGHTS

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 £

HK$’000 HK$’000
FER THETT

Analysed for reporting purposes as:  FLEEIRE DT A

Current assets mEEE - 407
Non-current assets EMENEE - 18,860
- 19,267
The prepaid lease payments consist of cost of land use rights EAEEFEAERTHEEEE
in respect of land located in the PRC held under medium-term LA A B 2 b 2 b {5 AR A K
lease. 7N o
22. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 22. R—RBEELE¥ECER
2015 2014
2015 £F 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx AT
(Restated)
(Fe=E=351)
Cost of unlisted interest in R—HAEERF LT
ajoint venture TR AR 793,730 793,730
Share of post-acquisition losses DU EEE B R K H A
and other comprehensive 2HEMAX
expenses (655,458) (5660,679)

138,272 233,051
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B ILFE

22. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2015 and 2014
are as follows:

Place of

incorporations

establishment Class of
Name of entity Form of entity  and operation shares held

R—REEELE¥EEE ©)

A BPENR22015F12A318 &
2014412 31 BHEEBAT ¢

EEEH BERR

Semizbay-U Limited Liability Limited liability ~ Kazakhstan Ordinary shares

Partnership (“Semizbay-U”)  partnership

PREE TR AR AT A A BREFEY  WERiA
(Semizbay-U Limited Liability
Partnership) ([# 27

Summarised financial information of material joint
ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s joint
venture is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.

178 CGN Mining Company Limited o f EZ TR AR A

MR RELEE  FEROER

Julss
e
p==]

Percentage of

ownership held

by the Group

KEEfIS#HE  Principal activities

BAk TEEREE

49% Extraction, preliminary
processing and sale
of uranium oxide on

Semizbay and Irkol

fields
49% R AT RS
Semizbay J Irkol &1
k=¥l
BEAGECENBERYE

AEBEEELENMBENE
FIITX - TXHHMBERRRTY
BEMEREFBMGHREENM
REMATERRABTNEE

RULFLREMBRERT - RELE
ARSI RSB
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

22,

R—REEELE¥EEE ©)

Semizbay-U EPNG
2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Current assets BB E 207,392 797,920
Non-current assets ERBEE 550,317 996,341
Current liabilities mENBE 355,506 1,028,666
Non-current liabilities FRBEME 120,016 289,981
The above amounts of assets and TiEEREBESE
liabilities include the following: BT :
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEIAB 12,991 7,718
Current financial liabilities MBS HAE
(excluding trade and other (“NEIERE AR R HoAth
payables and provisions) (SRR TE R ) 264,943 477,345
Non-current financial liabilities FERBERMBE
(excluding trade and other (TERfEEMER R EMD
payables and provisions) FERFFRIA) 27,648 118,615

2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FA&T

Revenue E 786,887 1,110,794
Profit (loss) for the year REERT (EHE) 10,938 (110,480)
Other comprehensive expenses AREFEMEEHS

for the year (204,365) (103,761)
Total comprehensive expenses AEEREAEMAS

for the year (193,427) (214,241)
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22. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 22, R—BEEL¥EZER W)

Semizbay-U (Continued) AT (E)
The above profit (loss) for the year include the following: R AREES R (E5E) BIE T
2015 2014
2015 F 20144
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Depreciation and amortisation P& Ly 113,549 170,093
Interest income B A 1,017 3,128
Interest expense M EFX 43,233 127,098
Income tax expense TS 16,115 6,431
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to iR G B E 7 a5 E B
the carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture is set out ZEAREERLSRAT
as below:

2015 2014

2015 2014 4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Net assets of Semizbay-U HAREEFE 282,187 475,614
Proportion of the Group’s ownership  REE R A A

interest in Semizbay-U Bz L1 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s REBRH AT

interest in Semizbay-U Rt R ERE A 138,272 233,051
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23. GOODWILL 23. BHE
HK$’000
FHET
cosT Rk
At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 R2014%F1 A1 HX2014F 12 A31H 112,406
Eliminated on disposals of subsidiaries R EHE R )b 8 (112,406)
At 31 December 2015 R2015% 12 A 31 H -
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 R2014F1 A1 B N2014F12 A31 H 112,406
Eliminated on disposals of subsidiaries RSB A Al i 8 (112,406)
At 31 December 2015 R2015612 A31 8 -
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 A31 H -
At 31 December 2014 R20145612 A31 8 -
At 31 December, the amount represents goodwill in relation to MR12A31H ' Z&8 AR 20084F
the acquisition of the entire interest in 41|15 2= 52 2575 fR /A 7) WeiEpD) || 1EZR B8 2B R A w) (7)1
(“I9)11182R") and its subsidiary in 2008. 8% ) REWB AR IERES
B

Upon confirmation of expiry of the food hygiene license of FERLENTER M2 B mEETFE
Osteoform Food Product during the second half year of 2011, R2011 F T FFHH % @ KD
goodwill was fully impaired with reference to a valuation report EVEMATRE L 2 GERSE B2
issued by Avista. BHE—PRERT -
Goodwill was disposed of upon disposal of Yugofoil Group as SRONBTEE 12 &2 35 Fra - M &1
set out in notes 12 and 35. EREEREHERE -
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24. INVENTORIES 24, FE
2015 2014
2015 2014 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFEIT AT
Raw materials EM R - 8,894
Work in progress RS - 368
Finished goods R o - 22,499
Packing materials B E R - 775
- 32,536
=k =k
25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. BWARAR L ERFEIR
2015 2014
2015 2014 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
(Restated)
(&ES)
Trade and bills receivables (note a) FEURBE T N FEUNZE (KfsTa) 125,800 218,054
Less: impairment loss recognised in -~ 3 : JEMER R 2 B HERRE
respect of trade receivables (note b) B8 (f5Eb) - (4,330)
125,800 213,724
Prepayments, deposits and TEFRIE ~ 5T R EA
other receivables (note c) UGB (KisEc) 59,921 13,558
185,721 227,282
The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances. 7N £ B £E ok 5 4L 600 A (Al 4

(]}
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

() At 31 December 2015, included in trade and bills receivables is
amount of approximately HK$125,800,000 (2014: nil) due from
immediate holding company, China Uranium Development,
and nil (2014: HK$194,335,000) due from an intermediate
holding company of the Company, CGNPC-URC, the sole
shareholder of China Uranium Development respectively.

25.

FE L2 Bl R B L it P WAL R O
(%)

Bt &

Rt

(a) M20159F12 431 B + fE U Bk X
rEEROERKEELERAT -
i B & ¥ R 49125,800,0005% 7T
(20144 « &) « R FEU R REIEAR
NCIREEY- T s EA Qe
BHE—RRE) TAT(20144F :
194,335,000/87T) °

(o) The movements in impairment loss of trade receivables were (o) FENRTEREBIEEENT
as follows:

2015 2014

20154 20144

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAxT

At 1 January R1A1H 4,330 4,344

Exchange realignment FE 5 A (18) (14)
Eliminated on disposals

of subsidiaries P E T A BRI 8 (4,312) -

At 31 December M®12H31H = 4,330

At 31 December 2014, included in the impairment loss of trade
receivables are individually impaired trade receivables with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$4,330,000 (2015: nil)
which were due to long outstanding.

(c) At 31 December 2015, included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are interest receivable of approximately
HK$176,000 (2014: HK$1,452,000) and nil (2014:
HK$469,000) due from CGNPC Huasheng Investment Limited
(“Huasheng”) and HEZMBEEREE AR (‘PEZIE)
respectively, fellow subsidiaries of the Company, in relation
to advances deposited in Huasheng and #E#ZE1 7% for
obtaining financial services.

At 31 December 2015, included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are approximately HK$3,577,000
(2014: HK$63,000) and nil (2014: HK$496,000) due from an
intermediate holding company, CGNPC-URC in relation to
interest income for overdue payment and expenses paid on
behalf of CGNPC-URC respectively.

At 31 December 2015, included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables are approximately HK$16,764,000 (2014: nil)
for deposit paid for the acquisition of 19.99% equity interest
of Fission Uranium Corp. (“Fission”) pursuant to an agreement
which is detailed in note 42.

R2014F 12 A31 A » EUARTKAY
B 18 R B 45 (B Bl (E A9 8 U AR
KA FHERR49 4,330,000 7T (2015
F:F) fEHRERHERRBAR
E3E -

() M2015F 12 431 H * 5| A 8 +f
I - Fle REMERREAEEHE
HFERRERMEA R &P BV S
BREEAR([PEZMB]) 28
AR & B AR TS M FEU A 7S
FEM R EARERARE R AR ([
B R EZMBEFE S B L
176,000 7T(2014 4 : 1,452,000
BIT) R Z (2014 ¢ 469,000/87T) °

M20159F12 84818 + 7| A ¥ 1+
FIE - T REMERZRIBEAEHE
EHEFERFE WA RREPE
REHERRAXMNOER B
FEZEERNTIED B BEL
3,577,000/ (2014 4F : 63,0008
70) R ZE (2014 4F : 496,000787T) °

12015412 A318 * 7 A & ft
B -~ 5@ REMERFIERIRE
faE 42 FE O ek - Wi Fission
Uranium Corp. ([Fission]) 19.99%
AT NHE € @ BREL
16,764,000/ 7T (2014 & : &) ©
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25.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Group normally grants to its trade
customers credit periods for pharmaceutical and food segment
ranging from 90 days to 180 days. The pharmaceutical and
food segment was discontinued upon disposal of Yugofoil
Group set out in notes 12 and 35.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group normally grants to
its trade customer credit periods for natural uranium segment
ranging from 25 days to 30 days after delivery dates.

The following is an aged analysis of the trade and bills
receivables net of impairment loss recognised on trade and
bills receivables presented based on the invoice date, which
approximates the respective revenue recognition dates, at the

end of the reporting period.

25.

FE Wi e ok B L At P W RK IR
(#)

R2014F 12 831 H » AEE—#
KTEERRRANDHESHEFW
RE1BOKRZIEEH - ZERREM
DR EEREREERTHES
428 (INEfRE 12 2 35 Ff &) ©

R20154F 2201412 A31 H » &
EERAABHOBETHESIRR
BREEANEERNTF2HE
308 -

RmEHEAEER - ARKESER
FHRENBRREAMAEE - Mk
ERERRERRR 2 BRI N &
WRBREDITAT

2015 2014

20154 2014 4

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHET

Within 30 days 30 KA 125,800 180,448
31-60 days 31 E 60K = 28,255
61-90 days 61 ZE 90K - 2,755
Over 90 days #BiBo0 K - 2,266
125,800 213,724

As at 31 December 2014, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance, carrying amount of approximately
HK$23,007,000 (2015: nil) which was past due as at the end of
the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group did not hold any collateral over this
balance. The ageing of the balance was 31 to 180 days at the
end of the reporting period.
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R2014F12A31H A& EH
EWERERBDEREDEEARY
23,007,000 7t (20154 : &) &Y
FEMFRIE - ZREN RS R E &
B BARKEWRBRESEIED
BiE - AEBWERZEERTE
EREA S - RS ERERAER
#5311 2180k °
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

HK$'000
THET

2015

20155

USD’000

TEx
2015
2015

2014
20144

Presented in:

SRR

Trade and other FEURBE SN R E At
receivables JEWFRIR 35,850 - -

25.

2014
20144

2015

P Wi BR K % L th PR WK KR
(#)

RNEBABFEBERNAEEREIA
YNz EEEDI(E 2 FE U BR 3k M EL b B
WkIgan R

RMB’000
ARBTR
2015 2014

20146
(Restated)
(&5)

CDN$'000

Tz
2015
2015

2014
20144

2,991 671 3,000 =

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
Huasheng and #E#%817%, fellow subsidiaries of the
Company, performed certain treasury activities for the Group
and CGNPC Group. Pursuant to the arrangement, the fellow
subsidiaries receive funds from the Group, pool the funds
together with funds from CGNPC Group companies and
provide intra-group financial services for the Group and
CGNPC Group. The fellow subsidiaries will reimburse interest
to the Group with reference to the prevailing market interest
rate. At 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately
HK$476,586,000 (2014: HK$1,299,336,000) and HK$2,000
(2014: HK$31,860,000) due from Huasheng and = ZEi% 81 75
respectively under this arrangement. During the year ended 31
December 2015, the Group earned interest income amounting
to approximately HK$6,221,000 (2014: HK$16,186,000) and
HK$98,000 (2014: HK$586,000) from Huasheng and A &% 87
7% respectively under this arrangement.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-bearing ranging from
0.54% to 1.835% per annum and repayable within one year
according to terms of deposit agreements.

26.

39 ANETEN = N

I

HE2015F 22014512 A31 H 1
FE  ERRTPEZVBRAAEE
kP EZEEETE THMEES -
BIEZHE - AREWNBRRNRAER
WEE® - $EcEPEZEEN
BSES  WARNSBERPERSE
EiRHERNT S B ARES - BT
BARBELRERNTSHER
AEEEMFE - R20156F 12 A
318 - NEBRBZTHEEIE
BR R FR E A% B 75 TE £ 476,586,000
% (20144 : 1,299,336,000
% T ) k2,000 JT(2014 4 :
31,860,000/87T) ° BLZE 2015F 12
A31BIEFE  AEBREBEZL
o B 2E % R R A% B 75 R E R
BULA#76,221,0008 7T (2014 4F :
16,186,000 7t ) 5% 98,000/ 7T
(2014 4F : 586,000787T) °

FIETHEE - 1£0.54% £ 1.35%
TENFH X B RARIRTT 2 ek
{EFRBR—FREE -
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26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
of approximately HK$2,821,000 (2014: HK$2,821,000)
represents unsettled amount for purchase of enterprise
resource planning (the “ERP”) system from CGN Power Co.,
Limited (‘CGN Power”), and approximately HK$70,000 (2014:
nil) for unsettled amount for business and administration service
fee payable to CGN Global Uranium Limited (“CGN Global”), for
which ultimate parent is CGNPC.

The amount due to CGN Power and CGN Global is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within a specified credit term.

The Group’s amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities are set out below:

Presented in:

IRA

26.

HK$°000
TAET

2015

20154

(Restated)

FEUk,FEAS B 2 B B 2 F]

FIE ()

R2015F 12 A31H BN R &
B /8 A Bl FIE 2 492,821,000 74 7T
(2014 4F : 2,821,000 7t ) Bl [ A
BEZENRDBRAR(HE
Z)BEREERE(TERP]) R
B2 ARERNEE - Rk#70,0007%
TCRO14%F « ) BN EHB R 1TH
fR# & & CGN Global Uranium
Limited ([ CGN Global |) (&4 &
RAIRPER) WAREESE -

FEfHeh 4% 2 CGN Globa 78 Jh 4
I T ERBIREE R HER

BRI o

AEE Y () BRHERRR
FARBESEERELREZ R
BEEAIN BRI ERTIET

RMB’000

AR¥TR
2014 2015 2014
2014 4 2015 20146
(Restated)

(&3) (&51)

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries AMEESENGIERE] 326,544 313,614 1 25,133
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries R ZRB R RHE - 2,232 2,232
27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 27. HRITEERES

At 31 December 2015, unpledged bank balances comprise
of bank balance of approximately HK$285,518,000. Bank
balance carry interest at average market rate of 0.22% per
annum.

At 31 December 2014, unpledged bank balances comprise of
short-term bank deposits with original maturity of three months
or less of approximately HK$21,262,000 and bank balance
of approximately HK$212,271,000. Short-term bank deposits
carry fixed interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.64% per
annum and bank balances carry interest at average market rate
of 0.36% per annum.
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R20155 12 A 31 H - EEMEIT
17 B IEIR1T 17 5149 285,518,000
PBTT o SR1TIT FURE E 15 F F) =&
0.22% 518 °

R2014412 A31 B » EIEHIEIT
EEeEREEEMA=M@MARNZ
S R TE K 4921,262,00078 7T M.
R1THF47212,271,0007 7T ° &
HRITF IR E EF N ENF0.01
EZEA164E5E - MRITEFET
HMIEHME0.36 BB °
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27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Continued)

Bank balances and cash of the Group at 31 December 2015
include amounts of approximately HK$35,725,000 (2014:
HK$6,864,000) denominated in RMB, conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations..

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant

group entities are set out below:

27.

BITEERBEE€ &)

AEBR2015F12H31H 2 R
THEERASBEAARBEE 2
FRIE 435,725,000 7T (2014 4F -
6,864,000/87T) © X H EISNE EIE
RBZHE - ARBHINER IR -

HREBBEARIZEREE -

REEAEHEER BRI EE A
SN BEHE 2 BRITRGFERBR 2
T

HK$’000 RMB’000 USD’000 CDN$’000
THT ARETR TEx Tz
Presented in: 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
SIRA 20156 2014%F 20155 2014F 2015%F 2014%F 2015 20144
(Restated) (Restated)
(s&7) (7))
Bank balances
and cash BAEELRES 1,862 827 29,930 317 945 1,035 41,535 =
28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. FERIFKRHMESFE

2015 2014

2015 20144

HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FAT

(Restated)

(#eE7)

Trade and bills payables FE AR R FE R R R 42,637 159,768
Accrued expenses and

other payables FEET S Rk B At FEAT FRIE 3,816 82,962

46,453 242,730

At 31 December 2015, included in trade and bills payables
is amount of approximately HK$42,637,000 (2014:
HK$126,940,000) due to a joint venture of the Company,
Semizbay-U.

R20154 12 A31 8 ' 3IAZ S5E
R BN 245 BB 4 42,637,000
BTT20144F : 126,940,000/ ) &
JERANAF] 2 & & 12 Semizbay-U
BIFRIE ©

Annual Report 2015 ¢ —Z — H F 45




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B ILFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 28. EMAERFREMENSKE

(&)
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables RREPRBAER - RIgEZEAH
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting 27|27 BRI R RN ZE 2 BRI
period: U
2015 2014
2015 £ 20144
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Within 30 days 30 KA 42,637 145,282
31-60 days 31 260K - 2,724
61-90 days 61 290K - 347
Over 90 days BB 90 K - 11,415
42,637 159,768
The average credit period on purchases of goods was 30 days REEMZFHEEHMRXERR
(2014: 30 days) after delivery date. The Group has financial risk 30K (20144 : 30K) - AEHEE
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are B B RBREERR - ARERAT
settled within the credit time frame. BRENFERNEESHNEE -
The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated in AEEUBBAEEEREER U
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant Shz EEE T B2 IR R H A FE
group entities are set out below: AT -

HK$’000 RMB’000 Pound sterling
TET ARMT T (“GBP”) *000
TR
Presented in: 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

HIRA 2015F 20144F 2015%F 20144F 2015F 20144
(Restated)
(&&E71))

Trade and other JERERFR M E b
payables FEftRRIE 1,790 1,870 978 2,864 7 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

AMOUNT DUE FROM (TO) AN
INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the amount
due from an intermediate holding company represents the
rental receivable from CGNPC-URC.

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the amount
due to an intermediate holding company represents unsettled
amount of management service provided by and the expenses
paid by CGNPC-URC on behalf of the Group.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free, and repayable within
a specified credit period.

The Group’s amount due from/(to) an intermediate holding
company that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

Presented in:

SRR

Amount due from an intermediate

29.

HK$'000
BETR

2015

20154

(Restated)

FEU (1) —RIch R IR
AE

MR 20154%12 A31 B & 2014412
A 318 Uk R A R ZRIERDEE
W iz EAS -

MR2015F12 A31 B K 20144F12
A318 - B —REFEER A R
HAH B RN EE RS
EEMHAEEEERKE

AR TYEE - NEt B RRE W
ZIFHNEEHR -

AEEEY(fF) — B EER
NEFRIBAEBASEEBELRE
2 BN ¥ TIES S0
T~

RMB’000
ARBTR

2015 2014

2015 2014 &

(Restated)

(&E7)

2014
20144

(&=3)

holding company Y — R IR A AR - 8,440 6,000
Amount due to an intermediate

holding company [T —FE R B A AlFUR 3,146 7,040 3,942
AMOUNT DUE TO A JOINT VENTURE 30. ENf—BEeELERE

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the amount represents
other taxes in relation to purchase of natural uranium
resources from Semizbay-U, a joint venture of the Company,
charged by the local government of Semizbay-U. The
amount is reimbursed to Semizbay-U in accordance with a
purchase agreement entered into between the Company and
Semizbay-U.

The balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayable within
a specified credit period.

20154 K 201412 A31 H © #%
FIEEEHEARRGERES A
ARBAAHERMZAHAAE
HWBUTHE TR o sk B IR
RAREH AR ZHEERZEM
SANE VNI

R DB - TEr B RIRIEESR
EHRER -
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. IR
Number of
shares Amount
BaEE &8
HK$’'000
FETT
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each FIEEO0.01 BT Tk
Authorised: JERE
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014, R2014%F1 A1H -
1 January 2015 and 2014912 H318 -
31 December 2015 20151 A1 B &
2015412 A 31 H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE :
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 R®2014F1A1H »
and 1 January 2015 201412 31 H K& 3,332,586,993 33,326
201541 A1 H
Issue of shares upon conversion REHB AR ES
of convertible bonds 2217 1,304,347,826 13,043
At 31 December 2015 2015912 A31 H 4,636,934,819 46,369

During the year ended 31 December 2015, convertible bonds
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$300,000,000 were
converted into 1,304,347,826 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at a conversion price of HK$0.23 per share.

All the ordinary shares issued during the year ended 31
December 2015 rank pari passu with the then existing shares
in all respects.

190 CGN Mining Company Limited » f EZ TR AR A

REE2015F 12 A31 BILESE -

K< ¥EA $£/5300,000,000 78 TTHY
AR ES H R IR EEAR0.23
7S 70 £ 1,304,347,826 (R B IR B B
0.01 BITHY & AR

NEZE2015F12 A 31 BILEERT
BEBRITHTEREZRIBERND
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 18 August 2011, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds (the “CB”) in principal amount of
HK$600,000,000 to China Uranium Development. The CB are
denominated in HK$. The CB entitled the holder to convert
the CB in full or in part (in an amount of HK$1,000 and integral
multiples thereof) into the ordinary shares of the Company at
any time on or after the date of issue of the CB up to seven
days prior to the maturity date on 17 August 2016 at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.23 per share, subject to adjustments.
If the CB had not been converted, it would be redeemed on 17
August 2016 at its principal amount.

The CB contained two components, liability and equity
elements. The equity element was presented in equity heading
“equity component of convertible bonds”. The fair value of the
liability component is calculated as the present value of the
stream of future cash flows. The effective interest rate of the
liability component is 5.43% per annum. The movement of the
liability component of the CB for the year is set out below:

32.

AR ES

RAREF201148 A 18 H [7) 9 B 8
¥ 3B #1774 € %5 600,000,000
Bz EEARRES ([ AT
&%) o IRRES OB ITETHE o
AMRESFE B AR TR
REH BBz 2@ EZ B H
(20164F8 817 H )R-t H Z (£ (I
AT MR ES BB D (25
751,000 70 & B oS8 1=y 5
EIREFR0.23/B L (A THAR)E
BRARNREBRRD o fMRpEE
BAARES - Bl 2016458 A

ABRESEREMED - AEMR
ARERD o BRAFED R [ AIHARES
BAED | BT 2 A2 - B
EHDORDABARRBRSREZR
Bt E - AEHD < ERFNERRF
M 5.43% o T RETIF AR
BERABERD 2 &S

HK$’000
FERT

At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 A1 H 520,705
Imputed interest charged (note 10) HERM B (FFE10) 28,802
At 31 December 2014 R2014%F 12 A31 H 549,507
Imputed interest charged (note 10) HERN B (HFE10) 21,990
Conversion of shares (note 36) R (FisE36) (281,564)
At 31 December 2015 M 2015%F12 531 H 289,933
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION 33. EEMIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets UTABRREE LBEFERERLZ
recognised and movements thereon during the current and FERERIBEEMNEEANRER
prior year: B -
Change in
fairvalue ~ Changein
of landand fair value of
buildings  properties
and upon transfer Interest
Accumulated  investment to investment in a joint
tax depreciation  properties  properties venture
IHRET NRERE -BeE
NRRENE REMERZ tE2
ZIHENE ARERE  DAERD BR b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(= %5) (= %5) (& =5)
At 1 January 2014 R20141 A 1H 6,206 7,124 3,386 9,234 25,950
Credited to profit or loss RiB&FTA 775 (820) = (5,779) (5,824)
Exchange realignment P 57, % 351 (7) (11) (56) 257
At 31 December 2014 R2014%F12 318 7,332 6,277 3,375 3,399 20,383
Credited to profit or loss PIEZETA 462 261 - 1,049 1,772
Transfer from investment HREMESE
properties o property, BE  BERR
plant and equipment 2,341 (2,341) - - -
Eliminated on disposals LERB A AR
of subsidiaries (7,073 (201) (3,377) - (10,651)
Exchange realignment Rk (139) (269) 2 (239) (645)
At 31 December 2015 R2015512A31H 2,923 3,721 - 4,209 10,859

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused

RBEMEEER  NEBAH

tax losses of approximately HK$60,858,000 (2014:
HK$177,682,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the tax losses of approximately HK$60,858,000 (2014:
HK$177,682,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$60,858,000 (2014: HK$177,682,000) that will expire
after five years from the year of assessment to which they
relate to. The amount brought forward from 2014 decreased
by approximately HK$116,978,000 is due to the disposal of
Yugofoil Group.

HEARRF 2 RBARIEE
1849752 60,858,000 7% 7T (2014 4 :
177,682,000 7T ) ° B AR BETE AR
o ) HOR - B 4 5t £960,858,000
B7L(20144F : 177,682,000/ 7T ) ZFt
HEBHREENBEE - RERH
TBE 1B 4760,858,00078 70 (2014 4F :
177,682,000 7T ) 1 74 BL H AR A 2 57
HMEERTRAFRER BARLER
SREE - RN2014F£ENSTRD
#7116,978,000/8 T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of nil (2014: HK$67,771,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
differences can be utilised. The balance as at year ended 31
December 2014 was from Yugofoil Group.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to nil (2014: HK$2,253,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The
balance as at 31 December 2014 was from Yugofoil Group.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER
COMMON CONTROL

The Group adopts merger accounting for common control
combinations in respect of the acquisition of Beijing Sino-
Kazakh during the year ended 31 December 2015.

On 16 May 2014, the Company entered into a share transfer
agreement with CGNPC-URC to acquire 100% equity interest
of Beijing Sino-Kazakh at a consideration of approximately
HK$1,030,899,000. The acquisition was completed on 15 April
2015.

The ultimate parent of the Company and Beijing Sino-Kazakh
is CGNPC and the aforesaid transactions are regarded as
business combinations under common control.

No significant adjustments were made to the net assets and net
results of the above entities as a result of the common control
combination to achieve consistency of accounting policies.

33.

34.

ELERIE (2)

RREHRHEEER  AEBAT
0 8 G B 2= %8 0 T (2014 4F ¢

67,771,000 7T ) ° B3R A ] &E
5 FERR i 5 ) AT 4 8 £R B] 300 =
B IS A AR R =R
BRELEMIEEE ° R 20145 12
A1 BN#EREHERER -

RIREZEMMEHE - B 2008 1
A1 B8 gt KB A B FTHRER
i M B K 2 B BB TEHFL © B
RASEEEET BRI GERERE Y
FrfEl - B BRI Z 88N K] B
ARl R R B E - R E
B sk gt R BB A R 25T &
FIFTELRFEEAZ (20145 -
2,253,000 7 7T ) 1 i i ZE %1 18 #%
& - 2014612 31 B 285K
B ERER -

HEZEHT 2%BE 6

REBEZE2015F12 831 B ik
FEUERAL AR S A RS &
BHREHrERTE -

R2014F5816H » ARQ RIS HEHA
Btz sh 3R] AR (D BE 5 hhad A MK B
bR 2 100% B « RIEBEL
#£51,080,899,0007 T © 7% W B R
20154 4 H 15 H5ERk ©

RNV SI ARGl b e S SN
A EZ A R SR KRR
BTN EBAG

R EREHIA R EBEFERER
ZHE - B ER LA EEFE
ENFEEELERHE
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER 34.

COMMON CONTROL (continued)

Statements of adjustments for business combinations under

common control occurred during the year ended 31 December
2015 on the Group’s financial position as at 31 December
2015, 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2014 and the results
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014
are summarised as follows:

HEZS T 2¥%E 6
(#)

FEZE 201545 12 A31 B [FFEE 3
A2 HEESIT 2 E A fF ¥4
S£ER2015F12 831 H ~ 20144
128318 k201451 818 28
AR AR = 2015412 A 31 H
K2014F12 A31 HILFE 2 ¥4

FrYERRRIEL T ¢
The Group
including
Beijing
The Group Sino-Kazakh
excluding Beijing and
Sino-Kazakh and excluding
discontinued Beijing Adjustments discontinued
operation  Sino-Kazakh (Note 1) operation
AEETBLE AEEBAEL
ERARHR ZHR#HERE
FEEMEE  LRPRH  AR(ME1) EEEEEEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT THT THET
Year ended 31 BE2015512A31 ALEE
December 2015
Revenue EETE 700,391 3,031 - 703,422
Profit before tax SRyl 250,082 3,201 - 253,283
Income tax expense B (48,067) (1,853) - (49,920)
Profit for the year REEEF] 202,015 1,348 - 203,363
As at 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 A31 B
Non-current assets ERBBE 1,034,110 184,178 (1,030,899) 187,389
Current assets REBE 911,944 45,967 - 957,911
Total assets BEE 1,946,054 230,145 (1,030,899) 1,145,300
Current liabilities TEHAE 369,941 4,850 - 374,791
Non-current liabilities FREEE 153 10,706 = 10,859
Total liabilities wak 370,094 15,556 - 385,650
NET ASSETS FEE 1,575,960 214,589 (1,030,899) 759,650
Capital and reserves BRREE
Share capital AR 46,369 944,534 (944,534) 46,369
Reserves FE 1,529,591 (729,945) (86,365) 713,281
Equity attributable to owners A AHEA A e 1R
of the Company 1,575,960 214,589 (1,030,899) 759,650
Non-controlling interests JERERRRERS - - - -
TOTAL EQUITY Emias 1,575,960 214,589 (1,030,899) 759,650
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER 34. HEEF T 2EBEES G
COMMON CONTROL (continued) (&)

The Group

including Beijing

The Group Sino-Kazakh
excluding Beijing and
Sino-Kazakh and excluding

discontinued Beiing ~ Adjustments  discontinued
operation  Sino-Kazakh (Note 2) operation
ARETEE REEBHEL
ERR#R RABHETE
FEMER LRk BR(T2) BERELER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT T FAT

Year ended HZ2014%F

31 December 2014 12831 AILEE
Revenue EEE 1,147,920 3,787 - 1,151,707
Profit (loss) before taxation KRt AT &R (E51E) 135,511 (51,264) - 84,247
Income tax (expense)

credit FiiEit (R &% (28,200) 5,738 = (22,462)
Profit (loss) for the year REE R (ER) 107,311 (45,526) - 61,785
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER 34. HEEF T 2EBES G
COMMON CONTROL (continued) (&)

The Group The Group

excluding Beijing Beiing  Adjustments including Beijing

As at 31 December 2014

R2014%E12 A31 8

Sino-Kazakh
REEAERE
pipzalicr
HK$'000
T

Sino-Kazakh

plAUil
HK$'000
TEL

(Note 2)

B (HE2)
HK$'000
TAL

Sino-Kazakh
REEBHEL
R
HK$'000
TAL

Non-current assets FRoBEE 130,506 281,158 - 411,664
Current assets RBEE 1,784,691 47,991 - 1,832,682
Total assets BEE 1,915,197 329,149 - 2,244,346
Current liabilities nEEE 273,502 1477 - 274,979
Non-current liabilities E =N 560,411 9,479 = 569,890
Total liabilities aaE 833,913 10,956 - 844,869
NET ASSETS REE 1,081,284 318,193 - 1,309,477
Capital and reserves BARG R
Share capital R 33,326 944,534 (944,534) 33,326
Reserves i 1,046,317 (626,341) 944,534 1,364,510
Equity attributable to RAFHE ANEGER

owners of the Company 1,079,643 318,193 - 1,397,836
Non-controling interests JEER R 1,641 - - 1,641
TOTAL EQUITY EmsE 1,081,284 318,193 - 1,399,477
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER 34. HREZEFH T 2E£KE 06
COMMON CONTROL (Continued) (#&)

The Group The Group
excluding including
Beijing Beijing  Adjustments Beijing
Sino-Kazakh  Sino-Kazakh (Note 2)  Sino-Kazakh

FEBTBH FERBiEL
RS LR BE(HE2) R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEE  TER  TER AR

As at 1 January 2014 R2014F181R

Non-current assets FRBEE 138,367 385,855 - 524,222
Current assets REEE 1,514,028 45,209 - 1,559,287
Total assets BEE 1,652,395 431,064 - 2,083,459
Current liabilities nEaE 42,457 990 - 43,447
Non-current liabilities e TEIN=KET 531,362 15,293 - 546,655
Total liabilities FEY=Ni 573,819 16,283 - 590,102
NET ASSETS FERE 1,078,576 414,781 - 1,493,357
Capital and reserves BARGE
Share capital B 33,326 944,534 (944,534) 33,326
Reserves = 1,043,452 (529,753 944,534 1,458,233
Equity attributable to AR AEIGER
owners of the Company 1,076,778 414,781 - 1,491,559
Non-controling interests ~ JEiZ kg 1,798 - - 1,798
TOTAL EQUITY BmEsE 1,078,576 414,781 - 1,493,357
Notes: BT
1. The adjustment represents elimination of the share capital 1. FAEE AL AP e AR AN B AR K
of Beijing Sino-Kazakh against their investment costs. The AREHV Y - R2015F 12 A31 H=
differences have been recorded in other reserve as at 31 O N EEEBAR °
December 2015.
2. The adjustment represents transfer the share capital of Beijing 2. ARIEILRPREARZAR 2014F
Sino-Kazakh to capital reserves as at 31 December 2014 and 1818 k2014612 A31 HElEE
1 January 2014. BINGHE °
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER
COMMON CONTROL (continued)

The effects of adopting merger accounting for common control
combination on the Group’s basic profit (loss) per share from
continuing operations for the year ended 31 December 2015
and 2014 are as follows:

34.

é}lﬂ%%ﬂ?Z%i’%éﬁ

HREBAEERBE2015F &
2014 12 A 31 B ILFERFHE M
EBERERRT (B18) 2 LEE
HlEHERMEHETHEZVERI
W

2015 2014

2015 2014 4

HK cents HK cents

A4l il

(Restated)

(#&E75))

Figures before adjustments TR B 4.99 3.22

Adjustments arising on common R £ RS G

control combination EA A 0.03 (1.37)
Restated figures after adjustments TR 2 BHIBIE 5.02 1.85
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

35.

As set out in note 12, on 25 March 2015, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of its 100%
equity interest in Yugofoil Group, to an independent third party

for a total consideration of HK$101,250,000.

Included in HK$101,250,000 there is (i) a consideration for the
disposal of 100% equity interests in Yugofoil at HK$61,250,000
and (i) an assignment of an advance owing to the Group by
Yugofoil of HK$40,000,000 to an independent third party.

N

HERBR AR

B sE12F7 2 K 0 201543
A25H ' REBATVHE MK
Wk RBUE= H
EREE 2K - 4
101,250,000 7T °

40,000,000 7T ©

HK$’000
FET

The net assets of Yugofoil Group at waREENHE B
the date of disposal were as follows: ZEEFENT :
Intangible assets B EE 134
Property, plant and equipment M - B NRE 36,328
Investment properties WEMZ 69,209
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights ~ +#b s FAETE N T E 0B 19,040
Inventories =8 38,175
Trade and other receivables JFEE LT B 350 % L At B LU SR IR 35,360
Bank balances and cash RITETF MRS 15,277
Trade and other payables FE - Rk S EL M R S kIR (112,857)
Value added tax payable FEIIE{ER (237)
Income tax payable FESFRS R (4,624)
Amount due to ultimate holding company FES B AIERR A B FRIE (40,000)
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIBEE (10,651)
Net assets disposed of b EEEFRE 45,154
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMRB AR Z WS
Consideration received and receivable B R ERAE
Cash received 2YIRE 66,250
Deferred cash consideration FERERE
(included in other receivable) (FT A E fth e U 5k IE) 35,000
101,250
Total consideration BRE 101,250
Net assets disposed of b E&EFE (45,154)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect  BREEKB AR EEFE 2 2:5HE R
of the net assets of the subsidiaries ERNKENB AT
reclassified from equity to profit or loss iR R E
on loss of control of the subsidiary MofEEER 81,270
Non-controlling interests IR R 1,674
Assignment of amounts due HEER R REERIE
from Yugofoil Group (40,000)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries I E B A ALz Was 99,040
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELE 2B RAFRE
Cash consideration received FTYCER & (B 66,250
Bank balances and cash disposed of b ERTEFRIAS (15,277)
50,973
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35.

36.

37.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year ended 31
December 2015 contributed approximately HK$35,221,000
and HK$4,400,000 to the Group’s revenue and net loss for the
year respectively.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the bondholder
converted convertible bonds in aggregate principal amount
of HK$300,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.23 per
share whereby a respective total number of 1,304,347,826
conversion shares were issued. As a result of the conversion,
share capital and share premium of the Company have
been increased by approximately HK$13,043,000 and
HK$337,934,000 respectively while the carrying amount
of the convertible bonds and the equity component of
convertible bonds have been decreased by approximately
HK$281,564,000 and HK$69,413,000 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group acquired
an ERP system of approximately HK$2,821,000 from a fellow
subsidiary and included in property, plant and equipment. The
consideration was set off through current account with the
fellow subsidiary as set out in note 26.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting held on 2 June 2010, a new share option scheme
(2010 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted. Details of which
were set out in the Company’s circular dated 27 April 2010.
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35.

36.

37.

HEMB AT #)

#H E2015F12A31H L F [E -
HEMBRARRAFEEHAER
B &R RERFES R ERA
35,221,000/ 7T } 4,400,000/ 7T °

TEFBRERS

MNEZE 2015412 A31 B ILFE
BEHFFB ARLRESTR0.23%
TL R RN & 584 #£A5300,000,000
BT IR E S - At 31T
1,304,347,826 (% f& 15 ° FAF &34
AT AR R AR AN K A% 1 K AT AR (B
HRAF S R K EREED B
#281,564,000 7% 7T &% 69,413,000
BT+ AR RRIR D RIS R AR (5
(B B AN4913,043,0007% 7T M
337,934,000 7T °

MNEZE2014512 A31 BILFEE
AEEMRREWEBRRABELY
2,821,000 8 7THIERP R4t - W&t
AWIE - BB RS - REERAZRK
B A R LA R Bh AR K 8 (RN B 7% 26
F&) o

BT

RIER 2010F 6 A2 HE/T 2 IR
RERE BB —IBTRRARSE
AR B ERA—IEF B ERTE
(fe0105 AR #ERT &I ) - BEAEE
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The board of directors of the Company may, at their
discretion, grant option to the eligible participant including any
employees, any non-executive directors, directors, suppliers,
customers, advisors, consultants, joint venture partners and
any shareholders of any members of the Group or any invested
entities or any holders of any securities issued by any members
of the Group or any invested entities. The maximum number
of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all options granted under its share option scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of its issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the 2010 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of passing the relevant resolution
adopting the share option scheme unless it is approved by
shareholders in a general meeting of the Company. The
maximum number of shares issuable under the options to
each eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the shares in issue unless it is approved by shareholder
in a general meeting of the Company. Any grant of options
under the share option scheme to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates must be approved by independent non-
executive directors (excluding any independent non-executive
director who is the grantee of the options). Any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or to any of their respective
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, in any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no share
options were granted, cancelled or exercised and all share
options granted had been lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2012.

37.

BIRERHE (2

ARBEZGURBERAERZH
ERNBERE  BRAKEIEMK
BRRSEERR 2EMES -
FRTEE EFX HER X
F - B EARA - AEBHERK
REAEEERKE QR THIRE
ERABITESZIFAA  BEIT
ERBA R R BEAE B A AR
P ERAAIE (] EL o R A i 51 81 AT IR th
B Al BT 2 AR BIRIDEL
ERE-PS &4yt VNI
B BT Z 30% ° BRITRARE
2010 4F & B HE T & R AN SR B {4
H A BB A = I P IR H B AR T A

TR TRBIBRMN
BRI AARRERER
HE BTN 2 10% - FRIERRERR
ARRABBRASHERIER © bR
FERARRRIRRA SRR
BRIBREER2BENE[12(E
ARIRRB R P 1T 2 IR D AR
REREBITRNZ1% - RIERE
B EBIRARREAES - 1T
BERTERRABESBZHE
AR H B AR R T FETT
EX(TERRA/BREARAZ
BYIFFRITES) ZHE - WRE
1218 AR AR B Z EEBIR
HIBUIFATEFREETZE 2B
BATEH 2 BREBAE BTK
72.0.1% K #2{5385% 5,000,000 7
TC(RBROVE L B R W E
A8 AIARARARBRRASE
PRERHLE ©

REZE2015F £2014F 12 A31 H
IEFE - $ERE - s HITEE
ARG RRAE - MBI Z 20124 12 A 31
HIEFE - FTBERIEE R -
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. EEAEALRS
@) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated @) BRI ARG B SRR A H
financial statements, the Group had the following it 75 4 5 E AN 0 ANEE
material transactions with related parties during the FRNEB@EEALTEEA
year: ATHERRS :
2015 2014
2015%F 20146
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TAT
(Restated)
(FE=5)
Sales of natural uranium AR B E LR HE
resources to CGNPC-URC RAMER ) 297 1,147,920
Sales of natural uranium M B REREE
resources to China Uranium RAWER
Development (i) 700,094 -
Purchases of natural uranium H Semizbay-UE &
resources from Semizbay-U RAMER (i 416,892 414,229
Other taxes related to BB Semizbay-U
purchases of natural uranium BERAHERN
resources from Semizbay-U HitiE (i 3,293 11,854
Management fee paid fHamERHERREREE
to CGNPC-URC il 3,359 3778
ERP system acquired from R B %88 A ERP 24t
CGN Power (iv) - 2,821
Loan interest income B Bl B R A
received from China ERMBWA
Uranium Development (v) - 3,560
Interest income from overdue REZHEERERE
receivable from MRS 2 RIS MRA
OGNPC-URC 0 3514 580
Loan interest income EREFHFBWA
from Huasheng (vi) 6,221 16,186
Loan interest income from R E#%61%  mERHB2FIELA (ix) 98 586
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. EREEALRS @)
(Continued)
@) (Continued) @ (&)
2015 2014
2015 £ 2014 5
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FfaE FEx T
(Restated)
(&E5)
Rental income from REPEZMEZ
CGNPC-URC WA (vii) 3,031 3,787
Trade deposit interest income R E#H AR E 5
form Semizbay-U R 2 A (il 3,326 -
Business service fee paid to  [A] CGN Global 3z {5 #Y
CGN Global EBRGE (viii) 24 =
Administration service fee paid A CGN Global 3 1+
to CGN Global RITEBRFS & (vii) 46 =
Notes: BifeE -

U

(i)

On 15 October 2013, the Group entered into a
framework agreement with CGNPC-URC for the sales
of natural uranium resources for the period ending 31
December 2016 at prevailing market rates. Interests
at LIBOR plus 2% per annum on overdue amounts for
the overdue period will be charged to CGNPC-URC.

On 31 July 2015, the Group entered into an
amendment to the framework agreement entered
into on 15 October 2013 with CGNPC-URC that the
subsidiaries of CGNPC-URGC, including China Uranium
Development, can also be the purchaser of natural
uranium resources. Interests at LIBOR plus 2% per
annum on overdue amounts for the overdue period will
be charged to China Uranium Development.

On 1 July 2015, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement with Semizbay-U for the purchases of
natural uranium resources for the year 2015 with other
taxes in relation thereon borne by the Group. The
Group is required to pay trade deposit to Semizbay-U
before delivery under the agreement with an interest
rate of 4% per annum.

On 16 October 2014, the Group entered into a
purchase agreement with Semizbay-U for the
purchases of natural uranium resources from 16
October 2014 to 31 December 2014 with other taxes
in relation thereon borne by the Group.

R2013F10A15H -
NG B R B AR S R R
R EE 2016512 A 31
AIFEEBTmELES
KRB IR M AT SLAEZE 17
% o WEIRIB SR 8 HA R
FEIHZLIBORMN2% F 2 A H
Az S5 B A 2. o

®2015F7 A31 8 * &%
B E A E R E T RIS
R2013%F 10 A15H 5T 32
HIAEZR R - HRUL - PR
ZHEZRAMBE AR (2
ERBHEER) I AR
A B 7 - BHEARKIES
RiEEREARZ LIBOR M2%
FEMPEZHEFRRK
HFIE -

MN2015€7A18 » K&
[ 358 A RIgE A 2015 F fF
B RREET S 08 B hek -
H b5 BARE 18 i AN S A
& - Bk - ASEA
AHAAZNE SRS -
EFIR 5 4% o

R2014F10A 16 H * A&
S AR E 20144
10 A 16 BEE 2014412 A
31 BIREBRAMERME]
BB HtaET
1B B A B -
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(@) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

On 1 June 2015, the Group entered into a service
agreement with CGNPC-URC for the management
services provided by CGNPC-URC from 1 January
2015 to 31 December 2015.

On 21 May 2014, the Group entered into a service
agreement with CGNPC-URC for the management
services provided by CGNPC-URC from 1 January
2014 to 31 December 2014.

On 7 August 2014, the Group entered into a services
agreement with CGN Power for the acquisition of ERP
system.

On 15 October 2013, the Group entered into a
revolving loan facility agreement pursuant to which
the Company provided the revolving loan to China
Uranium Development for the period ended 15
November 2014.

On 22 January 2014, the Group entered into a
framework agreement with Huasheng to deposit
amounts with Huasheng from 1 January 2014 to
31 December 2016 to generate interests from such
deposits.

On 8 August 2015, the Group entered into a rental
agreement with CGNPC-URC to lease out the
investment properties from 1 January 2015 to 31
December 2015 to generate rental income.

On 21 November 2014, the Group entered into a
rental agreement with CGNPC-URC to lease out the
investment properties from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2014 to generate rental income.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, CGN
Global provided the business and administration
services to the Group and charged for services fee.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, the Group placed the deposits in # FEixBf
7% to generate interest income with reference to the
prevailing market interest rate.

All transactions were conducted with terms mutually
agreed with the contracting parties pursuant to signed
agreements.

Details of connected transactions of the Company
are disclosed in the “Directors’ Report” section to the
Annual Report.
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B R EZHERERS
201541 A1 BE 20154
12 331 H B ER I3 5
BN E R R ] R
i o

MR2014F5H218 « &%
B EZEHEERERE
20141 A1 BE 20144
12 A31H B Bz
B E IR M=l AR
i o

(iv) R2014F8A7H » A&
B Hd B E ERP &
FEim ] SRS hek o

v) R2013F 108158 @ A&
SEVEREEERA
B &t - ARERERE
2014411 15 B (- HAfE
)R B e R AR B IR
B o

(vi) R2014F1 228 » A%
EHEEERFE 201451 A
1B ZE2016%F12A31BR
HERTFRAEEFEMET
SIAEZRRE

vii) R2015F8 A8H '+ &"&E
B ER S ERERE
201541 A1 BE 20154
12 A31 BEEHREMHER]
VHERE  UEEHS
NG

R2014F11 218 &
SEEPEZMEZER
H2014%1 A1 HZ2014
F12A31BRALIREDE
N E R - WEEM
SUA ©

(viii) REZE2015F12 31 1
LE4F[E © CGN Global #2
RIS RITBRTS TAS
E R RIS B o

(ix) RE E 20154 & 20144
12A311LFE - A&
BN EZAMBEAS
B AEEFBRA (K
ZEERTISHE)

Fi B R 5 IR IEFT 3R] 1
BRINZSTEREBELZ
{ERFRAETT ©
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WIEESWS | PWE -
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39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E2015%12 431 B ILE[E

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: directors of
the Company and other members of key management)

during the year is as follows:

38.

EBREALRZ &)

b EBREEABZMEE

REZE20159F12 A31 A1k
FEARNAIESE (20145 :
ARAEERHEMFEE
BAB)ZBEMT :

2015 2014
2015 2014 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Short-term benefits SEEREY ] 2,800 16,698
One-off termination benefits ~ — x|t BER G R - 1,900
Post-employment benefits B2 @A - -
2,800 18,598
The remuneration of directors of the Company and RKANREZTRTFETHA
key executives was determined by the remuneration EvMeHmTFHEZESeR

committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

COMMITMENTS

Commitments under operating leases
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$5,017,000 (2014: HK$11,321,000). The Group’s
properties held for rental purposes. A carrying amount of
HK$69,209,000 and HK$17,963,000, have been disposed of
and transferred to property, plant and equipment respectively
during the year ended 31 December 2015. The remaining
properties are expected to generate rental yields ranging from
6% to 15% (2014: 6% to 15%) on an ongoing basis. All of the
properties held have committed tenants for nil months (2014 nil
months to five years).

39.

ZEMERALZRBALT
LBEEE -

iR
SRR
FEBIERHN

FABRDMZWERSBAL R
5,017,000/ 7T(20144F : 11,320,000
B AEBREHEERS -
8% T {8 9 7Il 69,209,000 T M
17,963,000 % TR M5 B SR B 2
201512 A31 AILFEEHE @ I
DREEYE  RE KREE - 8B T
MY EBRFEEENTR6%E
15% (2014 F : 6% 2= 15%) M &
Wax - TS AMEAAARER
ZEAZEPRO14E: ZTEAE
FE) o

Annual Report 2015 ¢ — & — FFF R

205




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220155412 431 B IL &

39. COMMITMENTS (continued) 39.

Commitments under operating leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

RIE (#)
CRAERE(E)
REFEBHTN (B)

RBEHREEER - AEED EE
PR TFIE R 2 2 R RIEA
ENFEILAL

2015 2014

2015 20144

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Within one year —FNR = 4,951
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_FEZFAF (BREEEMF) = 1,339
- 6,290

The Group as lessee

The Group leased certain of its offices and staff quarters under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties were
negotiated for a term ranging from one to three years and
rentals were fixed throughout the rental period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

AL B/ ATAA

AEERBELHELFHERET
MAERBIES - HAMEZZ
EHEFHENT—F2=F mH
SEHEEHRRETE T o

RHEHEEER  AEERED
AIRHAS 0 E AR T 5 R R 3
M2 RARSEEREMNK

2015
2015 F

2014
2014 4F
HK$’000
FBT

HK$’000
FET

Land and buildings T RIEE
Within one year —F R 1,266 3,363
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_FEERF
(BRERMF) 1,661 709
2,927 4,072

Others

As at 21 December 2015, the Group entered into a letter of
intent with Fission to acquire 19.99% equity interest in Fission at
a consideration of approximately CDN$82,226,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$454,167,000). As at 31 December 2015,
approximately HK$16,764,000 was paid as a deposit for the
acquisition.
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  40. AARMEMRRE
THE COMPANY

2015 2014
2015 2014 4F
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FE&T T
Non-current assets IERBEE
Plant and equipment TR I 5% A 3,211 3,664
Investments in subsidiaries B A RIRE 1,032,119 61,250
1,035,330 64,914
Current assets MENEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NGRS (a) - 40,010
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary  FEUL[R Z T Al A ] kIE& (o) 471,864 1,299,336
Loan receivable from a shareholder — JEY—Z IR E R = =
Trade and other receivables JrE UK AR Rk B EL A MR IE 185,786 198,277
Bank balances and cash RITEF MRS 249,631 208,942
907,281 1,746,565
Current liabilities mENBE
Trade and other payables FEAS BR 3N % E b FE AN FRIE 47,250 143,028
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASFT B 2 B FRIE (@) 1,187 -
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary FER—RER ZKI B A RZKIE () 2,821 2,821
Amount due to an intermediate FEAS — [ R A A%
holding company NGIE/SE] (a) 7,162 3,803
Amount due to a joint venture R —REeEERIEA () - 11,856
Convertible bonds AR ES 289,933 =
Income tax payable FETER1SH: 19,971 7,918
368,324 169,426
Net current assets mENEEFE 538,957 1,577,139
Total assets less current liabilities BEAEBERTHAR 1,574,287 1,642,053
Capital and reserves AR A R (4
Share capital N 46,369 33,326
Reserves Btz (©) 1,527,765 1,059,067
Total equity iR 1,574,134 1,092,393
Non-current liabilities EmEaE
Convertible bonds AR ES - 549,507
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIEAE 153 153
153 549,660
1,574,287 1,642,053
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. AR RRE &)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: B & -

(a) Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries/amounts due to a fellow (@) FEU (FEAS) B A B,/ FE A — AR
subsidiary, an intermediate holding company and a joint RMEB AR — R BT A R R
venture are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on —HEECERBERELR 28
demand. RERERER -

(o) The amount represents amount due from Huasheng and (o) FEATEE BRI R B R AR &
amount due to CGN Power and details are set out in note 26. R - FHIEERMIEE26 ©

(c) Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows: () FAREEEBOT ¢

Equity
Share  component
Share options  of convertible Other Retained
premium reserve bonds reserve eamnings Total

TRk ES
- CO L Bada At RERA 3t
HK§000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK§'000 HK$'000
TET TR TE7 TET TR TET

At1 January 2014 R2014E1A18 710971 154 138,827 12 318473 1,168,437
Loss for the year EREE = - - - (109,365 (109,365
(Galn arising from tranglation EiEE NE = - = ) - (9]
At 31 December 2014 R2014%€128318 710971 154 138,827 7 209,108 1,069,067
Conversion of convertiole bonds F AR ES 337,934 - (69,414) - - 268,520
Prof for the year EREH = - - - 200,178 200,178
At 31 December 2015 R2015512A318 1,048,905 154 69413 7 409,286 1,527,765
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41. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries held by the Company as at 31

December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

il PEE

Direct subsidiaries:

ERMELT:

Yugofoll Holdings Limited
(*Yugofol’) (note by

heRERERAT

[#aRk))

M (o)

Ever Jump Limtted

— — =]

*Befjng Sino-Kazakh

OGNM UK Lid.

Indirect subsidiaries:

FERMRLT:

RERRSERRLT
(HEER) (oted]
GED)

Wide Triumph Limited
SBERAR (noteh)
(M)

Class of
shares held

FRRRHER

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
EEl

Contributed Capital
HAER
Ordinary shares

s

Contributed capital

SRR

Ordinary shares
R

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

it/
A

B
RERLES

BV
RERLES

PRC
G

United Kingdom
#H

PRC

ki

Hong Kong
i

Place of
operations

Fhis

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
(i

PRC
T

United Kingdom
#H

PRC

k|

Hong Kong
i

41. HBATIIR

ARRTER20155 K 2014F 12 A 31

ARAZMBRARFBNT

Particulars of issued
share capital/paid up
registered capital
BRfThE/

BREMEARE
2015

015%

50,000 orclnary shares of -
US§1 each
50,000 &k
SREE1ET
1 ordinary share of 100%
US§1 each
\REARERERZT
RMB823,770,000
ARHE82377000070

100,000 oralnary shares of
(GBP 1 each

1000005 R (£8)
SiRmE1 R

100%

100%

RMB30,000,000 -
ARE30,000,00070

100 ordinary shares -
of HK§100
100RERREE 1007

Attributable equity
interest of the Group

ASEELERR

2014
014%

100%

100%

100%

95.70%

100%

Principal activities

Ed 3

Investment holding
RERR

Inacive

HE

Investment project
R&RR

Tracing of natural uranium
AHES

Manufacturing and trading
of pharmaceutical
products

YEREEER

Management senvices

B
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41. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41. HfIEATIIERE)
Place of Particulars of issued
Class of incorporation/  Place of share capital/paid up Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary shares held establishment  operations registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
AL/ BRfiRA/
HEAFER BERHER RIz% £ HRARRAHE AEBELRE
2015 214
N5E  0UE
Indirect subsidiaries
(Continued):
FEENEAR ()
Vital Pharmaceuticals Company  Ordinary shares Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares - 100% Inactive
Limited note b} Lak Bt &k of HK$100 s
BREEERNT 100RERRAE 1007
(Het )
1)l B (noteb) Contriouted capital ~~ PRG PRC RMB43,000,000 - 100%  Seling and distributing
(B3 ) BARR el el ARE 4300000070 of pharmaceutica
products
HERAHER
' RPERELARAA Contrbutedcaptal ~~ PRC PRO RMB18,000,000 - 100% Property development and
(note ) NS el el AEE180000007 management
(Wt o) NEARRER
)| EREEERAR Contributed capital ~ PRC PRC RMB229,541,874 - 100% Pharmaceutical research
(note ) ALK i hE B 209541 8747 and development
EiRL0) and investment
menagement
BEMRRREER

# Wholly owned foreign enterprise . INEABERE

Notes: B & -

(@) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding (@) TR A BT B 2 B AN £ B P 45 ZRUERF
as at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the SR AR B R A5 (Al R
reporting period. EENEBES -

(b) On 25 March 2015, the Group entered into a sale agreement (o) R20156F3 258 « AEEFIEH
to dispose of its equity interest in Yugofoil Group to an Bl M—BBUE=THER
independent third party. Details are set out in notes 12 and 35. mEERAER o FHEESIRMEE

12535 °
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LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of the non-wholly owned subsidiary that have
material non-controlling interests

For the year ended 31 December 2015, there are no material
non-controlling interests.

The table shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group that have material non-controlling interests for the year
ended 31 December 2014:

41.

Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting rights held
by non-controling
interest

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/

Name of subsidiary operations

ML/ R/

MEARAGHE R

BEgR PRCHE

SRR TR

s/ REEAN L

4.30%

= PNGIRIESE )

BREAFERES ZFEZENE
DRIFE

RNEZE20156FE12 A31 BILEE -
R HEE ERIEIERRAE 2 JETE A

E_o

TRETRAEBREZ2014F 12
A318 - FEHEEEARIHERERS
| NG =

Accumulated
non-controlling
interests

Loss allocated

to non-controling
interests

AR LaIER
ERER
HK$'000

TAT

gt
HK§'000
57

(169) 1,641

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests for
the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts
before intragroup eliminations:

ERAEEREZE2014F 12 B 31
HIEFERA B ARIEE RIS 2 M
BARZHBEEEZESINAT -
T XA ERBEE Ty & B A P Es
A2 8088 -

2014

20144

HK$'000

FAT

Current assets MENEE 23,596
Non-current assets ETBEE 31,889
Current liabilities and total liabilities nEBEEKAGEE (14,624)

Equity attributable to owners RNAEEB N EhE

of the Company 39,220
Non-controlling interests IEPERTE 1,641
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41. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41.

Details of the non-wholly owned subsidiary that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

=PNGIRIESE )

BREAFERES ZFZENE
DRFE(E)

2014
2014 &
HK$’000
T
Revenue . 19,946
Expenses 53 (23,865)
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEEREE
expense for the year Fs 42 %8 (3,919)
Loss and total comprehensive ARAREEAELEER
expense attributable to 2HMAX R
owners of the Company (8,750)
Loss and total comprehensive IR R R R &
expense attributable FHMAX R
to the non-controlling interests (169)
(8,919)

2014
2014 4F

HK$’000
TAT

FURAMER
Net cash outflow from

operating activities KR TEIR B F R (7,736)
Net cash outflow from

investing activities WEREIR M FEE (294)
Net cash outflow REe R EE (8,030)
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 11 January 2016, the Company (as purchaser) and
Fission (as seller) entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which Fission agree to issue and the Company
agree to subscribe for 96,736,540 common shares at a
price of CDN$0.85 per common share at a consideration of
approximately CDN$82,226,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$454,167,000). The transaction was completed on 27
January 2016. Following the completion of the acquisition, the
Company held approximately 19.99% of the equity interest
in Fission. Fission is accounted for as an associate of the
Company which exercises significant influence in Fission after
the acquisition. Because the transaction was effected shortly
before the date of approval of these financial statements, it is
not practicable to quantify the financial impact as a result of the
transaction.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 21 December 2015, 11 January 2016,
14 January 2016 and 27 January 2016 and the Company’s
circular dated 7 March 2016.

42,

BREHERER

201651118 » ARRE(ER)
B Fission (B 77 ) sTZ RME s « &
it + Fission AIZ T RARFRE
LA %0.85 17T 7R HE 96,736,540 4%
@R - {E%Y/A82,226,0000
7t (A& R #9454,167,00078 7T )
RSMKR2016F1 H27THEMK &
BEUWBESEAK © ANA BlHE A Fission 49
19.99% f%#E ° Fission#5 BA A
AIMEE AR - MARRIERER
M Fission BB ERFLE N - AR
SEZ SN MR BE B BT AR
X8 2tARFEENTHE
LYWAAAT ©

AR GFBHERARTBHAE
2015 12 A21H * 20164 1 B
118 - 201641 H 14 H & 2016 F
1H27 BRNAE - RAARAHA
2016 3 A7 HAAR AR ©
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Particulars of Major Properties as at 31 December 2015

R2015FE12 831 B 2 X EY X115

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT B1EREZYE

Location A= Type of properties Lease term

YIEER FHEHAR

Rooms 2906 — 2910 & 2912, 29/F, 4L R T EAfG = Office Premises Medium-term lease
Shi Ao International Centre R B EEY/NE REIFRE

No. 101 Shaoyaoju Beili, 101 St BB BB AR Ly

Chaoyang District, 29#£2906 - 2910

Beijing, PRC K 2912 =
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